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Memorandum of Record

July 17, 2012

OnJuly 16, 2012at 4.44 pm CSTI received a text messageto my personal cell phone from Chris Riley:

So since youare at the beach, withyourfeet in thesand andprobably something cold to drink. Does

this mean we can resolve all DFG issues by Monday?:)

I replied via test at 8.46 pm CST:

Well Iam on vacation but it's apparently a "working" one. A realisticcounterby noon tomorrowis the
best chance of a resolution. Otherwise it will be outof myhands andresolved on Monday.

At 8.50 pm CST Chris Riley responded via text:

That will be difficult, Ryan saidtwoof issues, legalfees and aircraft are noteven on the table for
discussion. How can we giveyoua realistic counter when not all issues are ready? Mynon legal
opinion. Have a good vacation. Iwouldn't worry abouthaving to work thru it.

I did not respond.

On July 17, 2012at 6.31 am CST Ireceived a text message to mypersonal cellphone from Ryan Teague:

Holly - its Ryan. Would like to chatsoon when you are intheoffice. Ican walk over. Thanks.

I replied at 6.35 am CST:

Hi Ryan. I'm on vacation this week so ifyou need to talk before Monday it will needto beby phone. I
apologize for the inconvenience.

He replied at 6.36 am CST:

Ok. Let's talk by phone then. Are ufree this afternoon?

I replied at 6.38 am CST:

/ will be on thebeach butifyoucangiveme an approximate time Iwill be nearmyphone.

He replied at 6.41 am CST:

1 pm?

I replied at 6.42 am CST:

Sounds good. I will wait to hear from you then.



At 1.04 pm CST, Ryan Teague called my personal cell phone. He proceeded to let me know how he wasonly
acting asan intermediary to try to come to a resolution on the Deal complaints ahead of Monday's
Commission meeting. He made an offerof $1,500settlement, no admission of violations and everything else
to be dismissed. Iexplained that we offered Ben Vinson $5,400 the day before for the CCDR and PFD
complaint technical defects and violations which was 75% off the initial consent order amount. Ryan informed
me that that amount was more than Perdue (former Governor) had paid for a much worse violation. I tried to
explain that thefine amount was based on the number ofviolations. Ialso tried to explain that the legal fees
and aircraft complaints were not included in these consentorders because we were still awaiting the
Commission'svote on the AO'sand that this had been previously discussed at length with Randy Evans. Ryan

informed me that it was not in the agency's best interest for these cases to go to a hearing Monday; nor was it

in theirbest political interest either and that our rule making authority may not happen ifthe complaints were
not resolved prior to Monday. I responded byexpressing my surprise that the threat of rule making being
withheld was being used to make the complaints go away.

The conversation continued with his lackof regard for myvacation that was planned months prior to the

Commission meeting date being set for July 23rd. I informed Ryan that Iwould respond to voicemails and texts
but Iwould not continue to carry my phone in my hand all day whileon vacation and surely he didn't expect
me to do so. This was met with the remark that he was still required to be in contact when he was on

vacation. I replied that Iwas in contact with mystaff regarding issues that needed to be addressed prior to my
return but that the current scenario was not my emergency in light of the fact that we (the agency) had been

waiting for a month for the Respondent to negotiate on the consent order.

Due to the nature of the contact from Chris Riley and then Ryan Teague, I felt it necessary to inform the

Chairman of the Commission, Kevin Abernethy, about what had transpired sinceour phone conversation the
day before with the staffattorney (Elisabeth Murray-Obertein) and the Respondent's counsel (Ben Vinson).
After relaying the texts and phone conversation, Kevin stated that he would be passing this alongto the Vice-
Chairperson, Hillary Stringfellow and fellow commissioner, Kent Alexander.

Holly LaBerge
Executive Secretary

Georgia Government Transparency & Campaign Finance Commission
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G
(no subject)
1 message

Jvzwpix.com
To:

Holly LaBergej

vzwpix.com> Tue, Jul 17, 2012 at 10:42 AM

So, since you are at the beach, with your feet in thesandand probably something cold todrink. Does that
mean we can resolve all DFG issues on Monday? :)

https://mail.google.com/mail/?ui=2&ik=lb3019ce58&view=pt&q=j lqs=true... 7/18/2014
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(no subject)
1 message

Holly LaBerge

vzwpix.com> Tue, Jul 17, 2012 at 10:42 AM

Well Iamon vacation but it's apparently a "working" one. Arealistic counter by noon tomorrow is the best
chance of a resolution. Otherwise it will be out of my hands and resolved on Monday.

https://mail.googlc.com/mail/?ui=2&ik=lb3019cc58&vicw=pt&qH [qs=true... 7/18/2014
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(no subject)
1 message

0?»c
vzwpix.com>

Holly LaBerge

Tue, Jul 17, 2012 at 10:42 AM

That will be difficult, Ryan said two of issues, legal fees and aircraft are not even on the table for
discussion. How can we give you a realistic counter when not all issues are ready? My non legal opinion.
Have a good vacation. Iwouldn't worry about having to work thru it.

https://mail.google.com/mail/?ui=2&ik=lb3019ce58&view=pt&q; fertile... 7/18/2014



Gm il Holly LaBerge

Holly - its Ryan. Would like to chat soon when you...
1 message

vtext.com> Tue, Jul 17, 2012 at 10:43 AM

Holly - its Ryan. Would like to chat soonwhen you are in the office. Ican walk over. Thanks.

htlps://mail.google.com/mail/?ui=2&ik=lb3019ce58&view=pt&q: iqs=truc... 7/18/2014



Gm o*c
Holly LaBerge

Hi Ryan. I'm on vacation this week so ifyou need...
1 message

vtext.com> Tue, Jul 17, 2012 at 10:43 AM

Hi Ryan. I'm on vacation this week so if you need to talk before Monday it will need to be by phone. I
apologize for the inconvenience.

https://mail.google.com/mail/?ui=2&ik=lb3019ce58&view=pt&q: iqs=true... 7/18/2014



G M I Holly LaBerge

J.

Ok. Let's talk by phone then. Are u free this afte...
1 message

vtext.com>

Ok. Let's talk by phone then. Are u free this afternoon?

https://mail.google.com/mail/?ui:=2&ik:=lb3019cc58&view=pt&q=j

Tue, Jul 17, 2012 at 10:43 AM

:qs=true... 7/18/2014
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Holly LaBerge

I will be on the beach but if you can give me an a.
1 message

Mext.com vtext.com>

To:

Tue, Jul 17, 2012 at 10:44 AM

will be on the beach but if you can give me an approximate time Iwill be near my phone.

https://mail.google.com/mail/?ui=2&ik=1b3019ce58&view=pt&q= iqs=true... 7/18/2014



G D3 I

1pm?
1 message

Holly LaBerge

vtext.com> Tue, Jul 17, 2012 at 10:44 AM

https://mail.google.com/mail/?ui=2&ik=lb3019ce58&view=pt&q=| :qs=true... 7/18/2014



CjM il Holly LaBerge

Sounds good. I will wait to hear from you then.
1 message

vtext.com>

Sounds good. Iwill wait to hear from you then.

https://mail.google.comymail/?ui=2&ik=lb30l9ce58&view=pt&q:

Tue, Jul 17, 2012 at 10:44 AM

ks=true... 7/18/2014
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(no subject)
1 message

)vzwpix.com

To:

Holly LaBerge

vzwpix.com> Tue, Jul 17, 2012 at 9:49 PM

So Ireceived a piece of mail from the Governor's office last week addressed to agency heads and it had
my predecessor's name on it. Is this a subliminal message that the Governor's office wants her back?

https://mail.google.com/mail/?ui=2&ik=lb3019ce58&view=pt&q=| :qs=true... 7/18/2014



G M I Holly LaBerge

I don't remember sending anything out. What was it...
1 message

vtext.com>

don't remember sending anything out. What was it?

https://mail.google.com/mail/?ui=2&ik=lb3019cc58&view=pt&q:

Tue, Jul 17, 2012 at 9:50 PM

fcjs=truc... 7/18/2014



Gm it Holly LaBerge

You can't leave, you have common sense and that of...
1 message

Mext.com vtext.com>

To:

Tue. Jul 17, 2012 at 9:50 PM

You can't leave, you have common sense and that office you are in is like a huge vacum, it sucks all the
common sense out of people. :)

https://mail.google.com/mail/?ui=2&ik=lb3019ce58&view=pt&q: Mrue... 7/18/2014



G a i Holly LaBerge

It was about the state charitable contribution cam...
1 message

vtext.com> Tue, Jul 17, 2012 at 9:51 PM

It was about the state charitable contribution campaign. Thank you for the kind words!

https://mail.google.com/mail/?ui=2&ik=lb3019ce58&view=pt&q-- is=true... 7/18/2014
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Holly LaBerge
1 message

Holly LaBerge
To: brandi.johnson@gov.state.ga.us

Hello Brandi;

Holly LaBerge

Tue, May 28, 2013 at 1:27 PM

Iam following up on a text message Isent Chris last week about the letter of recommendation for
Leadership Georgia. Iwanted to be sure you received the resume Isent and let you know that the letter
needs to be sentelectronically to Katie Grosshans at kgrosshans@gachamber.com no later than 5 pm on
June 13th which is a Thursday. Please let me know if you have any questions and thank you in advance
for your assistance.

Regards,

Holly LaBerge

https://maihgoogle.com/mail/?ui^2& 7/18/2014



G M I

Holly LaBerge
1 message

Holly LaBerge <|
To: brandi.johnson@gov.state.ga.us

Hello Brandi;

Holly LaBerge

Wed, May 29, 2013 at 11:56 AM

I just want to be sureyou received my email from yesterday. Would you please either email meor call me
atfl Band let me know tnat you got tne email and if you have any cluestions? Tnank y°u in
advance.

Regards,
Holly

https://mail.googlexom/mail/?ui=2&ik=lb3019ce58&vievv=pt&q=brandioohnson0/o40gov... 7/18/2014
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(no subject)
1 message

vzwpix.com <j
To:

text O.txtinte>ILJ 1K

0*c
Holly LaBerge

)vzwpix.com> Fri, Jul 18, 2014 at 8:59 AM

https://mail.google.coiWmail/?ui=2&ik=lb3019cc58&view=pt&search=inbox&th=147498... 7/18/2014
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Thank you!

https://mail-attachjrient.googleusercontent.com/attachment/?ui=2&ik=lb3019ce58&view=... 7/18/2014
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(no subject)
1 message

vzwpix.com <j

To:

text O.txt,p| te>
iu 1K

0^c
Holly LaBerge

}vzwpix.com> Fri, Jul 18, 2014 at 8:59 AM

https://mail.google.com/mail/?ui=2&ik=lb3019ce58&vievv=pt&search---=inbox&th=l47498... 7/18/2014
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I just got a text from the review panel for LG. You are in play. This is a good thing

https://mail-attachment.googleusercontent.com/attachment/?ui=2&ik=lb3019ce58&view=... 7/18/2014
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(no subject)
1 message

)vzwpix.com J|_ J^vzwpix.com> Fri, Jul 18, 2014 at 8:59 AM
To:""

text O.txtD text-lLJ 1K

Holly LaBerge

https://maihgoogle.com/mail/?ui=2&ik=lb3019cc58&view=pt&search=inbox&th=147498... 7/18/2014



co^f
Thank you. That's the best news I've had all week

https://mail-attachment.googleusercontent.com/attachment/?ui=2&ik=lb3019cc58&view=... 7/18/2014
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Nathan Deal
GOVERNOR

STATE OF GEORGIA

OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR

ATLANTA 30334-0900

June 11,2013

Mr. Jay Neely
Selections Chair

Leadership Georgia
c/o Katie Grosshans

270 Peachtree Street; Suite 2200
Atlanta, GA 30303

Dear Mr. Neely:

It is my pleasure to recommend Holly LaBerge to the Leadership Georgia class of 2014.
Holly is a resident of Senoia and has supported her community for many years. As Executive
Director of the Georgia Government Transparency andCampaign Finance Commission, Holly is
responsible for monitoring the financial operations of agencies. She also serves as the liaison
with theAttorney General's Office and assists with all Commission matters before the Superior
Court, Court of Appeals, and the Office of State Administrative Hearings. While working in
various positions throughout state government, Holly has shown leadership in improving
government transparency throughout Georgia.

I believe Holly LaBerge would be an excellent candidate for Leadership Georgia. Her
unique and diverse perspective on the many challenges that face our state should fit well in
Leadership Georgia's mission. I would appreciate your consideration of her application.

Sincerely,

Nathan Deal



EXHIBIT D



IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF FULTON COUNTY
STATE OF GEORGIA

STACEY KALBERMAN,

Plaintiff,

v.

GEORGIA GOVERNMENT
TRANSPARENCY AND CAMPAIGN
FINANCE COMMISSION, tfk/a GEORGIA
STATE ETHICS COMMISSION, HOLLY
LABERGE, in her Official capacity as
Executive Secretary of the Georgia
Government Transparency and Campaign
Finance Commission, and PATRICK
MILLSAPS, in his Individual capacity,

Defendants.

CIVIL ACTION

FILE NO. 2012CV216247

PLAINTIFF STACEY KALBERMAN'S FIRST REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION OF
DOCUMENTS TO DEFENDANT GEORGIA GOVERNMENT TRANSPARENCY AND

CAMPAIGN FINANCE COMMISSION

COMES NOW Plaintiff Stacey Kalberman ("Ms. Kalberman") by and through her

undersigned counsel of record, pursuant to O.C.G.A. §§ 9-11-26 and 9-11-34, and hereby

demands that Defendant Georgia Government Transparency and Campaign Finance

Commission ("the Commission") respond to PlaintiffStacev Kalberman's First Requests For

Production Of Documents To Defendant Georgia Government Transparency And Campaign

Finance Commission by producing the requested documents to Plaintiffs counsel of record

within thirty (30) days after service hereof at the offices of Plaintiffs counsel, Kimberly A.

Worth, Joyce Thrasher Kaiser & Liss, LLC, Suite 2600, Five Concourse Parkway, Atlanta,

Georgia 30328.



DEFINITIONS

a) The terms "document" or "documents" shall mean any written, recorded, filmed, or

graphic matter, whether produced, reproduced or on paper, cards, tapes, film, electronic

facsimile, computer storage devices, or any other media, including but not limited to,

memoranda, notes, minutes, records, employment files, case files, pleadings,

photographs, slides, correspondence, telegrams, diaries, bookkeeping entries, financial

statements, tax returns, checks, check stubs, reports, studies, charts, graphs, statements,

notebooks, handwritten notes, applications, agreements, books, pamphlets, periodicals,

appointment calendars, notes, records and recordings of oral conversations, work papers,

andalso including but not limited to, originals, drafts and all copies which are different in

any way from the original whether by interlineations, receipt stamped, notations,

indicationsofcopies sent or received, or otherwise.

b) The term "identify" when used with reference to a document or written communication

shall mean to state the type of document or communication (e.g., memorandum,

employment application, letter, handwritten notes, etc.) to state its date, to briefly

describe its contents, to identify the author (and if different, the originator or signer), and

to identify the person (or, if widely distributed, the organization or classes of persons) to

whom the document or communication was sent. You may produce the document or

written communication in lieu of identifying it.

c) The "Commission," "you," and "your" refers without limitation to Defendant Georgia

Government Transparency and Campaign Finance Commission, its attorneys and agents,

and all persons acting on its behalf, including without limitation its employees.



d) The terms "Defendant Millsaps" and "Millsaps" refer without limitation to Defendant

Patrick Millsaps, his attorneys and agents, and all persons acting on his behalf.

e) "Defendants" shall refer to the Commission and Defendant Millsaps.

f) The conjunctions "and" and "or" shall be interpreted conjunctively and shall not be

interpreted disjunctively so as to exclude any information otherwise within the scope of

this discovery.

g) "Involving" and the derivatives thereof, means involving, including, summarizing,

recording, containing, listing, pertaining, concerning, comprising, consisting, addressing,

describing,mentioning, referringor reflecting.

REQUESTS TO PRODUCE

1.

Please produce any and all documents identified or otherwise referred to in your

responses to Plaintiffs First Continuing Interrogatories to Defendant Georgia Government

Transparency and Campaign Finance Commission served concurrently herewith.

2.

Please produce the Commission's entire investigative file concerning Nathan Deal,

including all correspondence relating to that investigation into alleged ethical violations

committed by his campaign for governor in the 2010 election cycle. Plaintiff acknowledges the

sensitive nature of this request and agrees to the production of the responsive documents subject

to a privilege log and offers that the documents will be viewed by counsel and Plaintiffonly.

3.

Please produce any and all documents relating to the budget of the Commission from

2009 through 2012.



4.

Please produce any and all calculations or proposals prepared to support the financial

necessity ofcutting Plaintiffs salary in May to June 2011.

5.

Please produce documentation relating to renovations to the office of the Commission

from January 1, 2010 through the present. Responsive materials should include, without

limitation, documents evidencing who completed said renovations, the location of the

renovations, thedate ofcompletion ofthe renovations, and thecostofthe renovations.

6.

Please produce documentation showing the salaries of all Commission employees from

2005 through the present.

7.

Please produce documentation showing all fees and costs paid to outside counsel to the

Commission from June 2011 through the present.

8.

Please produce any and all correspondence between Millsaps and any employee of the

Commission or the Commissioners since January 1,2010.

9.

Please produce any and all correspondence between Millsaps and Randolph Evans

relating to the Commission's budget, the Commission's investigation into alleged ethics

violations by Nathan Deal (the "Deal Investigation"), the employment of Plaintiff, the

employment of Sherilyn Streicker, Millsaps' appointment to the Commission, and Millsaps'

positionwith Mr. Gingrich's presidential campaign.



10.

Please produce any and all correspondence between Millsaps and Newt Gingrich and/or

Mr. Gingrich's presidential campaign, relating to any issue pertinent to this matter, including the

manner inwhich Millsaps obtained a position with Mr. Gingrich's presidential campaign.

11.

Please produce any and all correspondence between Millsaps and any other person

relating to any issue relating to this matter, including the employment of Plaintiff, the

employment of Sherilyn Streicker, Millsaps' appointment to the Commission, and the manner in

which Millsaps obtained a position with Mr. Gingrich's presidential campaign.

12.

Please produce any and all correspondence between Millsaps and any person at the

Commission orany other local, state, or federal authority, since January 1, 2010.

13.

Please produce the Secretary of State's monthly budget analysis for the Commission for

Fiscal Year 2011.

14.

Please produce any and all e-mails between Plaintiff and the Commissioners since

January 1,2010.

15.

Please produceany and all e-mails between Plaintiffand Millsaps since January 1,2010.

16.

Please produce any and all correspondence between Millsaps and the State of Georgia

Governor's Office during Millsaps' tenure as a Commissioner.



17.

Please produce all documents showing political contributions made by Millsaps and/or

any Commissioners since 2008.

18.

Please produce any and all records, documents, and correspondence relating to the cost

and useof postage by the Commission.

19.

Please produce any and all records, documents, and correspondence relating to any

supplemental budget request from the Commission from 2009 through the present.

20.

Please produce any and all documents relating to the current fiscal year budget of the

Commission.

21.

Produce any and all documents, correspondence, or other records documenting

communications since January 1, 2010 between any Commission employee, Commissioner, or

Millsaps anda member or representative ofthe media.

22.

Produce any and all documents, correspondence, or other records consulted or prepared

before June 9, 2011, which reflect proposals, draft plans, calculations, conversations,

discussions, and/or deliberations regarding the cut to Plaintiffs salary and the termination of Ms.

Streicker.



23.

Produce any and all documents, electrically stored information, and tangible things that

Defendants intend to rely upon to prove theiraffirmative defenses.

24.

Please produce any and all documents, electrically stored information, and tangible things

that Defendants intend to rely upon to prove that their actions were taken for legitimate, non-

retaliatory reasons, as alleged in theirseventh defense in their Answer.

25.

Please produce all documents, electrically stored information, and tangible things that

Defendants may use to support theirdefenses against Plaintiffs claims.

This jVday of March, 2013

Five Concourse Parkway
Suite 2600

Atlanta, Georgia 30328
Telephone: (404) 760-6000
Facsimile: (404) 760-0225

JOYCE THRASHER KAISER & LISS, LLC

mberly Worth, Esq.
eorgia Bar No. 500790

D. Barton Black, Esq.
Georgia Bar No. 119977

Attorneys for Stacey Kalberman



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that I have this day served a copy of the within and foregoing Plaintiffs

First Requestfor Production ofDocuments to Defendant Georgia Government Transparency

And Campaign Finance Commission upon all parties to this matter by depositing a true copy of

same in the U.S. Mail, proper postage prepaid for delivery, addressed to counsel of record as

follows:

Bryan K. Webb
Senior Assistance Attorney General

40 Capitol Square, S.W.
Atlanta, Georgia 30334

JK

This llr" day of March, 2013.

JOYCE THRASHER KAISER & LISS, LLC
Five Concourse Parkway
Suite 2600

Atlanta, Georgia 30328
Telephone: (404) 760-6000
Facsimile: (404) 760-0225

rq.

500790

DLBarfbn Black, Esq.
Georgia Bar No. 119977
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IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF FULTON COUNTY

STATE OF GEORGIA

STACEY KALBERMAN, *
*

Plaintiff, *

vs. * Civil Action No.

* 2012CV216247

GEORGIA GOVERNMENT *

TRANSPARENCY AND *

CAMPAIGN FINANCE *

COMMISSION, tfk/a GEORGIA *
STATE ETHICS COMMISSION, *
HOLLY LABERGE, in her Official *
capacityas Executive
Secretary ofthe Georgia
Transparency and Campaign
Finance Commission, and *
PATRICK MILLSAPS, in his *
Individual capacity,

Defendants

DEFENDANT GEORGIA GOVERNMENT TRANSPARENCY AND

CAMPAIGN FINANCE COMMISSION'S RESPONSES TO PLAINTIFF'S

FIRST REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION OF DOCUMENTS

COMES NOW, The Georgia Government Transparency and Campaign

Finance Commission, Defendant in the above-styled action, by and through its

attorneyofrecord, the Attorney General for the State ofGeorgia, and serves its

Responses and Objections to Plaintiffs First Request for Production ofDocuments

to Defendant as follows.



PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

A. These responses are based uponandtherefore, limited by records and

information in existence, presently recollected, andthus far discovered in the

course ofpreparing these responses. Defendant reserves the right to makechanges

to these responses if it appears atany time that inadvertent errors oromissions

have been made or additional or more accurate information has become available.

B. No incidental or impliedadmission of fact by the Defendant is made

by theresponses indicated below. The fact that Defendant has produced any

document requested herein may notbetaken as an admission thatDefendant

accepts oradmits theexistence ofany fact set forth orassumed by such requests,

orthat response constitutes admissible evidence. Defendant's response to any

request isnot intended to,nor shall itbeconsidered as awaiver by Defendant of

anyobjections to anyrequest made by Plaintiff.

C. These responses are based uponthe ordinary meaning ofwordsused

in the requests.

D. The information supplied in these responses is based upon the

knowledge, information andbelief ofthe Defendant, and includes knowledgeof

the parties, theiragents, representatives and attorneys. The work usage and

sentence structure may be that ofthe attorney assistingin the preparation ofthe



responses and thus does not necessarily purport to be the precise language ofthe

Defendant or any ofits agents or representatives.

GENERAL OBJECTIONS

Defendant objects generally to these requests on the following grounds:

1.

Defendant objects to the Plaintiffs requests to the extent that they attempt to

imposeobligations upon Defendant beyond the requirements ofthe Georgia Rules

ofCivil Procedure.

2.

Defendant objects to the extent that these requests are not limited by time to

the period relevant to this litigation on the grounds thatthey are overly broad and

are not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery ofadmissible or relevant

evidence.

3.

Defendant objects to the extent that these requests seek to be exhaustive on

the grounds thatthey are overly broad and not reasonably calculated to leadto the

discovery ofadmissible or relevant evidence.

4.

Defendantobjects to the Plaintiffs requests to the extent that they call for

productionofdocuments not in the custody, control or possession ofthe Defendant



and to the extent that they seek the production ofdocuments that are more than or

as readily availableto Plaintiffas Defendant.

5.

Defendant objects to Plaintiffs requests to the extent that they seek

documents protected by the attorney/client privilege, documents prepared in

anticipation oflitigation or which are protected by the work productdoctrine.

6.

Defendantobjects to Plaintiffs requests to the extent that they seek

documents which contain information about third-parties and which are protected

by confidentiality statutes related to student records and/or the privilege and

confidentiality between psychologist and patient.

7.

Defendant objects to the Plaintiffs discovery requests to the extent that they

attempt to stipulate words to have definitions other than their ordinary meaning.

RESPONSES TO REQUESTS

Request No. 1

Please produce any and all documents identified or otherwisereferred to in
your responses to Plaintiffs First Continuing Interrogatories to Defendant Georgia
Government Transparency and Campaign Finance Commission served
concurrently herewith.



Response

To the extent that Defendant is in possession ofdocuments meeting the

description ofthis request which have not already been produced to Plaintiff

voluntarily on a disc entitled "Documents in response to Plaintiffs (Sherilyn

Streicker) First Request for Production ofDocuments Produced by: Georgia

GovernmentTransparency and CampaignFinance Commission," Plaintiffwill

produce such documents to Plaintiff.

Request No. 2

Please produce the Commission's entire investigative file concerning Nathan

Deal, including all correspondence relating to that investigation into alleged ethical

violations committed by his campaign for governor in the 2010 election cycle.

Plaintiffacknowledges the sensitivenatureofthis request and agrees to the

production ofthe responsive documents subject to a privilege log and offersthat

the document will be viewed by counsel and Plaintiffonly.

Response

To the extent that Defendant is in possessionofdocuments meeting the

description ofthis request which have not alreadybeen produced to Plaintiff

voluntarily on a disc entitled "Documents in response to Plaintiffs (Sherilyn

Streicker) First Request for Production ofDocuments Produced by: Georgia



Government Transparency and Campaign Finance Commission," Plaintiffwill

produce such documents to Plaintiff.

Request No. 3

Please produce any and all documents relating to the budgetofthe

Commission from 2009 through 2012.

Response

To the extent that Defendant is in possession ofdocumentsmeeting the

description of this request which have not already been produced to Plaintiff

voluntarily on a discentitled "Documents in response to Plaintiffs (Sherilyn

Streicker) First Request forProduction ofDocuments Produced by: Georgia

Government Transparency andCampaign Finance Commission," Plaintiffwill

produce such documents to Plaintiff.

Request No. 4

Please produce anyand all calculations orproposals prepared to support the

financial necessity ofcutting Plaintiffs salary in May to June 2011.

Response

Defendant has no documents to produce based on its interpretation of

Plaintiffs described requested documents.

Request No. 5



Please produce documentation relating to renovations to the office ofthe

Commission from January 1,2010 through the present Responsive materials

should include, without limitation, documents evidencing who completed said

renovations, the location ofthe renovations, the date ofcompletion ofthe

renovations, and the cost ofthe renovations.

Response

To the extent that Defendant is in possessionofdocuments meeting the

description of this requestwhich have not already beenproduced to Plaintiff

voluntarily on a disc entitled"Documents in response to Plaintiff's (Sherilyn

Streicker) First Request for Production of Documents Producedby: Georgia

Government Transparency and Campaign Finance Commission," Plaintiffwill

produce such documents to Plaintiff.

Request No. 6

Please produce documentation showing the salaries ofall Commission

employees from 2005 through the present.

Response

Defendant objects on the basis that Plaintiffs interrogatory is overly broad

and not calculated to lead to any relevant or admissible evidence in this case and is

intrusive to those individuals who have had nothing to do with this case and whom

have longsince left employment withDefendant. Withoutwaiving the foregoing



information, Defendant will produce the requested information concerning

individualsemployed by the Commission from 2009 through the present.

Request No. 7

Pleaseproduce documentation showing all fees and costs paid to outside

counsel ofthe Commission from June 2011 through the present.

Response

To the extent that Defendant is in possession of documents meeting the

description ofthis request which have notalready beenproduced to Plaintiff

voluntarily on a discentitled "Documents in response to Plaintiffs (Sherilyn

Streicker) FirstRequest for Production ofDocuments Produced by: Georgia

Government Transparency and Campaign Finance Commission," Plaintiffwill

producesuch documents to Plaintiff.

Request No. 8

Please produce any and all correspondence between Millsaps and any

employee ofthe Commission or the Commissioners since January 1,2010.

Response

To the extent that Defendant is in possession ofdocuments meeting the

descriptionofthis request which have not already been produced to Plaintiff

voluntarily on a disc entitled "Documents in response to Plaintiffs (Sherilyn



Streicker) First Request for Production ofDocuments Produced by: Georgia

Government Transparency and Campaign Finance Commission," Plaintiffwill

produce such documents to Plaintiff.

Request No. 9

Please produce any and all correspondencebetween Millsaps and Randolph

Evans relating to the Commission's budget, the Commission's investigation into

alleged ethics violations by Nathan Deal (the "Deal Investigation'), the

employment ofPlaintiff, the employment of Sherilyn Steicker, Millsaps'

appointing to the Commission, and Millsaps' positionwith Mr. Gigrich's

presidential campaign.

Response

To the extent that Defendant is in possession ofdocuments meeting the

description ofthis request which have not already been produced to Plaintiff

voluntarily on a disc entitled "Documents in response to Plaintiffs (Sherilyn

Streicker) First Request for Production ofDocuments Produced by: Georgia

Government Transparency and Campaign Finance Commission," Plaintiffwill

produce such documents to Plaintiff.

Request No. 10

Please produce any and all correspondence between Millsaps and Newt

Gingrich and/or Mr. Gingrich's presidential campaign, relating to any issue



pertinent to this matter, including the manner in whichMillsapsobtaineda position

with Mr. Gingrich's presidential campaign.

Response

Defendant is not in possession ofany such documents.

Request No. 11

Please produce any and all correspondence between Millsaps and any other

person relating to anyissue relating to this matter, including the employment of

Plaintiff, the employment ofSherilyn Steicker, Millsaps' appointment to the

Commission, and the manner in which Millsaps obtained a position with Mr.

Gingrich's presidential campaign.

Response

To the extent that Defendant is in possessionofdocuments meeting the

description ofthis request which havenot already beenproduced to Plaintiff

voluntarilyon a disc entitled "Documents in response to Plaintiffs (Sherilyn

Streicker) First Request for Production of Documents Producedby: Georgia

Government Transparency and Campaign FinanceCommission,"Plaintiff will

producesuch documents to Plaintiff.

Request No. 12

10



Please produce any and all correspondencebetween Millsaps and any person

at the Commission or any other local, state, or federal authority, since January 1,

2010.

Response

Defendant objects to the extent that Plaintiffs request is overbroad and

unduly burdensome and seeks information that could not be related to this action in

anymannerwhatsoever. Withoutwaiving the foregoing objection,To the extent

that Defendant is in possession ofdocuments meeting the description ofthis

requestwhich have not already been produced to Plaintiffvoluntarily on a disc

entitled "Documents in response to Plaintiffs (Sherilyn Streicker) First Request

for Production ofDocuments Produced by: Georgia Government Transparency and

Campaign Finance Commission," Plaintiffwill producesuch documents to

Plaintiffthat bear directly on the subject matter ofthis action.

Request No. 13

Please produce the SecretaryofState's monthlybudget analysis for the

Commission for Fiscal Year 2011.

Response To the extentthat Defendant is in possession ofdocuments meeting the

description ofthis request which have not already been produced to Plaintiff

voluntarily on a disc entitled "Documents in response to Plaintiffs (Sherilyn

Streicker) First Request for Production ofDocuments Produced by: Georgia

li



GovernmentTransparency and Campaign Finance Commission," Plaintiff will

produce such documents to Plaintiff.

Request No. 14

Please produce any and all e-mails betweenPlaintiff and the Commissioners

since January 1,2010.

Response

To the extent that Defendant is in possession ofdocuments meeting the

description ofthis request which have notalready been produced to Plaintiff

voluntarily on a disc entitled"Documents in response to Plaintiff's (Sherilyn

Streicker) First Request for Production ofDocuments Produced by: Georgia

Government Transparency and Campaign Finance Commission," Plaintiffwill

produce suchdocuments to Plaintiff.

Request No. 15

Please produce any and all e-mails betweenPlaintiffand Millsaps since

January, 1,2010.

Response

To the extent that Defendant is in possession ofdocuments meeting the

description ofthis requestwhich have not already been produced to Plaintiff

voluntarily on a disc entitled "Documents in response to Plaintiff's (Sherilyn

Streicker) First Request for Production ofDocumentsProduced by: Georgia

12



Government Transparency and Campaign Finance Commission," Plaintiffwill

produce such documents to Plaintiff.

Request No. 16

Please produceany and all correspondence between Millsaps andthe State

ofGeorgia Governor's Office during Millsaps' tenure as a Commissioner.

Response

To the extent that Defendant is in possession ofdocuments meeting the

description ofthisrequest which have notalready been produced to Plaintiff

voluntarily on a disc entitled "Documents in response to Plaintiffs (Sherilyn

Streicker) First Request for Production ofDocuments Produced by: Georgia

Government Transparency andCampaign Finance Commission," Plaintiffwill

produce suchdocuments to Plaintiff.

Request No. 17

Please produce all documents showing political contributions madeby

Millsaps and/or any otherCommissioner since 2008.

Response

Plaintiff can access the information in its possession and related to the

description set forth in herRequest on the Commission website, ethics.ga.gov

under "Search Reports and Records."

13



Request No. 18

Please produce any and all records, documents and correspondence relating

the cost and use ofpostage by the Commission.

Response

Defendantobjects on the basis that Plaintiffs request is not limited in time

or calculated to lead to the discovery ofany relevant or admissible evidence.

Withoutwaiving the foregoing objection, Defendantwill produce documents

concerning cost and use ofpostage by the Commission which may be at issue in

this case.

Request No. 19

Pleaseproduceany and all records, documents, and correspondence relating

to any supplemental budget requests from theCommission from 2009 through the

present.

Response

To the extent that Defendant is in possession ofdocuments meeting the

description ofthis requestwhichhavenot already beenproducedto Plaintiff

voluntarily on a disc entitled "Documents in response to Plaintiff's (Sherilyn

Streicker) First Request for Production ofDocuments Produced by: Georgia

Government Transparency and Campaign Finance Commission," Plaintiffwill

produce such documents to Plaintiff.

14



Request No. 20

Please produce any and all documents relating to the current fiscal year

budget ofthe Commission.

Response

To the extent that Defendant is in possession ofdocuments meeting the

description ofthis request which have not alreadybeen produced to Plaintiff

voluntarily on a disc entitled "Documents in response to Plaintiffs (Sherilyn

Streicker) First Request for Production ofDocuments Produced by: Georgia

Government Transparency and Campaign FinanceCommission," Plaintiff will

produce such documents to Plaintiff.

Request No. 21

Produce any and all documents, correspondence, or other records

documenting communications sinceJanuary 1,2010 between any Commission

employee, Commissioner, or Millsaps and a memberor representative ofthe

media.

Response

To the extent that Defendant is in possession ofdocuments meeting the

description ofthis request which have not already been produced to Plaintiff

voluntarily on a disc entitled "Documents in response to Plaintiff's (Sherilyn

Streicker) First Request for Production ofDocuments Produced by: Georgia

15



Government Transparency and Campaign Finance Commission," Plaintiffwill

produce such documents to Plaintiff.

Request No. 22

Produce any andall documents, correspondence, or otherrecords consulted

orprepared before June 9,2011, whichreflect proposals, draft plans, calculations,

conversations, discussions, and/or deliberations regardingthe cut to Plaintiffs

salary andthe termination ofMs. Streicker.

Response

To the extent that Defendant is in possession ofdocuments meeting the

description ofthis request whichhave notalready been produced to Plaintiff

voluntarily on a disc entitled "Documents in response to Plaintiffs (Sherilyn

Streicker) First Request for Production ofDocuments Produced by: Georgia

Government Transparency andCampaign Finance Commission," Plaintiffwill

produce suchdocuments to Plaintiff.

Request No. 23

Produce any and all documents, electrically storedinformation and tangible

things that Defendants intend to rely uponto prove theiraffirmative defenses.

Response

To the extent that Defendant is in possession of documents meeting the

description ofthis request which have not already been produced to Plaintiff

16



voluntarily on a disc entitled"Documents in response to Plaintiffs (Sherilyn

Streicker)First Request for Production ofDocumentsProduced by: Georgia

GovernmentTransparency and CampaignFinance Commission," Plaintiffwill

produce such documents to Plaintiff.

Request No. 24

Please produce any and all documents, electrically stored information, and

tangible things that Defendants intend to rely upon to prove that their actions were

taken for legitimate, non-retaliatory reasons, as alleged in their seventh defense in

their Answer.

Response

To the extent that Defendant is in possession ofdocuments meeting the

description ofthis request which have not already been produced to Plaintiff

voluntarily on a disc entitled "Documents in response to Plaintiffs (Sherilyn

Streicker) First Request for Production ofDocuments Produced by: Georgia

Government Transparency and Campaign Finance Commission," Plaintiffwill

produce such documents to Plaintiff.

Request No. 25

Please produce all documents, electrically stored information, and tangible

things that Defendants may use to support their defenses against Plaintiffs claims.

17



Response

To the extent that Defendant is in possession ofdocuments meeting the

description ofthis requestwhichhavenotalready been producedto Plaintiff

voluntarily on a disc entitled"Documents in response to Plaintiffs (Sherilyn

Streicker) FirstRequestfor Production of Documents Produced by: Georgia

Government Transparency and Campaign FinanceCommission,"Plaintiff will

produce such documents to Plaintiff.

Respectfully submitted,

SAMUEL S. OLENS

Attorney General

DENNIS R. DUNN

Deputy Attorney General

551540

234098

C* r

ANNETTE M. COWART 191199 y
Senior Assistant Attorney General

BRYAN K. WEBB 743580

Senior Assistant Attorney General

PLEASE SERVE:

BRYAN K. WEBB

Senior Assistant Attorney General
40 Capitol Square, S.W.
Atlanta, Georgia 30334-1300
Tele: (404)656-5331
Fax: (404)657-9932
Email: bwebb@Jaw.ga.gov
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that on June 14th, 2013,1 served the foregoing

DEFENDANT GEORGIA GOVERNMENT TRANSPARENCY AND

CAMPAIGN FINANCE COMMISSION'S RESPONSES TO PLAINTIFF'S

FIRST REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION OF DOCUMENTS, upon opposing

counsel in this case by sendinga copyvia the United StatesMail with adequate

postage affixedand addressed as follows:

Kimberly Worth
Barton Black

JOYCE THRASHER KAISER & LISS, LLC
Five Concourse Parkway
Suite 2600

Atlanta, Georgia 30328

This 14th day of June, 2013.

S?<1^-
Bryan K. Webb
Counsel for Defendant

State Bar No.: 743580
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EXHIBIT G



IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF FULTON COUNTY
STATE OF GEORGIA

STACEY KALBERMAN,

Plaintiff,

v.

GEORGIA GOVERNMENT
TRANSPARENCY AND CAMPAIGN
FINANCE COMMISSION, tfk/a GEORGIA
STATE ETHICS COMMISSION, HOLLY
LABERGE, in her Official capacity as
Executive Secretary of the Georgia
Government Transparency andCampaign
Finance Commission, and PATRICK
MILLSAPS, in his Individualcapacity,

Defendants.

CIVIL ACTION

FILE NO. 2012CV216247

I0INAL

PI.AINTIFF STACEY KALBERMAN'S FIRST REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION
OF DOCUMENTS AND THINGS TO DEFENDANT HOLLY LABERGE

COMES NOW Plaintiff Stacey Kalberman ("Plaintiff or "Ms. Kalberman") by and

through her undersigned counsel of record, pursuant to O.C.G.A. §§ 9-11-26 and 9-11-34, and

hereby demands that Defendant Holly LaBerge, in her Official capacity as Executive Secretary

ofthe Georgia Government Transparency and Campaign Finance Commission ("Defendant" or

"Ms. LaBerge"), respond to Plaintiff Stacev Kalberman's First Requests For Production Of

Documents and Things To Defendant Hollv LaBerge by producing the requested documents to

Plaintiffs counsel of record within thirty (30) days after service hereof at the offices of

Plaintiffs counsel, Kimberly A. Worth, Joyce Thrasher Kaiser & Liss, LLC, Suite 2600, Five

Concourse Parkway, Atlanta, Georgia 30328.

(002930404 )



DEFINITIONS

a) The terms "document" or "documents" shall mean any written, recorded, filmed, or graphic

matter, whether produced, reproduced or on paper, cards, tapes, film, electronic facsimile,

computer storage devices, or any other media, including but not limited to, memoranda,

notes, minutes, records, employment files, case files, pleadings, photographs, slides,

correspondence, telegrams, diaries, bookkeeping entries, financial statements, tax returns,

checks, check stubs, reports, studies, charts, graphs, statements, notebooks, handwritten

notes, applications, agreements, books, pamphlets, periodicals, appointment calendars, notes,

records and recordings of oral conversations, work papers, and also including butnot limited

to, originals, drafts and all copies which are different in any way from the original whether

by interlineations, receipt stamped, notations, indications of copies sent or received, or

otherwise.

b) The term "identify" when used with reference to adocument or written communication shall

mean to state the type of document or communication (e.g., memorandum, employment

application, letter, handwritten notes, etc.) to state its date, to briefly describe its contents, to

identify the author (and if different, the originator or signer), and to identify the person (or, if

widely distributed, the organization or classes of persons) to whom the document or

communication was sent. You may produce the document or written communication in lieu

of identifying it.

c) The terms "you" and "your" refer without limitation to Defendant Holly LaBerge, in her

Official capacity as Executive Secretary of the Georgia Government Transparency and

Campaign Finance Commission; her attorneys and agents; and all persons acting on her

behalf.

(00293040.4}



d) The terms "Defendant Commission" and "Commission" refer without limitation to

Defendant Georgia Government Transparency and Campaign Finance Commission, its

attorneys and agents, and all persons acting on its behalf, including without limitation its

employees.

e) The terms "Defendant Millsaps" and "Millsaps" refer without limitation to Defendant Patrick

Millsaps, his attorneys and agents, and all persons acting on his behalf.

f) "Defendants" shall refer to you, the Commission and Defendant Millsaps.

g) "Personal E-mail Account" shall refer to any e-mail account that you possess or use (e.g.

Gmail, Hotmail, Yahoo!, AOL, etc.) other than the e-mail account assigned to you and

maintained by theCommission and/or the State ofGeorgia.

h) "Commission E-mail Account" shall refer to any e-mail account assigned to you and

maintained bytheCommission and/or theState of Georgia,

i) The conjunctions "and" and "or" shall be interpreted conjunctively and shall not be

interpreted disjunctively so as to exclude any information otherwise within the scope ofthis

discovery,

j) "Involving" and the derivatives thereof, means involving, including, summarizing, recording,

containing, listing, pertaining, concerning, comprising, consisting, addressing, describing,

mentioning, referring or reflecting.

REQUESTS TO PRODUCE

1.

Please produce any and all documents identified or otherwise referred to in your

responses to Plaintiff Stacev Kalberman's First Continuing Interrogatories to Defendant Hollv

LaBerge served concurrently herewith.

(00293040.4)



2.

Please produce any and all correspondence, including e-mails to and from your Personal

E-mail Accounts) and/or your Commission E-mail Account(s), between yourself and any other

person(s) (e.g., without limitation, Lisa Dentler, Elisabeth Murray-Obertein) and/or

entity(ies)/agency(ies)/department(s) ofthe government ofthe State ofGeorgia, concerning any

issue relating to this lawsuit filed by Plaintiff, including correspondence pertaining to, without

limitation, the Commission's budget, the Commission's investigation into alleged ethics

violations by Nathan Deal (the "Deal Investigation"), the employment of Plaintiff and this

resulting lawsuit, the employment of Sherilyn Streicker and her resulting lawsuit against

Defendants, Defendant Millsaps' appointment to the Commission, Defendant Millsaps' role as

Chair of the Commission, Defendant Millsaps' departure from the Commission, the manner in

which Defendant Millsaps obtained his position with Mr. Newt Gingrich's presidential

campaign, Randolph "Randy" Evans, Todd Markle, the State of Georgia Governor's Office,

Deborah Wallace, and/or the Office of the State Inspector General and its investigation into

Plaintiffsdeparture from the Commission.

3.

Please produce any and all correspondence, including e-mails to and from your Personal

E-mail Account(s) and/or your Commission E-mail Account(s), between yourself and Elisabeth

Murray-Obertein referencing or relating to Ms. Murray-Obertein's application and candidacy,

her interviewing, and her subsequent hiring for the position ofStaff Attorney at the Commission.

(00293040.4}



4.

Please produce any and all correspondence, including e-mails to and from your Personal

E-mail Accounts) and/or your Commission E-mail Account(s), between yourselfand Plaintiff.

5.

Please produce any and all correspondence, including e-mails to and from your Personal

E-mail Accounts) and/or your Commission E-mail Accounts), between yourself and any

employee or representative ofthe State ofGeorgia Governor's Office, since July 1,2011.

6.

Please produce any and all documents in your possession, custody, or control relating to

the budget ofthe Commission from July 1,2011 through the present time.

7.

Please produce any and all documents, correspondence, or other records documenting or

relating to communications between yourself and any representative of the media or press since

July 1,2011.

8.

Please produce any and all documents in your possession, custody, or control relating to

your hiring as Executive Secretary ofthe Commission, including, without limitation, any and all

correspondence between you and any member ofthe Commission regarding your candidacy for

the position, any and all application materials that you submitted for the position, any and all

documents and things evidencing, memorializing, or relating to any interviews in which you

participated for or regarding the position, any resume' and/or curriculum vitae you submitted to

the Commission, and/or any documents you submitted to the Commission evidencing your

previous employment history and qualifications for the position ofExecutive Secretary.

(00293040.4 }



Please produce any and all documents, correspondence, or other records documenting

your salary asExecutive Secretary of the Commission from your date ofhire through the present

date.

10.

Please produce all documents showing political contributions made by you since 2008.

11.

Please produce all documents, electronically stored information, and tangible things that

you may use to supjport your defense against Plaintiffs claims.

j/r"This day of April, 2013.

Five Concourse Parkway
Suite 2600
Atlanta, Georgia 30328
Telephone: (404) 760-6000
Facsimile: (404) 760-0225

(00293040.4 )

JOYCti TrfRASHER KAISER & LISS, LLC

Kimbdly>worth, Esq.
Geor^pBarNo. 500790
D. B&ton Black, Esq.
Georgia Bar No. 119977

Attorneysfor Stacey Kalberman



EXHIBIT H



IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF FULTON COUNTY
STATE OF GEORGIA

STACEY KALBERMAN,

Plaintiff,

*

*

vs. * Civil Action No.
2012CV216247

GEORGIA GOVERNMENT *

TRANSPARENCY AND *

CAMPAIGN FINANCE *

COMMISSION, ffk/a GEORGIA *
STATE ETHICS COMMISSION, *
HOLLY LABERGE, in her Official *
capacity as Executive *
Secretary ofthe Georgia *
Transparency and Campaign *
Finance Commission, and *
PATRICK MILLSAPS, in his *
Individual capacity, *

Defendants *

DEFENDANT HOLLY LABERGE'S RESPONSES TO PLAINTIFF'S

FIRST REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION OF DOCUMENTS

COMES NOW, The Georgia Government Transparency and Campaign

Finance Commission, Defendant in the above-styled action, by and through its

attorney ofrecord, the Attorney General for the State ofGeorgia, and serves its

Responses and Objections to Plaintiffs First Request For Production of

Documents to Defendant as follows.



PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

A. These responses are based uponandtherefore, limited by records and

information in existence, presentlyrecollected, andthus far discovered in the

course ofpreparing these responses. Defendant reserves the right to make changes

to theseresponses if it appears at any time that inadvertent errors or omissions

have been made or additional or more accurate information has become available.

B. No incidental or implied admission of fact by the Defendant is made

by the responses indicatedbelow. The fact that Defendanthas producedany

document requested hereinmay not be takenasan admission that Defendant

accepts or admits the existence ofany fact set forth or assumed by such requests,

or that response constitutes admissible evidence. Defendant's response to any

requestis not intended to, nor shall it be considered as a waiver by Defendantof

any objections to any request made by Plaintiff.

C. These responses are based upon the ordinary meaning ofwords used

in the requests.

D. The information supplied in these responses is based upon the

knowledge, information and beliefofthe Defendant, and includes knowledge of

the parties, their agents, representatives and attorneys. The work usage and

sentence structure may be that ofthe attorney assisting in the preparation ofthe



responses and thus does not necessarily purport to be the precise language ofthe

Defendant or any of its agents or representatives.

GENERAL OBJECTIONS

Defendant objects generally to these requests on the following grounds:

1.

Defendant objects to the Plaintiffs requests to the extent that they attempt to

impose obligations upon Defendant beyond the requirements ofthe GeorgiaRules

ofCivil Procedure.

2.

Defendant objects to the extent that these requests are not limited by time to

the period relevant to this litigation on the grounds that they are overly broad and

are not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery ofadmissible or relevant

evidence.

3.

Defendant objects to the extent that these requests seek to be exhaustive on

the grounds that they are overly broad and not reasonably calculated to lead to the

discovery ofadmissible or relevant evidence.

4.

Defendant objects to the Plaintiffs requests to the extent that they call for

productionofdocuments not in the custody, control or possession ofthe Defendant



and to the extent that they seek the production ofdocuments that are more than or

as readily available to Plaintiffas Defendant.

5.

Defendant objects to Plaintiffs requests to the extent that they seek

documents protected by the attorney/client privilege,documents prepared in

anticipation of litigation or which are protected by the work product doctrine.

6.

Defendant objects to Plaintiffs requests to the extent that they seek

documents which contain information about third-parties and which are protected

by confidentiality statutes related to student records and/or the privilege and

confidentiality between psychologist and patient.

7.

Defendant objects to the Plaintiffs discovery requests to the extent that they

attemptto stipulate words to have definitions other than their ordinary meaning.

RESPONSES TO REQUESTS

Response to Request No. 1

To the extent that Defendant is in possession ofdocuments meeting the

description ofthis request which have not already been produced to Plaintiff

voluntarily on a disc entitled "Documents in response to Plaintiffs (Sherilyn

Streicker) First Request for Production of Documents Produced by: Georgia



GovernmentTransparency and CampaignFinance Commission," Plaintiffwill

producesuch documents to Plaintiff.

Response to Request No. 2

To the extent that Defendant is in possession ofdocuments meeting the

description ofthis request which have not already been produced to Plaintiff

voluntarily on a disc entitled "Documents in response to Plaintiffs (Sherilyn

Streicker) First Request For Production ofDocuments Produced by: Georgia

Government Transparency and Campaign Finance Commission," Plaintiffwill

produce such documents to Plaintiff.

Response to Request No. 3

To the extent that Defendant is in possessionofdocuments meeting the

description ofthis request which have not already been produced to Plaintiff

voluntarilyon a disc entitled "Documents in response to Plaintiffs (Sherilyn

Streicker) First Request For ProductionofDocuments Produced by: Georgia

Government Transparency and Campaign Finance Commission," Plaintiffwill

produce such documents to Plaintiff.

Response to Request No. 4

To the extent that Defendant is in possessionofdocuments meeting the

description ofthis request which have not already been produced to Plaintiff

voluntarily on a disc entitled "Documents in responseto Plaintiffs (Sherilyn



Streicker) First Request for Production ofDocuments Produced by: Georgia

GovernmentTransparency and CampaignFinance Commission," Plaintiffwill

produce such documents to Plaintiff.

Response to Request No. 5

To the extent that Defendant is in possession ofdocuments meeting the

description ofthis request which have not already been produced to Plaintiff

voluntarily on a disc entitled "Documents in response to Plaintiffs (Sherilyn

Streicker) First Request For Production ofDocuments Produced by: Georgia

Government Transparency and Campaign Finance Commission," Plaintiffwill

produce such documents to Plaintiff.

Response to Request No. 6

To the extentthat Defendantis in possession ofdocuments meetingthe

description ofthis request which have not alreadybeen produced to Plaintiff

voluntarily on a disc entitled "Documents in response to Plaintiffs (Sherilyn

Streicker) First Request For Production of Documents Produced by: Georgia

Government Transparency and Campaign Finance Commission," Plaintiffwill

produce such documents to Plaintiff.

Response to Request No. 7

To the extentthat Defendant is in possession ofdocuments meeting the

description ofthis request which have not already been produced to Plaintiff



voluntarily on a disc entitled"Documents in response to Plaintiffs (Sherilyn

Streicker) First RequestFor Production of Documents Producedby: Georgia

Government Transparency and Campaign Finance Commission," Plaintiffwill

produce such documents to Plaintiff.

Response to Request No. 8

To the extent that Defendant is in possession ofdocuments meeting the

description ofthis request which have not alreadybeen produced to Plaintiff

voluntarily on a disc entitled "Documents in response to Plaintiffs (Sherilyn

Streicker) First Request For Production ofDocuments Produced by: Georgia

Government Transparency and Campaign Finance Commission," Plaintiffwill

produce such documents to Plaintiff.

Response to Request No. 9

To the extent that Defendant is in possessionofdocuments meeting the

description ofthis request which have not already been produced to Plaintiff

voluntarily on a disc entitled "Documents in response to Plaintiffs (Sherilyn

Streicker) First Request For Production ofDocuments Produced by: Georgia

Government Transparency and Campaign Finance Commission," Plaintiffwill

produce such documents to Plaintiff.



Response to Request No. 10

Defendant responds that she has not made a political contribution and there

are no documents.

Response to Request No. 11

To the extent that Defendant is in possession ofdocuments meeting the

description ofthis request which have not already been produced to Plaintiff

voluntarily on a disc entitled "Documents in responseto Plaintiffs (Sherilyn

Streicker) First Request For Production ofDocuments Produced by: Georgia

Government Transparency and Campaign Finance Commission," Plaintiffwill

producesuch documents to Plaintiff.

Respectfully submitted,

SAMUEL S. OLENS 551540

Attorney General

DENNIS R. DUNN 234098

Deputy Attorney General

ANNETTE M.COWART ' • 191199
Senior Assistant Attorney General

BR^ANK.WEBB * 743580
Senior Assistant Attorney General



PLEASE SERVE:

BRYAN K. WEBB

Senior Assistant Attorney General
40 Capitol Square, S.W.
Atlanta, Georgia 30334-1300
Tele: (404)656-5331
Fax: (404)657-9932
Email: bwebbffilaw.ga.gov



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that on June 14th, 2013,1 served the foregoing

DEFENDANT HOLLY LABERGE'S RESPONSES TO PLAINTIFF'S

FIRST REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION OF DOCUMENTS upon opposing

counsel in this case by sending a copyvia the United StatesMail with adequate

postage affixedand addressed as follows:

Kimberly Worth
Barton Black

JOYCE THRASHER KAISER & LISS, LLC
Five Concourse Parkway
Suite 2600

Atlanta, Georgia 30328

This 14th day of June, 2013.

B#anK.Webb' (1 J
Counsel for Defendant

State Bar No.: 743580
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EXHIBIT I



JOYCE THRASHER

KAISER & LISS LLC

Attornevs & Counselors ;it Law

Five Concourse Parkway
Suite 2600

Atlanta, Georgia 30328

March 21. 20

t: 404-760-6000

t: 404-760-0225

www.jtklaw.com

D. Barton Black

d: 404-760-6014

bblack@jtklaw.com

VIA OVERNIGHT DELIVERY

FE: 799348054924

Google Inc.
c/o Corporation Service Company
40 Technology Parkway South. Suite 300
Atlanta. Georgia 30092

Re: Stacey Kalberman v. Georgia Government Transparency and Campaign
Financial Commission, ct a/.: Superior Court of Fulton County. Georgia:
Civil Action File No. 2012-CV-216247

Dear Sirs:

This firm represents Stacev Kalberman in the above-referenced civil action. I have
enclosed a Subpoena for the Production of Evidence at a Deposition (the •"Subpoena") requiring
vou to produce the documents described therein in our office on April 12, 2013 at 10:00 a.m. In
lieu of appearing for your deposition on the scheduled date, you may provide us with copies
of the requested documents prior to April 12, 2013.

Until the Court releases you from the Subpoena, you are obligated to appear as instructed
therein under penalty of law. Should you have any questions with regard to the above, please
contact our office.

Sincerely.

JOYCE THRASHER KAISER & LISS, LLC

/dbb

Enclosures

D. Barton Black



IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF FULTON COUNTY
STATE OF GEORGIA

STACEY KALBERMAN,

Plaintiff,

v.

GEORGIA GOVERNMENT
TRANSPARENCY AND CAMPAIGN
FINANCE COMMISSION, ffk/a GEORGIA
STATE ETHICS COMMISSION, HOLLY
LABERGE, in her Official capacity as
Executive Secretaryofthe Georgia Government
Transparency and CampaignFinance
Commission, and PATRICK MILLSAPS, in
his Individual capacity,

Defendants.

CIVIL ACTION

FILE NO. 2012CV216247

SUBPOENA TO GOOGLE INC FOR THE PRODUCTION
OF EVIDENCE AT A DEPOSITION

To: Google Inc.
c/o Corporation Service Company
40 Technology Parkway South, Suite 300
Atlanta, Georgia 30092

Pursuant to the provisions of O.C.G.A. §§ 9-11-30 and 9-11-45, you are hereby required

to appear at the offices of Joyce Thrasher Kaiser & Liss, LLC, 5 Concourse Parkway NE, Suite

2600, Atlanta, Georgia30309 at 10:00 a.m. on April 12,2013, to give your depositionuponoral

examination in the case pending in the Superior Court of Fulton County, Case No.

2012CV216247, and to bring with you the documentsdescribed in Exhibit "A." attached hereto.

In lieuof appearing for the deposition and production of records directed herein, you may serve

copies of the requested records upon counsel for Plaintiffidentified below prior to the scheduled

date.

(0OT9M26 )



HEREIN FAIL NOT, UNDER PENALTY OF LAW.

ISSUED this^Z^day of M(VcK ,2013

(00292820.}

Clerk ofSuperior Court ofFulto^ County



Inquiries should be directed to:

Counsel for Plaintiff

KimberlyWorth, Esq.
kworth@jtklaw.com
D. Barton Black, Esq.
bblack@jtklaw.com
JOYCE THRASHER KAISER & LISS, LLC
Five Concourse Parkway
Suite 2600
Atlanta, Georgia 30328
Phone:(404)760-6000
Facsimile: (404) 760-6014

(00292826.|



Exhibit A

1. Please produce all emails, messages, and attachments that were delivered to or sent from the

email address "holly.laberge@gmail.com" from July 1,2011 through the date of response to

this Subpoena, including without limitation any emails, messages, or attachments that were

deleted.

2. Please produce all emails, messages, and attachments that were delivered to or sent from the

email address "lmdentler@gmail.com" from July 1, 2011 through the date ofresponse to this

Subpoena, including without limitation any emails, messages, or attachments that were

deleted.

(00292826.)



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that I have this day served the within and foregoing SUBPOENA TO

GOOGLE INC FOR THE PRODUCTION OF EVIDENCE AT A DEPOSITION upon all

counsel of record by depositing a copy in the United States Mail, with sufficient first-class postage

affixed thereon, addressed as follows:

Bryan K. Webb
Senior Assistance Attorney General

40 Capitol Square, S.W.
Atlanta, Georgia 30334

This ^u day of March, 2013.

JOYCE THRASHER KAISER & LISS, LLC
Five Concourse Parkway
Suite 2600

Atlanta, Georgia 30328
Phone: (404) 760-6000
Facsimile: (404) 760-0225

D. Barton Black, Esq.
Georgia Bar No. 119977



IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF FULTON COUNTY
STATE OF GEORGIA

STACEY KALBERMAN,

Plaintiff,

v.

GEORGIA GOVERNMENT
TRANSPARENCY AND CAMPAIGN
FINANCE COMMISSION, flk/a GEORGIA
STATE ETHICS COMMISSION, HOLLY
LABERGE, inher Official capacity as Executive
Secretary ofthe GeorgiaGovernment
Transparency andCampaign Finance
Commission, and PATRICK MILLSAPS, in
his Individual capacity,

Defendants.

NOTICE OF 30(b)(6) DEPOSITION OF GOOGLE INC.

To: Google Inc.
c/o Corporation Service Company
40 Technology ParkwaySouth,Suite300
Atlanta, Georgia 30092

Youare hereby notified that on April 12,2013at 10:00 a.m. or from time to time thereafter

as the deposition may be continued, at the office of Kimberly A. Worth, Esq., Joyce Thrasher

Kaiser & Liss LLC, 5 Concourse Parkway, Suite 2600, Atlanta, Georgia 30328, Plaintiff will

proceed to take the deposition of the designated corporate representative(s) of Google Inc. in the

above-captioned civil action, upon oral examination, pursuant to O.C.G.A. §9-11-30(b)(6) of the

Georgia Civil Practice Act. The deponent shall testify regarding the topics designated and

documents to be produced as set forth in Exhibit "A" attached hereto. A Subpoena commanding

your appearance and the production of records is served contemporaneously herewith. In lieu of

(002486OSJ )

CIVIL ACTION

FILE NO. 2012CV216247



appearing for the deposition and production ofrecords directed by the Subpoena, you may serve

copies ofthe requested records upon the undersigned counsel prior to the scheduled date.

The oral examination(s) will continue from day to day until completion and will be taken

before a certified court reporter or before some other officer duly authorized by law to take

depositions.

Five Concourse Parkway
Suite 2600

Atlanta, Georgia 30328
Telephone: (404) 760-6000
Facsimile: (404) 760-0225

lis Cs

*J

Respectfully submitted this ^° day of March, 2013.

JOYCE THRASHER KAISER & LISS, LLC

j>
Kimberly Worth, Esq.
Georgia Bar No. 500790
D. Barton Black, Esq.
Georgia Bar No. 119977



Exhibit "A*

Your designee should be a person knowledgeable about and be prepared to testify as to the

following topics:

1. Emails, messages, and attachments that were delivered to or sent from the email address

"holly.laberge@gmail.com" from July 1,2011 through the date of response to this Subpoena,

including without limitation any emails, messages, or attachments that were deleted

2. Emails, messages, and attachments that were delivered to or sent from the email address

"lmdentler@gmail.com" from July 1, 2011 through the date of response to this Subpoena,

including without limitation any emails, messages, orattachments thatwere deleted

In addition, your representative is hereby required to bring to said deposition the following

documents and things:

1. All emails, messages, and attachments that were delivered to or sent from the email address

"holly.laberge@gmail.com" from July 1,2011 through the date of response to this Subpoena,

including without limitationany emails, messages, or attachments that were deleted

2. All emails, messages, and attachments that were delivered to or sent from the email address

"lmdentler@gmail.com" from July 1, 2011 through the date of response to this Subpoena,

including without limitation any emails, messages, or attachments that were deleted



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

Ihereby certify that I have this day served the within and foregoing NOTICE OF30(b)(6)

DEPOSITION OF GOOGLE INC, via First Class Mail, to Defendant's Counsel as follows:

Bryan K. Webb
Senior Assistance Attorney General

40 Capitol Square, S.W.
Atlanta, Georgia 30334

This ^ day of March, 2013.

JOYCE THRASHER KAISER & LISS, LLC
Five Concourse Parkway
Suite 2600

Atlanta, Georgia 30328
Telephone: (404) 760-6000
Facsimile: (404) 760-0225

(002486053 |

D. Barton Black, Esq.
Georgia Bar No. 119977



From: (404)760-0217 Origin ID: TMAA
MichelleS. Budd
Joyce Thrasher Kaiser &Liss, LLC
5 CONCOURSE PKWY NESTE 2600

ATLANTA, GA30328

FecGsx,

J13111302120326

SHIP TO: (404) 760-0221 BILL SENDER
co Corporation Service Company
Google Inc.
40 Technology Parkway South
Ste. 300
atlanta, GA 30092

Ship Date: 22MAR13
ActWgt0.5LB
CAD: 1494770/1NET3370
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After printing this label:
1. Use the 'Print' button on this page to print your label to your laser or Inkjet printer.
2. Fold the printed page along the horizontal line.
3. Place label in shipping pouch and affix it to your shipment so that the barcode portion of the label can be read and scanned.

Warning: Use only the printed original label for shipping. Using a photocopy of this label for shipping purposes is fraudulent and could
result in additionalbilling charges, along with the cancellation of your FedEx account number.
Use of this system constitutes your agreement to the service conditions in the current FedEx Service Guide, available on
fedex.com.FedEx will not be responsible for any claim inexcess of $100 per package,whether the result of loss, damage, delay, non-
delivery.misdelivery.or misinformation, unless you declare a highervalue, pay an additionalcharge, document your actual loss and file a
timely claim.Limitations found in the current FedEx Service Guideapply. Your right to recover from FedEx for any loss, including intrinsic
value of the package, loss of sales, income interest, profit, attorney's fees, costs, and other forms of damage whether direct,
incidental.consequential, or special is limitedto the greaterof $100 or the authorizeddeclared value. Recovery cannot exceed actual
documented loss.Maximum for items of extraordinary value is $1,000, e.g. jewelry, precious metals, negotiable instruments and other
items listed in our ServiceGuide. Written claims must be filed within strict time limits, see current FedEx Service Guide.

https://www.fedex.eom/shipping/html/en//PrintIFrame.html 3/22/201:
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IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF FULTON COUNTY

STATE OF GEORGIA

STACEY KALBERMAN, *
*

*Plaintiff,
*

vs. * Civil Action No.:
* 2012CV216247

GEORGIA GOVERNMENT *

TRANSPARENCY AND *

CAMPAIGN FINANCE *

COMMISSION, tfk/a GEORGIA *
STATE ETHICS COMMISSION, *
HOLLY LABERGE, in her Official *
capacity as Executive *
Secretary ofthe Georgia *
Transparency and Campaign *
Finance Commission, and *
PATRICK MILLSAPS, in his *
Individual capacity, *

*

Defendants *

OBJECTION TO SUBPOENA TO GOOGLE INC. FOR THE PRODUCTION OF
EVIDENCE AT A DEPOSITION. MOTION TO QUASH SUBPOENA, AND

MOTION FOR PROTECTIVE ORDER FROM 30(b)(6) DEPOSITION

COME NOW Holly LaBerge in her personal and official capacity and Lisa

M. Dentler, and pursuant to O.C.G.A. §§ 9-1 l-26(c), 9-11-30,9-11-34, and9-11-

45, file this objection to Plaintiffs subpoena to Google Inc. seeking the production

ofpersonal e-mails and moves to quash the subpoena with an order from this Court

disallowing the production ofthe subpoenaed information from Google Inc. In

addition, Plaintiff has noticed a 30(b)(6) deposition ofGoogle, Inc. which in



pertinent part states that "In Lieuofappearing for thedeposition and production of

records directed by the Subpoena, you may servecopiesof the requested records

upon theundersigned counsel prior to the scheduled date." Ms. LaBerge and Ms.

Dentler object to the production ofdocuments and information sought by the

subpoena, move thisCourt to quash the subpoena to Google, and move for a

protective order asserting thatthe requested discovery should not be permitted. In

support thereof, Ms. LaBerge and Ms. Dentler show the following:

I. INTRODUCTION

In this lawsuit, the Plaintiff claims a violation ofthe Georgia Whistleblower

Act, O.C.G.A. § 45-1-4, alleging that she suffered an adverse employment action

asdefined by the statute afterhavingengaged in statutorily protected activity. In

addition, she is suing Defendant Millsaps in his individual capacitybased on

allegations ofanintentional infliction ofemotional distress. The parties are

currently engaged in discovery and Plaintiffhasnow issued a subpoena to Google

Inc., a third partyprivate corporation, seekingthe private and personal e-mailsof

Ms. LaBerge andtwo additional nonparties to this action. Specifically,Plaintiff

seeks to compel the production ofthe following from Google, Inc.:

1. [A]ll emails, messages, and attachments that were delivered
to or sent from the email address hollv.laberge@gmail.com
from July 1,2011 through the date ofresponse to this
Subpoena, including without limitation any emails,
messages, or attachments that were deleted; and



2. [A]ll emails, messages,and attachments that were delivered
to or sent from the email address lmdentler@gmail.com

from July 1,2011 through the dateofresponse to this
Subpoena, including without limitation any emails,
messages, or attachments that were deleted.

II. OBJECTIONS

Holly LaBerge is named as a party in this lawsuit only in her official

capacity asthe Executive Secretary ofthe Georgia Government Transparency and

Campaign Finance Commission. She is notsued in her individual orpersonal

capacity. Lisa M. Dentler is employedby the Defendant Georgia Government

Transparency and Campaign Finance Commission and is notnamed as a party to

this case. There is no allegation ofany wrongdoing by either Ms. LaBerge and/or

Ms. Dentler in Plaintiffs Amended Complaint. Neither Ms. LaBerge nor Ms.

Dentler was a decision-maker in the case.

Ms. LaBerge andMs. Dentler each objectto the subpoena on the following

grounds:

1. The subpoenais overbroad in that it seeks information
which may contain personal and private communications
between Ms. LaBerge and Ms. Dentlerand other individuals
who are also not parties to this lawsuit. Communications
between Ms. LaBerge or Ms. Dentlerwith others, including
family, friends, and other individuals, have nothing to do
with their employment with Defendant Georgia Government
Transparency and Campaign Finance Commission and
which Plaintiffhas no right to know or discover and goes
well beyond the scope ofany reasonable discovery or
requests by the Plaintiff.



2. The production of personal and unrelated information,
which is wholly unrelated to this litigation, subjects Ms.
LaBerge and Ms. Dentler to anunwarranted and intrusive
invasion oftheir personal privacy with no substantive basis
to justify thataction in this litigation. It sought solely with
the intent to embarrass, harass, and/or intimidate Ms.
LaBerge and Ms. Dentler.

3. The subpoena is unduly burdensome in that neither Ms.
LaBerge in her individual capacity or Ms. Dentler is a party
to the case, the documents requested are unrelated to the
parties to Plaintiffs claims, and are not sufficiently or
narrowlyconfined to seek discoverable information;

4. The subpoena seeks information that is neitherrelevant to
the subjectmatterofthe litigation between the parties nor
calculated to lead to discovery ofadmissible evidence
related to the claims ofPlaintiff;

5. The subpoena is oppressive in that some ofthe information
sought may contain personal information which could also
be otherwise privileged or protected under state or federal
law;

6. The subpoena seeks information that is neitherrelevantor
material to the Plaintiffs cause ofaction against Defendants
and seeks information that post-dates any ofthe alleged
unlawful actions ofDefendants as contained in Plaintiffs

Amended Complaint; and

7. The subpoena seeks to require the recipient, a non-party
corporation, to invade the personal privacy ofMs. LaBerge
and Ms. Dentler, to seize their personal communications and
to provide said materials to the Plaintiffwithout regard to
the relevancy ofany ofthose materials in relation to this
action.



It has been long held that Georgiacitizens have a right to privacy guaranteed

by the Georgia constitutional provision which declares that no person shall be

deprived oflibertyexcept by due process of law. Pavesich v. New England Life

Ins, Co., 122 Ga. 190,197 (1905). In Georgia, privacy is considered a

fundamental constitutional right and is "recognized as having a value so essential

to individual liberty in our society that [its] infringement merits careful scrutiny by

the courts. Ambles v. State, 259 Ga. 406,408 (1989). Plaintiffhas set forth no

legitimate basis uponwhich to base aninfringement ofthe privacy rights ofMs.

LaBerge andMs. Dentler in their private matters. Plaintiffs subpoena ofthe

private emails ofthese third-parties servesno purpose in the conduct ofthis

litigationand should be prohibited.

in. CONCLUSION

WHEREFORE, Holly LaBerge and Lisa M. Dentler make the forgoing

objections to Plaintiffs subpoena served on Google, Inc. and requests that their

motion to quash the subpoena be grantedwith all costs and attorneys fees related to

their defense ofthe subpoena be cast againstPlaintiff.

Respectfully submitted,

SAMUEL S. OLENS 551540

Attorney General



DENNIS R. DUNN

Deputy Attorney General

ANNETTE M. COWART 191199
Senior Assistant Attorney General

234098

BRYAN K. WEBB 743580

Senior Assistant Attorney General

PLEASE SERVE:

BRYAN K. WEBB

Senior Assistant Attorney General
40 Capitol Square, S.W.
Atlanta, Georgia 30334-1300
Tele: (404) 656-5331
Fax: (404)657-9932
Email: bwebb@law.ga.gov



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that on April 3,2013 I served the foregoingJDBJECTION

TO SUBPOENATO GOOGLEINC. FORTHE PRODUCTIONOF EVIDENCE

AT A DEPOSITION AND MOTIONTO QUASH upon opposing counsel in this

case by sending acopy via the United States Mail with adequate postage affixed

and addressed as follows:

Kimberly Worth
Barton Black

JOYCE THRASHER KAISER & LISS, LLC
Five Concourse Parkway
Suite 2600

Atlanta, Georgia 30328

And to the following non-party via email andovernightcourier:

Google Inc.
c/o Corporation Service Company
40 Technology Parkway South, Suite 300
Norcross, Georgia 30092-2924
google-legal-support@google.com

This 3rd day ofApril, 2013.

Bryan K. Webb
Senior Assistant Attorney General
Counsel for Holly LaBerge and
Lisa M. Dentler

State Bar No.: 743580



EXHIBIT K



LaBerge, Holly

From: Thrasher, Liss, &Smith LLC[eelwood@tlslaw.com]
Sent: Tuesday, July 23,2013 3:20 PM
To: LaBerge, Holly
Subject: PUBLIC RECORDS REQUEST VIA CFC WEBSITE

From: Thrasher, Liss, & Smith LLC <eelwood(9tlslaw. com>

Name:Thrasher, Liss, & Smith LLC

Contact Number: 404-760-4018

Details:

1.) Any and all e-mails sent to or received by hollv.labereeOemail. com.
lmdentlertSgmail.com. gandolfmurravOvahoo. com. and/or any other personal/private e-mail
address (i.e. any email address that is not an official State of Georgia email address)
maintained by a Commission employee, since Dune 2012, containing communications, information,
documents, discovery requests, files, or data related to the case of Stacey Kalberman v.
Georgia Government Transparency and Campaign Finance Commission and Holly LaBerge (Fulton
County Superior Court - Civil Action File No. 2012CV216247) (the "Kalberman Case") that were
prepared, maintained or received in the performance of a service or function for or on behalf
of the Commission.

2.) Any and all e-mails sent to or received by hollv.labereefilgmail.com.
lmdentleriagmail.com. eandolfmurravfilvahoo. com. and/or any other personal/private e-mail
address (i.e. any email address that is not an official State of Georgia email address)
maintained by a Commission employee, since Dune 2012, containing communications, information,
documents, files, or data related to the case of Sherry Ellen Streicker v. Georgia Government
Transparency and Campaign Finance Commission (Fulton County Superior Court - Civil Action
File No. 2012CV216254) (the "Streicker Case") that were prepared, maintained or received in
the performance of a service or function for or on behalf of the Commission.

3.) Any and all e-mails sent to or received by hollv.labereeOgmail.com.
lmdentlerOemail.com, gandolfmurravOvahoo. com, and/or any other personal/private e-mail
address (i.e. any email address that is not an official State of Georgia email address)
maintained by a Commission employee, since September 2011, containing communications,
information, documents, discovery requests, files, or data related to Complaints filed with
the Georgia State Ethics Commission and the Georgia Government Transparency and Campaign
Finance Commission concerning Nathan Deal and the subsequent investigation/consent
orders/fines (In the Matter of Nathan Deal, Before the Georgia Government Transparency and
Campaign Finance Commission, State of Georgia, Case Nos. 2010-0033(a), 2010-0033(b), 2010-
0033(c), 2010-0039, 2010-0063, 2011-0008, 2011-0009) (the "Deal Matters") that were prepared,
maintained or received in the performance of a service or function for or on behalf of the
Commission.



4.) Any and all documents and files related to the Kalberman Case (as defined above) that
were scanned into digital form by Commission employees (e.g. Dohn Hair) using the
Commission's computers/scanners, since Dune 2012, and which were saved and/or stored on the
Commission's computers/servers (e.g. "D" Drive) for distribution using USB thumb drives
and/or personal/private e-mail accounts.

5.) Any and all documents and files related to the Streicker Case (as defined above) that
were scanned into digital form by Commission employees (e.g. Dohn Hair) using the
Commission's computers/scanners, since Dune 2012, and which were saved and/or stored on the
Commission's computers/servers (e.g. "D" Drive) for distribution using USB thumb drives
and/or personal/private e-mail accounts.

6.) Any and all documents and files related to the Deal Matters (as defined above) that
were scanned into digital form by Commission employees (e.g. Dohn Hair) using the
Commission's computers/scanners and which were saved and/or stored on the Commission's
computers/servers (e.g. "D" Drive) for distribution using USB thumb drives and/or
personal/private e-mail accounts.



EXHIBIT L



Kevin D. Abcmcthy ^cW^^ Kcnl B' A,exandcr
Chair ^^^S^^vX Member
Hillary S. Stringfcllow |L/^^^L :~j| Heath Garrett
Vice Chair \vlt W^ftt Member
Holly LaBerge ^Wll£^^ Dennis T. Cathey
Executive Secretary ^stsws---^ Member

Georgia Government Transparency and Campaign Finance Commission
200 Piedmont Avenue | Suite 1402 - West Tower | Atlanta, Georgia 30334

(404) 463-1980 | Facsimile (404) 463-1988
www.ethics.ga.gov

July 26, 2013

Thrasher Liss & Smith

Five Concourse Pkwy, Suite 2600
Atlanta, GA 30328

RE: OPEN RECORDS REQUEST

To whom it may concern:

Each of the items requested in the enclosed email dated July 23, 2013, has already been submitted to you in the
context of the discovery of thecases. We have given you all the information that we are in possession of
regarding the Stacey Kalberman, Sheri Streicker, and Nathan Deal cases. If you would like another copy of this
information please letme know. There will bea cost for another copy of this information. Ifyou have any
furtherquestions, please contact me.

Regards,

Holly LaBerge
Executive Secretary

HL:jm

Enc: Email



LaBerge, Holly

From: Thrasher, Liss, & Smith LLC [eefwood@tlslaw.com]
Sent: Tuesday, July 23,2013 3:20 PM
To: LaBerge, Holly
Subject: PUBLIC RECORDS REQUEST VIA CFC WEBSITE

From: Thrasher, Liss, & Smith LLC <eelwood(Stlslaw.com>

Name:Thrasher, Liss, & Smith LLC

Contact Number: 404-760-4018

Details:

1.) Any and all e-mails sent to or received by hollv. labereefitemail. com.
lmdentlertBemail.com. gandolfmurravOvahoo. com. and/or any other personal/private e-mail
address (i.e. any email address that is not an official State of Georgia email address)
maintained by a Commission employee, since June 2012, containing communications, information,
documents, discovery requests, files, or data related to the case of Stacey Kalberman v.
Georgia Government Transparency and Campaign Finance Commission and Holly LaBerge (Fulton
County Superior Court - Civil Action File No. 2012CV216247) (the "Kalberman Case") that were
prepared, maintained or received in the performance of a service or function for or on behalf
of the Commission.

2.) Any and all e-mails sent to or received by hollv.labereefitemail.com.
lmdentlertoail.com. eandolfmurrav@vahoo. com. and/or any other personal/private e-mail
address (i.e. any email address that is not an official State of Georgia email address)
maintained by a Commission employee, since June 2012, containing communications, information,
documents, files, or data related to the case of Sherry Ellen Streicker v. Georgia Government
Transparency and Campaign Finance Commission (Fulton County Superior Court - Civil Action
File No. 2012CV216254) (the "Streicker Case") that were prepared, maintained or received in
the performance of a service or function for or on behalf of the Commission.

3.) Any and all e-mails sent to or received by hollv.labereefitemail.com.
Imdentlerfigmail. com. gandolfmurravOvahoo. com, and/or any other personal/private e-mail
address (i.e. any email address that is not an official State of Georgia email address)
maintained by a Commission employee, since September 2011, containing communications,
information, documents, discovery requests, files, or data related to Complaints filed with
the Georgia State Ethics Commission and the Georgia Government Transparency and Campaign
Finance Commission concerning Nathan Deal and the subsequent investigation/consent
orders/fines (In the Matter of Nathan Deal, Before the Georgia Government Transparency and
Campaign Finance Commission, State of Georgia, Case Nos. 2010-0033(a), 2010-0033(b), 2010-
0033(c), 2010-0039, 2010-0063, 2011-0008, 2011-0009) (the "Deal Matters") that were prepared,
maintained or received in the performance of a service or function for or on behalf of the
Commission.



4.) Any and all documents and files related to the Kalberman Case (as defined above) that
were scanned into digital form by Commission employees (e.g. Dohn Hair) using the
Commission's computers/scanners, since Dune 2012, and which were saved and/or stored on the
Commission's computers/servers (e.g. "D" Drive) for distribution using USB thumb drives
and/or personal/private e-mail accounts.

5.) Any and all documents and files related to the Streicker Case (as defined above) that
were scanned into digital form by Commission employees (e.g. Dohn Hair) using the
Commission's computers/scanners, since Dune 2012, and which were saved and/or stored on the
Commission's computers/servers (e.g. "D" Drive) for distribution using USB thumb drives
and/or personal/private e-mail accounts.

6.) Any and all documents and files related to the Deal Matters (as defined above) that
were scanned into digital form by Commission employees (e.g. Dohn Hair) using the
Commission's computers/scanners and which were saved and/or stored on the Commission's
computers/servers (e.g. "D" Drive) for distribution using USB thumb drives and/or
personal/private e-mail accounts.



EXHIBIT M



IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF FULTON COUNTY (>,, .,. j
STATE OF GEORGIA i ; ' L 1/ t'0ij •

jL._.. !K
STACEY KALBERMAN, err: i . -<L^

1 „ -•..;• • ' J

Plaintiff,

vs. Civil Action No. 2012CV216247

GEORGIA GOVERNMENT TRANSPARENCY Honorable Ural D. Glanville

AND CAMPAIGN FIANCE COMMISSION, et

al.,

Defendants.

CASE MANAGEMENT ORDER

The following deadlines, policies, and procedures will govern
the above-captioned civil case. In this regard, the Court must be
immediately notified of any problem or dispute that could delay the
deadlines contained herein. Notably, modification of any deadline
or hearing date contained herein requires approval of the Court—even
if all parties consent to the change. To the extent the parties
seek a modification of the deadlines contained therein, the parties
are DIRECTED to contact the Court and schedule a status conference

within ten (10) days of the entry of this Order.

SERVICE AND FILING OF PLEADINGS AND OTHER PAPERS

The parties shall submit copies of all motions, responses, and
filings in the above-captioned case to the Chambers of the Judge
assigned to this matter. Each paper served, other than by the
Sheriff, must include a certificate of the person or firm making
service, his/her/its relationship to the parties, action, or
proceedings, as well as the date, method, and address of service.
The original of a certificate must also be signed by the party or
his/her/its attorney at whose instance service was made.

DISCOVERY

Discovery shall close on August 30, 2013. All discovery
motions must be filed prior to the expiration of the discovery
period, which will not be extended, except for good-cause shown. In
the event an extension of time is requested, the moving party shall
submit a proposed, revised Case Management Order, which should
include the requested time extension. Finally, the Court reminds
the parties that, under the Civil Practice Act, they have a duty to

fully cooperate in discovery and that the failure to fulfill this
obligation may result in sanctions.



V * ¦ .



MOTIONS

Except as otherwise provided in the Civil Practice Act or
ordered by the Court, all motions must be filed and served upon the
opposing party by September 30, 2013. Prior to filing a discovery
motion, the parties are ORDERED to contact the Court to schedule a
discovery conference. All motions must be filed in accordance with
the Civil Practice Act and the Uniform Superior Court Rules, and
absent prior written permission of the Court, no party may file any
motion, brief, or response in excess of twenty-five (25) pages in
length. Every motion must be accompanied by a proposed order.
Unless the Court directs otherwise, all orders, including findings
of fact and conclusions of law orally announced in court must be
prepared in writing by the attorney for the prevailing party and
thereafter submitted to the Court within two (2) days. Failure to
respond to any motion within the time afforded by the Uniform
Superior Court Rules will indicate that there is no opposition to
the motion. Absent prior permission of the Court, no party may file
any reply brief, which are generally disfavored.

LEAVES OF ABSENCE

An application by an attorney for a leave of absence must be
written, filed with the Clerk of the Court, and otherwise in
compliance with the Uniform Superior Court Rules. Leaves of absence
must be filed, individually, in all cases before the Court.
Although leaves of absence filed in compliance with the Uniform
Superior Court Rules may be approved, the attorney must arrange, in
the event the above-captioned case is scheduled for a hearing or
trial, for other counsel to be present.

PRE-TRIAL ORDERS

A proposed, fully consolidated pre-trial order must be
submitted to the Judge's Chambers on February 7, 2014. Do not
present pre-trial orders to the Clerk for filing unless they have
been signed by the Court. Plaintiff(s)/Petitioner (s) shall be
responsible for consolidating the pre-trial order. All other
parties shall provide their portions of the consolidated pre-trial
order to the Plaintiff (s)/Petitioner (s) no later than two (2)
business days prior to the due date. No party may submit their own
individual portions of the pre-trial order to the Court without
written certification detailing their good-faith efforts to present
the Court with a full consolidated order. The proposed pre-trial
order need not contain a listing of all evidence; however the
parties will be expected to quickly provide this listing within ten
(10) days of the Court's ruling on any dispositive motions.

TRIAL

Parties shall report for calendar call on February 14, 2014, at
10:00AM. At that time, the Court will advise parties of their exact
trial schedule (for the Court's civil calendar weeks beginning



February 17, 2014) . Continuances will be granted only on the basis
of exceptional circumstances. Motions for continuance on account of
the absence of any witness must show steps which have been taken to
secure the witness, the nature of the testimony, and the
availability of the witness.

Attorneys shall submit general voir dire questions, jury
charges, and proposed verdict form to Chambers no later than the day
of calendar call. If admissibility of evidence issues arise,
counsel must call the Court to schedule an admission hearing.

1. Motions in limine must be made in writing and filed no later
than February 7, 2014.

2. All exhibits, to include demonstrative evidence, must be marked
and exchanged prior to calendar call.

3. In the event that over 100 exhibits are anticipated, parties
must schedule a pre-admission hearing with the Court.

4. An original and one copy of each party's requests to charge
must be submitted to the Court's Staff Attorney no later than the
morning on which the trial begins. Special requests to charge (non-
pattern) are limited to fifteen (15) per party. When requesting
pattern jury charges, the requesting party should list the title and
page numbers of the charges on a sheet of paper. The text of the
requested pattern charges need not be printed.

COURTROOM CONDUCT

These instructions are designed to promote uniformity and
proper decorum in the courtroom practice. Members of the Bar should
adhere to these instructions to the maximum practical extent.

1. Examination of Witnesses and Argument

Counsel should conduct examination of witnesses from the

lectern or the counsel table. Do not approach a witness
without receiving permission of the Court. If permission is
granted for the purpose of working with an exhibit, resume
examination from the table or lectern when finished with the

exhibit. Always rise when addressing the Court or Jury, and
when making objections. During opening statements and
summation, Counsel should stand at the lectern or table, unless
the Court grants permission to approach another area for a
proper purpose. Confine opening statements to what you expect
the evidence to show.

2. Objections to Questions or Testimony

When objecting, state only that you are objecting and
specify the ground(s) for the objection. Do not utilize
objections for the purpose of making a speech, recapitulating



testimony, or attempting to guide the witness. Argument upon
the objection will not be heard until permission is given or
argument is requested by the Court.

3. Decorum

Colloquy or argument between attorneys is not permitted.
All remarks must be addressed to the Court. In a jury case, if
there is an offer of stipulation, first confer with opposing
counsel. During trial, counsel shall not exhibit familiarity
with witnesses, jurors, opposing counsel, or the Court. The
use of first names is to be avoided, and no juror should be
addressed individually or by name. During argument of opposing
counsel, remain seated at the counsel table and be respectful.

4. Witnesses

Witnesses must be treated with fairness and consideration;

they shall not be shouted at, ridiculed, or otherwise abused.
No person may, by facial expression or other conduct, exhibit
any opinion concerning any testimony which is being given by a
witness. Counsel should admonish their clients and witnesses

about this common occurrence.

5. Court Hours and Promptness

The Court makes every effort to commence proceedings at
the time set, and thus, promptness is expected from counsel and
witnesses. If a witness is scheduled to take the stand, have
the witness ready to proceed at the commencement of the
proceeding. Arrange the schedule of the case to avoid
unnecessary delay. If you have reason to anticipate any
scheduling difficulties, or that any question of law or
evidence will provoke an argument, provide the Court with
advance notice.

Finally, the Court reminds the parties that failure to strictly
adhere to the Local Procedures, the Uniform Superior Court Rules,
the Civil Practice Act, or the Court's orders in the above-captioned
case may result in sanc^tons.

SO ORDERED this _\ day of July, 20l3k,/atVAfclanta, Georgia.

Ural D. Glatfville, Judge
Fulton County Superior Court
Atlanta Judicial District

Copies to:

Bryan K. Webb Kimberly Worth

40 Capitol Square, SW Five Concourse Parkway, Suite 2600

Atlanta, Georgia 30334 Atlanta, Georgia 30328
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IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF FULTON COUNTY

STATE OF GEORGIA

STACEY KALBERMAN, *
*

Plaintiff, *

vs. * Civil Action No.:

* 2012CV216247

GEORGIA GOVERNMENT *
TRANSPARENCY AND *
CAMPAIGN FINANCE *

COMMISSION, f/k/a GEORGIA *
STATE ETHICS COMMISSION, *
HOLLY LABERGE, in her Official *
capacity as Executive *
Secretary ofthe Georgia *
Transparency and Campaign *
Finance Commission, *

Defendants. *

DEFENDANTS> MOTION IN LIMINE

COME NOW the Georgia Government Transparency and Campaign

Finance Commission and Holly LaBerge, in her official capacity as the Executive

Secretaryofthe Georgia Transparency and Campaign Finance Commission, by

and through its counsel ofrecord, the Attorney General ofthe State ofGeorgia,

and files this Motion in Limine, for an order prohibiting Plaintiff from introducing

or commenting upon certain irrelevant and prejudicial evidence.



I. INTRODUCTION

PlaintiffStacey Kalberman (hereinafter "Plaintiff') filed this lawsuit against

Defendant underO.C.G.A. § 45-1-4, "The Georgia Whistleblower Act." The

whistleblower statute under which Plaintiffbrings her claims applies only to very

specific and limited circumstances. "Apublic employer may receive and

investigate complaints or information from any public employee concerning the

possible existence of any activity constituting fraud, waste, and abuse in or relating

to any state programs and operations under the jurisdiction of suchpublic

employer." O.C.G.A. § 45-l-4(b). "No public employer shall retaliate against a

public employee for disclosing a violation ofornoncompliance with a law, rule, or

regulation to either a supervisor ora government agency, unless thedisclosure was

made with the knowledge that thedisclosure was false or with reckless disregard

for its truth or falsity." O.C.G.A. § 45-l-4(d)(2).

"To establish a prima facie caseofretaliation... the employee must present

evidence that (1) the employer falls under the statute's definition of 'public

employer,' (2) the employee disclosed 'a violation ofor noncompliance with a law,

rule, orregulation to eithera supervisor orgovernment agency;' (3) the employee

was then discharged, suspended, demoted, or suffered some other adverse

employment decision by the public employer; and (4) there is some causal relation

between [the disclosure ofthe violation/non-compliance with a law, rule, or



regulationto a supervisor] and [the adverse employment action]." Forresterv. Ga,

Dep'tofHuman Servs., 308 Ga. App. 716,722 (Ga. App. 2011). Since the

Georgia Court ofAppeals has adopted the burden-shifting frameworkutilized by

federal courts in Title VII retaliation cases, we may seek guidance from federal

case law on what constitutes a causal connection between protected activity and an

adverse employment action. As such, Plaintiff must prove that "but-for" her

protected activity, Defendantwould not havetaken its adverse employment actions

against her. University ofTexas Southwestern MedicalCenter v. Nassar, 133 S.

Ct 2517 (2013). Therefore, at issue here is whether, at the time Defendant

Commissioners decided to take any employment action against Plaintiff in May-

Juneof2011, they intended to do so because ofher protected activity.

H. ARGUMENT AND CITATION OF AUTHORITY

A motion in limine is a motion under which a party seeks to exclude certain

evidence from admission at the time oftrial. Defendant moves this Court for an

Order prohibiting, excluding, limiting andsuppressing any and all evidence,

proffers, tender, comments, statements, testimony, colloquy, or any otherutterance

in the presenceofthe jury on the following:

1. Any and all testimony from John Hair concerning the alleged actions of
Holly LaBerge, his employment, and his termination from employment;

2. Any and all testimony from John Hairconcerning the resolution of the
complaints against the NathanDeal campaign;



3. Any andall testimony from Elizabeth Murray Obertein concerning the
resolutionofthe complaints against the NathanDealCampaign;

4. Any andall testimony from Elisabeth Murray Obertein concerning the
alleged actions ofHolly LaBerge, heremployment, andher termination
from employment;

5. Any andall testimony from Gwendolyn Jones concerning the alleged
actions ofHolly LaBerge, heremployment, andher termination;

6. Any and all testimony from anyofthe witnesses concerning the alleged
actions ofHolly LaBergeduring her employment as Executive Secretary
ofthe Commission;

7. Any and all testimony from any ofthe witnesses concerning the
resolution ofthe complaints againstthe Nathan Deal campaign.

1. The Employment Experiences of John Hair, Elisabeth Murray

Obertein, and Gwendolyn Jones.

At trial, Defendant anticipates that Plaintiffwill attempt to introduce

evidence related to the employment experiences ofJohn Hair, Elisabeth Murray

Obertein, and Gwendolyn Jones andallegedretaliation against them by the current

Executive Secretary Holly LaBerge. In sum, Mr. Hair and Ms. Murray Obertein

have alleged in deposition testimony thatafterengaging in protected activity, Ms.

LaBerge retaliated against them, ultimately leading to their termination from

employment withDefendant. Plaintiffmayattempt to call Gwendolyn Jones to

give substantially similar testimony regarding her employment and Ms. LaBerge.

These allegations address actions which are separate and distinct from the

actions at issue in the instant case and would be inadmissible because (1) the



evidence is not relevant to or probative ofany disputed issue in this case, and thus,

is not permittedunderO.C.G.A. § 24-2-402; and (2) the evidence is excludable

because the probative value is substantially outweighed by the danger ofunfair

prejudice, confusion ofthe issues, misleading the jury andwaste oftime under

O.C.G.A. § 24-2-403.

Plaintiff's case concerns actions ofthe members of the Defendant

Commissioners during a relevant time span from approximately January 2011

throughher separation from employment in September 2011. The record shows

that whatever actions effecting the employment ofPlaintiffwere decided upon and

taken by five individuals; (1) Joshua Belinfante; (2) PatrickMillsaps; (3) Hillary

Stringfellow; (4) Kevin Abernethy; and (5) Kent Alexander. These five

individuals were the members ofthe Commission at the time relevant to Plaintiffs

claim ofretaliation and were the only individuals who were authorized to make

decisions concerning her employment.

Any evidence concerning the actions ofHolly LaBerge, who became the

Defendant's Executive Secretary in September 2011, after Plaintiff resigned from

heremployment, is not probative ofthe intentofthe decision-makers. Certainly,

employment actions taken by Ms. LaBerge in 2013 and 2014, is not probative of

any disputed issue in this case. Ms. LaBerge was not a decision-maker in any of



the claimsmade by Plaintiff. Simply put, Ms. LaBerge's intent and character are

not at issue in this case.

2. Evidence of Alleged Bad Acts in the Resolution of the Deal Campaign

Ethics Complaints.

Defendant also anticipates that Plaintiff will attempt to introduce evidence

concerning the ultimate resolution ofthe complaints to the Defendant Commission

against the campaign ofNathan Deal while he was a gubernatorial candidate.

Specifically, Defendant anticipates that Plaintiffwill seek to introduce evidence:

1. The Commission never issued subpoenas to the Deal Campaign and
other third parties;

2. That Elisabeth Murray Obertein proposed consent orders in which the
Deal Campaignwould be required to pay over $70,000.00 in civil
penalties;

3. That in Elisabeth Murray Obertein's opinion, she believed that the Deal
Campaign should have been required to pay very stiff penalties for the
alleged campaign finance violations;

4. That the Governor's office allegedly pressuredLaBerge to agree for him
to pay $3,350.00 for technical defects as opposed to civil penalties, and
that LaBerge instructed ElisabethMurrayObertein to "make the number
work;"

5. That Elisabeth Murray Obertein believed that she was merely a "pawn"
andthat regardless ofher recommendation, the low administrative fine
was predetermined;

6. That Elisabeth Murray Obertein told John Hairthat she believed that Mr.
Deal "got away with murder;"

7. That according to Elisabeth Murray Obertein and John Hair, LaBerge
often bragged about herrelationship with the Governor and his office;



8. That LaBerge claimed to have"an unusually close" relationship withthe
Governor, describing him as her "real boss;"

9. That while the investigation into the Deal Campaign finance act
complaints were beinginvestigated LaBerge frequently spoke privately
about the investigation with individuals in the Governor's office;

lO.ThatLaBerge claimedto be handpicked by the Governor to be the
Executive Secretary and that she knew she had the job prior to the
interview process;

1l.That after the conclusion ofthe Deal Investigation, LaBerge claimed that
she made Mr. Deal's legal problems "go away" and, as a result, the
Governor's office "owed [her]."

Defendant shows that the items set forth above, and any other evidence

related to the resolution ofthe Deal Campaign complaints by the Defendant should

not be admitted into evidence because (1) the evidence is not relevant to or

probative ofany disputedissue in this caseand, thus, is not permitted under

O.C.G.A. § 24-2-402; and (2) the evidence is excludable because the probative

value is substantially outweighed by the danger of unfair prejudice, confusion of

the issues, misleading the jury and waste oftime under O.C.G.A. § 24-2-403."

Plaintiff's employment is a separate and distinct issue from the ultimate

resolution ofcomplaints against the Deal Campaign. The record shows that the

resolution ofthe complaints occurred July 23,2012, a full year and one month

after Plaintiffresigned heremployment. In that span oftime, the record shows that

Joshua Belinfante and Patrick Millsaps had resigned their positions as



Commissioners. The two actions are not tied to each other. The resolution ofthe

complaints is too remote from the actions ofthe Commissioners complained ofby

Plaintiff and the decision-makers in July 2012 were different than the decision

makers who made decisions impacting Plaintiffs employment.

Neither LaBerge, the Governor's Office, nor any staffmember ofthe

Governor's Office is a defendant in this case. Any evidence concerning any

alleged"bad acts" ofthese individuals, a year afterPlaintiff resigned her

employment, is not probativeofany ofherallegations against this Defendant. The

only purpose for presentingthe evidence to the jury would be to inflame them

against "government" itselfand attempt to infer impropermotive upon this

Defendant through the alleged activity ofotherswho had nothing to do with

Plaintiff's employment. In essence what Plaintiffseeks is to establish a shadow

defendant who was not a part ofthe employment decision about which she claims.

There is no evidence in the record that any ofthe allegations concerning LaBerge,

the Governor's Office, or any staffmember ofthe Governor's Office about activity

occurring in July 2012 impacted the decision-making ofDefendant's

Commissioners in May-June 2011.

The opinion ofElisabeth Murray Obertein about what she believed any fine

should have been in the resolution ofthe complaintsagainst the Deal Campaign is

also not relevant or material to the issues concerning Plaintiff's employment. Ms.



Murray Obertein's statements concerning her opinion are simply her opinion and

nothing more. The opinion has nothing to do with the ultimate issue in the instant

case. Further, neither Ms. Murray Obertein nor LaBerge were the final decision

makers as to the resolution ofthe Deal Campaign complaints and their motivation

to act in any way is not at issue in this case.

Simply put, the inquiry for the jury in the instant case is to determine

whether those individuals who served as Commissioners in May and June 2011

took anadverse employment action against Plaintiffbecauseofher alleged

protected activity. The introduction ofevidence concerning matters occurringa

year later anddetermined by a different group ofCommissioners in July 2012 is

not material or relevant to this ultimate inquiry.

In addition to being irrelevant, submission ofthis evidence to the jury would

result in many ofthe negative factors identifiedin O.C.G.A. § 24-2-403. In order

to minimize the prejudicial effectoftheevidence, Defendant wouldbe required to

defend each andevery irrelevant decision made after Plaintiffs employmentended

concerning the Deal Campaign investigation, thereby diverting thejury's attention

from the limited issue at trial. This process would significantly lengthen the trial

by prompting, in essence, numerous mini-trials over whether the resolution ofthe

Deal Campaign investigation was proper when that is notthe issue to be

determined by thejury. Moreover, the danger of admitting evidence ofdecision-



making ofa different set ofCommissioners and the alleged bad acts ofnon-

defendants on a matter unrelated to Plaintiff's employment is particularly acute

because ofthe potential influence the allegations would have on ajury.

In Georgiaevidence is relevant if it tends "to make the existence ofa fact

that is ofconsequence to the determination ofthe action more probable or less

probable than it would be without the evidence." McEachern v. McEachern, 260

Ga. 321 (1990). Evidence may be excluded when in the discretion ofthe presiding

judge it is determined that the probative value is substantially outweighed by the

risk that its admission will create substantial danger ofundue prejudice or of

misleading the jury. Friedman v. Friedman, 259 Ga. 530 (1989). Evidence that

does not beardirectly or indirectly on the questions being tried should be excluded

as irrelevant. Ballew v. Kiker, 2192 Ga. App. 178,179 (1989).

The evidence sought to be excluded by Defendant is not relevant to the

inquiry. But even ifthis Court were persuaded that it has some relevance, it should

still be excluded because the probative value is substantially outweighed by the

risk that its admission will create danger ofundue prejudice or ofmisleading the

jury. The evidence adds nothing to the caseon the ultimate issue.

Respectfully submitted, this T**" day ofFebruary, 2013.

SAMUEL S. OLENS 551540

Attorney General
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DENNIS R. DUNN

Deputy Attorney General
234098

ANNETTE M. COWART 191199

Senior Assistant Attorney General

&L
BRYAN K. WEBB 743580

Senior Assistant Attorney General

LAURA W.MCDONALD 681655

Senior Assistant Attorney General

Attorneysfor Defendant

Georgia Department ofLaw
40 Capitol Square, S.W.
Atlanta, Georgia 30334-1300
Telephone: (404) 656-5331
Facsimile: (404) 657-9932
Email: bwebb@Jaw.ga.gov

lmcdonald@Jaw.ga.gov
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that onFebruary7^2014,1 served the foregoing

DEFENDANT'S MOTION IN LIMINE upon opposing counsel in this case by

sending a copyvia the United States Mail with adequate postage affixed and

addressed as follows:

Kimberly Worth
Barton Black

JOYCE THRASHER KAISER & LISS, LLC
Five Concourse Parkway
Suite 2600

Atlanta, Georgia 30328

This 7% day ofFebruary, 2014.

Bryan K. Webb
Counsel for Defendant

State Bar No.: 743580
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IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF FULTON COUNTY

STATE OF GEORGIA

STACEY KALBERMAN,

PLAINTIFF,

VS

GEORGIA GOVERNMENT

TRANSPARENCY AND CAMPAIGN )

FINANCE COMMISSION, et

DEFENDANTS.

al., )

CIVIL ACTION FILE

NO. 2012CV216247

PRETRIAL MOTIONS

Transcript of EXCERPTED proceedings, pretrial motions,

heard before the Honorable Ural Glanville on Monday, March 31,

2014, by Amy McKee, Certified Court Reporter B-1041, at

Courtroom 5F, Fulton County Justice Center, Atlanta, Georgia.

APPEARANCES:

ON BEHALF OF THE PLAINTIFF:

ON BEHALF OF THE DEFENDANT

KIMBERLY WORTH, ESQ.

D. BARTON BLACK, ESQ

MARY C. DAVIS, ESQ.

BRYAN K. WEBB, ESQ.

LAURA MCDONALD, ESQ.

****************

AMY MCKEE,

OFFICIAL COURT REPORTER

(404) 612-0525
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PROCEEDINGS

(Excerpted testimony, pretrial motions, held on Monday,

March 31, 2014, in open court.)

THE COURT: Okay. All right. Now I think I've

gotten rid of all the housekeeping. I'm sorry. Go right

ahead, Mr. Webb.

MR. WEBB: My name is Brian Webb, and what we have

before you is just — it's a simple evidentiary motion,

your Honor. What we contend, as the defendant, is that

this case really boils down to a certain period of time,

and that is is that there's actions taken by the Ethics

Commission — right now it's called the Georgia Government

Transparency and Campaign Finance Commission, but for the

purposes of the trial I hope everybody can just call it

the Ethics Commission because that will be a lot

shorter — but there were certain employment actions that

were taken back in May or June of 2011; that's what's at

issue today in this trial.

What has happened is that throughout the discovery

what we have been faced with is having to deal with

evidence coming in and evidence being discovered having to

do with separate issues. And the way that I would frame

it for you is that what we've got is we've got an

employment issue having to do with Miss Kalberman, we've



1 got an employment issue having to do with Miss Holly

2 LaBerge, her replacement, and then we also have an issue

3 having nothing to do with employment, but with the

4 resolution of the Nathan Deal ethics charges that were

5 before the commission back in 2011, when all of this was

6 occurring.

7 Very simply, your Honor, this is a very simple

8 motion. We contend that what is at issue in the case —

9 and as you pointed out quite rightly in your motion to

10 quash order — is what were the members of the commission

11 who made the employment decision about Miss Kalberman, the

12 reduction of her salary, her eventual resignation from the

13 commission, what was in their minds at the time that they

14 made that decision? Why did they do that?

15 We say that it was because of a budget issue. They

16 contend that it was because of something else. They

17 believe it was an effort to get rid of her, to get her out

18 of the commission, in order to more easily resolve these

19 Deal investigations that were pending before the

20 commission.

21 What we believe is not proper to have as evidence

22 in this case is they will — they are slated, based upon

23 the pretrial order, to put up at least three witnesses;

24 one of them is Jon Hair, another one is Elisabeth

25 Murray-Obertein, the former staff attorney there, and the



1 other is a Miss Gwendolyn Jones.

2 One thing we want to keep out of this is anything

3 having to do with Miss LaBerge's treatment of them on the

4 job. They can come up, they can say that they believe

5 that they've been retaliated against for any number of

6 reasons, for their own whistleblowing, and we say, number

7 one, that's not material evidence, it's not relevant to

8 anything that has to be decided having to do with the

9 commission as a consistent back in 2011, and if it were

10 material or relevant, we believe it's highly prejudicial,

11 because the only thing that that does is probe the mind

12 and probe the actions of Miss LaBerge, whose mindset,

13 whose state of mind, is not at issue in the case.

14 The second thing that we would like to have taken

15 away from this case is anything having to do with the

16 resolution of the Deal campaign allegations. That

17 happened, your Honor, I think back in July of 2012, a year

18 and — about a year and a month after the activity that

19 happened with Miss Kalberman. Not only was it a year and

20 a half or a year and a month afterward, you also had at

21 least two new commissioners that were on the commission at

22 the time that those things were resolved. The only link,

23 your Honor, between 2011 and 2012, according to the

24 plaintiff's testimony, is going to be that Holly LaBerge

25 was hired and Holly LaBerge was there.



1 Now, they're going to have some statements that

2 might come out in the case that Holly LaBerge says, you

3 know, I've done the Governor a favor, he owes me, that

4 kind of stuff. We contend that that evidence is just

5 statements made by Miss LaBerge; it doesn't say anything

6 about the intent of the commissioners a year earlier, when

7 they were making an employment decision about Miss

8 Kalberman. Not only that, there is no linkage between

9 Holly's statements, alleged statements, which she denies,

10 and any of the commissioners making a decision.

11 Again, if it were to be material, if it were to be

12 relevant — and we believe it's highly prejudicial

13 because, again, it probes the state of mind of the

14 individual, Miss LaBerge, and not the state of mind of the

15 individuals that were on the commission at the time. And

16 I would submit to you, your Honor, as you see the case go

17 forward, there is two bad guys in this case: One of them

18 is Josh Belefonte and the other is Mr. Milsaps, Patrick

19 Milsaps.

20 I remember the motion for summary judgment

21 argument. Miss Worth talked a lot about Mr. Milsaps,

22 Mr. Milsaps, Mr. Milsaps, Mr. Milsaps. Both of those

23 individuals were gone, they were off the commission within

24 months of what happened to Miss Kalberman and they were

25 not there at the time that any of this other evidence is



1 going to come forward. There is no linkage whatsoever,

2 your Honor.

3 That's basically what we've got.

4 THE COURT: Okay. Let me hear from Miss Worth.

5 MS. WORTH: Thank you, your Honor.

6 We disagree, and I'd like to tell the Court why,

7 and I'd like to put on the record a couple things, if I

8 may, with respect to our response to this.

9 In the pleadings, in the motion in limine seeking

10 to exclude this information — this evidence — from the

11 trial of this case, there have been several arguments made

12 that the subsequent evidence that we have sought to

13 include go to an effort by Miss Kalberman to bolster her

14 claims.

15 I think it's been written that Miss Kalberman has

16 alleged a conspiracy theory and has brought Mr. Deal into

17 this case to try to strengthen her case, bolster her

18 facts, inflame everybody, prejudice everybody, and make

19 the case a lot more interesting than it sounds.

20 Mr. Deal is not a defendant in this case, period.

21 Mr. Webb, in their pleadings, have alleged that we have

22 sought to include the Governor as a shadow defendant, and

23 I submit to you, your Honor, that that is patently false.

24 There is one extremely important — two extremely

25 important facts that I would like your Honor to consider,



1 and they are as follows: At the beginning of this case

2 that we filed on behalf of Miss Kalberman, it was our

3 belief that the commissioners inside the walls of the

4 commission took actions against Miss Kalberman to stop the

5 Deal investigation from going forward. We had our ideas,

6 based on the evidence that we had before us at the time,

7 who it was, but we really didn't know.

8 It wasn't until the depositions were taken and we

9 subpoenaed documents that we found out that Holly

10 LaBerge — and we found this out through her

11 testimony — testified under oath that somebody from the

12 Governor's office called her and said: Hey, would you be

13 interested in Miss Kalberman's job? It's not working out.

14 Miss Kalberman had the job, had no idea she was

15 about to lose it, neither did Sherry Streicker, and the

16 most important part — two parts. No. 1, the job was not

17 posted; No. 2, the rest of the commissioners didn't know

18 about it.

19 When Kent Alexander found out about it at his

20 deposition when I showed him the private e-mails, he

21 resigned two days later, okay?

22 So Holly LaBerge comes in — and I sound more

23 emotional than I intend to be right now, your Honor,

24 because this particular part bothers me — in the

25 Governor's motion to quash, he alleged: I don't have any



1 connection to this; I have no connection to this.

2 This woman testified that: Hey, the Governor's

3 office called me. Within a month or so of Miss LaBerge's

4 sworn testimony, the Governor put a statement on the

5 record through his spokesperson with the AJC, and his

6 spokesperson said the person that called Miss LaBerge was

7 Ryan Teague. Ryan Teague was the Governor's chief of

8 staff — or excuse me, chief legal counsel — and some of

9 the commissioners called us for help.

10 What I cannot get my mind around, both in the

11 filing and in the motions that have been pending before

12 this Court, is that how anybody can say that

13 Miss Kalberman has created out of thin air these theories

14 that we didn't even know about until these third parties

15 testified — we had no idea this was even the case — the

16 connection that brought the Governor into this case

17 directly, your Honor, is Holly LaBerge, not Stacey

18 Kalberman. We didn't know this when we filed the case.

19 We had no idea.

20 THE COURT: Let me ask you something — and this

21 goes back to one of my rulings on the motion to quash —

22 is that: Why not depose the Governor?

23 MS. WORTH: I will tell you why, your Honor.

24 THE COURT: And then you'll know for certain

25 whether or not you do have linkage or you don't —

8



1 MS. WORTH: Well, we know we have linkage.

2 THE COURT: — or how much you can, you know,

3 verify.

4 MS. WORTH: Well — did I cut you off? I'm sorry.

5 The linkage the Governor gave us, it was his

6 attorney, Ryan Teague, so they admit to that, okay? And

7 apparently the evidence will show — which Mr. Webb is not

8 trying to exclude — that Mr. Teague called

9 Miss LaBerge — although when she was at her deposition,

10 she refused to name who called her.

11 We didn't take the Governor's deposition for

12 several reasons; first, that it would be disruptive; he is

13 the sitting Governor; two, we did not believe that the

14 Governor was going to have his deposition taken and admit

15 to knowing anything about this. But what we hoped during

16 the course of this trial is if we called enough people in

17 here — because everybody's going like this

18 (indicating) — That hopefully the truth would come out.

19 I would submit to your Honor that we might never know.

20 And it's unfortunate, I think, for Miss Kalberman that

21 we'll never really know who the puppet master was.

22 But what we know, your Honor, is this: The

23 defendants have relied on federal case law, and the

24 federal case law for the burden shifting analysis they say

25 should apply. But as your Honor knows, the federal case



1 law that guides us in all of this includes, first — and

2 this is not Me to Evidence or Same Supervisor evidence.

3 But in the Supreme case, the Mendelson case, you had

4 employees who were harassed and retaliated against by

5 different supervisors. And what the United States Supreme

6 Court held in that case was if it goes to the context and

7 the theory of the case, it's admissible, even if it's

8 different supervisors, even if it's to —

9 COURT REPORTER: Slow down a little bit. Thank

10 you.

11 MS. WORTH: I'm sorry.

12 Even if it's different supervisors, even if it's a

13 different plaintiff, because why? And here's why: The

14 argument that we have in this case, your Honor, and what

15 the evidence, I would submit to your Honor, already shows

16 is the pretext. The employment cases that Mr. Webb asked

17 this Court to look to are what comes after are just as

18 important, your Honor, as what came before.

19 For example, we cited a case in our brief — and I

20 turn your Honor's attention to it — and we have a copy,

21 if you would like it.

22 And in the Gardner case, which is 454 Fed App 724

23 at 728, the court reversed the district court exclusion of

24 evidence, and what the plaintiff had essentially tried to

25 include at the lower court level was evidence of — that

10



1 things had happened after she left. And what happened in

2 that case was that the defendants fired her and they said

3 budget reasons. Okay?

4 Way down the line, after she left, there was

5 evidence that, not only was her position eliminated, they

6 filled it. And the court said: You have to look at what

7 comes later.

8 How do you, in a race case, if you have an

9 African-American woman saying: They got rid of me for

10 somebody white, how do you look at the bookends of what

11 Mr. Webb is asking this Court to confine us to, how do you

12 look at that and say: What evidence do you have of that?

13 You will never have a smoking gun. So what you

14 look at is: What did the employer do later? And what the

15 employer did later, if it's a case of an African-American

16 plaintiff, what the employer did later, they staffed the

17 position with a white woman.

18 So you look at what comes later. The reason why

19 this evidence is relevant, in terms of the pretext, is

20 that Stacey Kalberman's argument and her position — and

21 the evidence has already showed — is that she lost her

22 job and so did Sherry Streicker, because somebody was

23 trying to shut down the Deal investigation. Somebody.

24 All right? At first we just thought it was the

25 commissioners: Maybe it was the commissioners, maybe it

11



1 was the Governor, we don't know, but somebody sought to

2 shut it down.

3 So we get to Holly LaBerge. Holly LaBerge gets a

4 phone call, she is hand picked by somebody in the

5 Governor's office, she has these secret interviews, job's

6 not posted, other commissioners don't know. And the only

7 reason why we stumbled upon this, your Honor, is we

8 subpoenaed her private e-mail. And we see these e-mails,

9 where she is with two of the commissioners saying: I'd

10 love to interview for the job; here is my resume.

11 And there is a series of events which come later,

12 which, again, Mr. Webb is not trying to exclude, she's

13 changing her resume, she's blind copying the

14 commissioners, and all this is taking place.

15 But the best part — the best part of the pretext,

16 the core of our argument, is that Holly LaBerge comes in

17 there, and anybody who gets in her way gets in trouble.

18 Within months of Sherry Streicker losing her job, she

19 comes in and says: I want a staff attorney. She posted

20 the position for a staff attorney within a month of her

21 being there, and guess who applies? Sherry Streicker.

22 Sherry Streicker doesn't even get an interview. And at

23 her deposition, Holly says: I don't think it's a good

24 idea. Doesn't even give her an interview.

25 Hires a woman named Elisabeth Murray-Obertein. And

12



1 what does Elisabeth Murray-Obertein do? She comes in,

2 already deposed, and she testified: I found serious

3 violations pertaining to Mr. Deal. Here's what I said to

4 do. And she testified on the record, under oath: Holly

5 LaBerge said to me: This isn't going to work; back into

6 this number; they're not going to go for this.

7 The testimony also shows from Miss Murray-Obertein,

8 the attorney at the commission, that there was meetings

9 between Miss LaBerge and members of the Governor's office,

10 to which Miss Murray-Obertein was not invited, and in the

11 end, Mr. Deal paid a $3,000 fine and change, as opposed to

12 the penalty of 70 or $80,000 that she recommended.

13 And this is the most important point that I'm

14 making of all to your Honor: Nathan Deal is not a

15 defendant in this case. He is not. What he did or didn't

16 do at the Campaign Finance Commission is irrelevant. It

17 is irrelevant to my argument. But what is relevant is —

18 and I will tell you this with the greatest respect — if

19 Nathan Deal was prosecuted by the attorney general's

20 office or if he faced serious, serious, serious exposure

21 because of what he did, I feel very confident that the

22 defendants would be here today saying: This is admissible

23 because it shows a lack of intent. These women lost their

24 jobs and, see, we still went forward.

25 But what happened, your Honor, a year later, is

13



1 just what Stacey Kalberman said was going to happen: The

2 Deal matter went away. Stacey Kalberman and Sherry

3 Streicker prepared packages of subpoenas, and when they

4 presented them to the commission, within weeks she

5 said that she was told: Your salary will be cut and

6 Sherry Streicker's out.

7 THE COURT: Okay. Well, get back to LaBerge, okay?

8 MS. WORTH: Okay. So LaBerge, in our opinion, her

9 conduct is probative as to pretext and as to the

10 constructive termination claim, which are both intentional

11 claims that the jury must consider. Now, Miss LaBerge had

12 a pattern of anybody that was in the office that would not

13 comply with what she wanted, she retaliated against and

14 got rid of: Elisabeth Murray-Obertein and Jon Hair.

15 Now, Jon Hair is a media specialist who came to

16 work for Miss LaBerge, and within a couple months of his

17 being there, he was told to alter documents relating to

18 Deal. He refused. He was also told to destroy

19 documents — and he's already been deposed — relating to

20 this case. He said no, and he was fired.

21 So how Defendants can say that a year later all of

22 this is irrelevant, this is the core of Stacey Kalberman's

23 case. I mean, this is her case. Because it's the core of

24 the pretext and everything that happened that shows, just

25 as she said it would, it all bore out.

14



1 So we submit, your Honor, that the burden in this

2 court is not that this is prejudicial, because truly,

3 prejudicial evidence as harmful to the case of a defendant

4 is always prejudicial. It's hurtful. We submit that the

5 standard, as your Honor knows, is whether or not it has

6 the probative value, such that it should be admitted. I

7 can't imagine anything more probative than this. I

8 cannot. Because this — what happened later, this woman

9 that was picked by somebody, somebody we don't know, did

10 exactly as somebody planned to make this go away: The

11 subpoenas were never issued, they never went out, and it

12 all went away.

13 And that's our position, your Honor, and we

14 respectfully request that the motion to exclude be denied.

15 THE COURT: Okay. This is kind of one of these

16 things —

17 Mr. Webb, go right ahead, sir. I'm sorry.

18 MR. WEBB: I just have a very small reply, your

19 Honor.

20 THE COURT: Yes.

21 MR. WEBB: You'll note Miss Worth indicted that I

22 wasn't seeking to exclude certain evidence, and that

23 certain evidence is indeed the contact with Miss LaBerge

24 from the Governor's office, the way that she was recruited

25 and hired — that was all stuff happening at the time when

15



1 these decisions about Miss Kalberman's employment were

2 made.

3 And these cases about looking at stuff that

4 happened afterward, those are all related to employment

5 decisions. In other words, how are you going to know when

6 you have a race case whether or not you have a claim? You

7 look sometime afterward: They hired the white guy instead

8 of another African-American. That's not what we have

9 here, your Honor. They're looking to put forward evidence

10 of something that occurred in a completely different

11 context. I mean, I am not here to defend the Governor; I

12 am not here to defend the Governor's office. They have

13 not sued the Governor; they're not a defendant. The

14 Ethics Commission is.

15 And the point of this trial is to figure out what

16 those guys were thinking at that time, not what somebody

17 else was thinking on behalf of the Governor's office a

18 year later. It's not probative of anything, your Honor,

19 certainly not the state of mind of individuals in May of

20 2011, individuals who were no longer on the commission at

21 the time that this evidence occurred.

22 And whatever she's done with regard to her

23 employees, you know, whatever she's done with regard to

24 them, if she's a retaliator, they've got lawsuits coming

25 up later on after this that we can probe that activity,

16



1 but what Holly LaBerge does with her employees has nothing

2 to do with whether or not the commissioners were

3 sanctioning it.

4 And, in fact, you know, she talked about Kent

5 Alexander getting off the commission right after his

6 deposition? While he was confronted with some of the

7 things that are alleged that Miss LaBerge did, there is

8 nothing that links any of her activity to any of the

9 current commissioners or any of the former commissioners.

10 I can't think of anything that's less probative than the

11 evidence that they seek to come in.

12 THE COURT: Okay. To the extent that Miss

13 LaBerge's testimony is going to go to pretext or this

14 constructive termination claim, yeah, it's — I'm going to

15 probably allow it. However, this is kind of one of these

16 things I've got to wait and see what — how the evidence

17 develops as to whether or not it's relevant to some of the

18 other things that have been postured between the parties.

19 So at this point in time what I'm going to do is

20 I'm going to deny the motion to exclude at this point, but

21 you can certainly object, Mr. Webb, and you certainly —

22 to the extent it does not go to those two — those

23 allegations that need to be proven, and I will rule,

24 depending upon the circumstances. But — and I would

25 also — I would also kind of ask the plaintiffs to keep it

17



1 related to those particular things and not just go far

2 afield of what you think of where it may go, okay?

3 MS. WORTH: I'll do my best, your Honor.

4 THE COURT: Well, if not, it's subject to being

5 excluded; I will just exclude her testimony, okay? So

6 unless you evidence craft and get to those particular

7 points, it is going to be subject to exclusion for

8 relevance, okay?

9 MS. WORTH: I understand, your Honor. I suppose I

10 need a little more direction from the Court, because it's

11 our position that, with all due respect, several of the

12 commissioners are still on the commission. Kevin

13 Abernathy is now the chairman. I mean, we can agree to

14 disagree forever, but —

15 THE COURT: I'll give you a prime example: Did she

16 have any conversations with him?

17 MS. WORTH: I'm sorry, who?

18 THE COURT: Did Miss LaBerge have any conversations

19 with the current chairman?

20 MS. WORTH: I believe that she did.

21 THE COURT: Well, I would hope you would know at

22 this point in time if she did or didn't. That's why I'm

23 saying — that's why I'm saying, okay? She's your

24 witness, right?

25 MS. WORTH: Yes. I do —

18



1 THE COURT: Okay. So I would suspect at this point

2 in time, as long in the tooth that we are, that you would

3 know whether or not she had had any conversations with him

4 and would get right to the point of it.

5 MS. WORTH: Right. And we're calling her on cross,

6 so I don't —

7 THE COURT: Okay.

8 MS. WORTH: But we will heed your Honor's

9 instruction.

10 THE COURT: Yeah, I just don't want you to kind

11 of — I mean, to make this a protracted — I mean, if you

12 do have — if she had a conversation with him, it's

13 relevant, okay, if it proves or goes to establishing one

14 of those elements. But if it doesn't, it's not.

15 MS. WORTH: And we agree, your Honor.

16 THE COURT: Okay. All right.

17 MS. WORTH: We absolutely agree. I mean, we

18 understand the Court's ruling and we agree. We just —

19 it's our position, as I said to your Honor, that all of it

20 goes to the pretext and intent that Miss Kalberman has to

21 show.

22 THE COURT: Okay. All right.

23 MS. WORTH: I mean, what — perhaps, before we call

24 a particular witness, we can tell your Honor what we

25 intend that he will testify to before he comes on the

19



1 stand, make a proffer.

2 THE COURT: If it becomes necessary to make a

3 proffer, I will go ahead and do that —

4 MS. WORTH: Okay.

5 THE COURT: — and Mr. Webb, if that suits you,

6 we'll just go ahead and do that.

7 MR. WEBB: Yes, your Honor. That's a safe way to

8 go; I appreciate it.

9 THE COURT: Okay? All right. Because once stuff's

10 out of the bag, I can't do anything about it, so —

11 MS. WORTH: Well, that's why I don't —

12 THE COURT: — okay. So proffer, I think, would

13 probably be appropriate, okay?

14 MS. WORTH: Okay.

15 THE COURT: All right. Anything else?

16 MR. WEBB: Just one thing, your Honor — and I know

17 this is not going to the jury, this document —

18 THE COURT: Yes.

19 MR. WEBB: — but it still lists Mr. Milsaps as a

20 defendant, and just so the Court is aware, Mr. Milsaps

21 was — he was dismissed as an individual defendant in the

22 case. So in terms of him being a witness, and if we're

23 talking to the jury, I would appreciate him not being

24 referred to as a defendant.

25 THE COURT: Okay. I will — we'll just mark off

20



1 Defendant and then we will also — do you all have a

2 consolidated list of witnesses that you think you're going

3 to call in this case?

4 MR. WEBB: There was one in the pretrials, your

5 Honor.

6 THE COURT: Okay. I'm going to flip to that and

7 find it. Just hold on one second.

8 MR. WEBB: That's correct, your Honor.

9 MS. WORTH: Yes, your Honor, and I think that

10 Mr. Webb and I can endeavor to start taking some people

11 off that list, too, and make it a lot shorter.

12 THE COURT: What I'll do is usually I — we usually

13 ask, and it may be in this particular case, if any of the

14 people know any of the witnesses in this case, and —

15 yeah, it's question No. 3.

16 What I usually do is I will just laundry list: Do

17 any of you know any of these particular individuals that

18 may be called for trial in this case?

19 And I'll just — I'll just go through them, and if

20 they hit positive, they'll raise their card. If you don't

21 plan on using them, then certainly culling down your

22 witness list after I've called the master list, once we

23 get started, would be helpful, okay? But what I will just

24 do is I'll take it from pages 29 and 30 — actually, it's

25 29 through 31 — let's see — yeah, 31 — or you both got

21



1 witnesses listed — so I will just name all those folks

2 and that should cover us.

3 And I will — I have marked off Mr. Milsaps being a

4 defendant.

5 Okay. Anything else? Any other motions on behalf

6 of —

7 MR. WEBB: No, your Honor, that was the single

8 motion that we had.

9 THE COURT: Okay. Miss Worth, anything on your

10 behalf, madam?

11 MS. WORTH: No, sir.

12 THE COURT: Okay. All right. Then what we'll do

13 at this point in time is I will go ahead and we will just

14 recess. I need to call for our jurors and get our jury

15 clerk up here from the clerk's office, so it should take

16 me probably about 15 minutes, is what I'm thinking, or

17 thereabouts, so don't go too far, but — we'll make those

18 calls right now, so as soon as we are able to do that,

19 we'll go ahead and do that.

20 (Conclusion of excerpted testimony.)
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IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF FULTON COUNTY

STATE OF GEORGIA

STACEYKALBERMAN, *
*

Plaintiff, *

vs. * Civil Action No.
* 2012CV216247

GEORGIA GOVERNMENT *

TRANSPARENCY AND *

CAMPAIGN FINANCE *
COMMISSION, ETAL., *

Defendants. *

MOTION TO QUASH

NOW COMES the Honorable Nathan Deal, Governor of the State of Georgia, by and

throughcounsel, and moves to quash the trial subpoena served by Plaintiff. GovernorDeal

makes this motion on the following grounds: (1) he has no personal knowledge material to the

relevant facts ofthis case; (2) the subpoenas are undulyburdensome and harassing; and (3)

compelling thehead of the Executive Branch of Georgia's government raises separation of

powers concerns.

WHEREFORE, Governor Deal respectfully requests that his Motion to Quash Subpoena

be granted. A brief in supportof this Motion is filed concurrently herewith.

This llhay of March, 2014.

[Signature blockon following page]



Please address all communications to:

Kelly Campanella
Assistant Attorney General
40 Capitol Square, SW
Atlanta, Georgia 30334-1300
(404) 656-4666 (Telephone)
(404) 657-9932 (Facsimile)
kcampanella@law.ga.gov

Respectfully submitted,

SAMUEL S. OLENS 051554

Attorney General

DENNIS R. DUNN 234098

Deputy Attorney General

STEFAN RITTER 606950

Senior Assistant Attorney General

KJELLyCAMPANELLA 360501
Assistant Attorney General



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

Ihereby certify that on March 1^2014,1 served the foregoing MOTION TO QUASH

uponopposing counsel in this case by sending a copyvia the United States Mail with adequate

postage affixedand addressed as follows:

Kimberly A. Worth, Esq.
Thrasher Liss & Smith, LLC
One Concourse Pkwy, Ste 2600
Atlanta, GA 30328

This Jl^day ofMarch, 2014.

KellyCamdanelU
Ga. Bafr No? 360501
Counsel far the Office of the Governor
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IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF FULTON COUNTY

STATE OF GEORGIA

STACEYKALBERMAN, *

Plaintiff,

GEORGIA GOVERNMENT

TRANSPARENCY AND

CAMPAIGN FINANCE

COMMISSION, ETAL.,

*

vs. * Civil Action No.

* 2012CV216247

Defendants. *

BRIEF IN SUPPORT OF MOTION TO QUASH

I. INTRODUCTION

On or about March 5,2014, the Office ofthe Governor received a subpoena directed

toward Governor Nathan Deal.1 The subpoena ostensibly calls for theGovernor personally to

attend the trial of this matter on March 31,2014 and be sworn as a witness. (See Exhibit A

hereto). Despite taking discovery from several public officials and deposing numerous former

and current Georgia Government Transparency and Campaign Finance Commission (the

"Commission") members, Plaintiffdid not endeavor to pursue discovery from any member ofthe

Governor's Office, and with good reason: the Governor has no direct factual knowledge relevant

to the allegations in Plaintiffs Complaint or Amended Complaint. That Plaintiff is only seeking

the Governor's testimony now, on the eve ofa highly publicized and politically charged trial

1The Office of the Governor also receiveda subpoena directedat the Governor's Executive Counsel, Ryan
Teague (theTeague Subpoena"). Although theOffice of the Governor isnot formally moving to quash theTeague
Subpoena, theOffice, of course, adamantly objects Plaintiff soliciting any information from Mr. Teague that could
encroach on the attorney-client privilege he shares with theGovernor.



underscores the real motivationbehindthe subpoena: the desire to openly harass the Governor,

unfairly dramatize the trial before themedia, andleverage Plaintiff'sclaims witha jury.

This case involves allegations that, reducing the salary ofPlaintifFs Executive Director

Position in June 2011, the Commission retaliated against her in violation ofGeorgia's

"Whistleblower" statute, O.C.G.A. § 45-1-4. Though the Governor was the subject of

complaints made to the Commission in late 2010 and early 2011, the Governor has no direct

factual knowledge of the day-to-day functions ofthe Commission or the information that

eventually led the Commission to reduce the salary ofPlaintiffs position. Only the Commission

members and Commission staffcan testify to that information. The Governor thus has no

firsthand knowledge ofthe facts relevant to this action and seeks to quash this subpoena as

improper, unreasonable, and patently oppressive. Even the "briefand succinct outline ofthe

case and contentions" section ofPlaintiffs Pretrial Order does not allege any direct knowledge

on the part ofthe Governor, in particular.

Because the Governor is not alleged to have any direct factual knowledge relevant to the

Complaint or Amended Complaint,and Plaintiffhas not sought his testimonysooner, the

subpoenais merelyan attempt to harass the Governor and unfairlydramatize an already

politically charged trial open to the public. Additionally, the subpoena is uniquely improper and

burdensome given the Governor's weighty public responsibilities. The subpoena should be

quashed.

II. ARGUMENT AND CITATION OF AUTHORITY

Code Section 9-11-45(a)(1) permits quashing a subpoena that is unreasonable and

oppressive. Seealso O.C.G.A. § 24-10-22(b); Washburn v. Sardi's Restaurants, 191 Ga. App.

307,310 (1989). The instant subpoena is clearly unreasonable andoppressive because the



Governorhas no firsthand knowledge of the relevant facts of this case. Further, the subpoena

presents an undue burden on the extremely hectic schedule ofGeorgia's chiefexecutive officer.

1. The Governor Has No Personal Knowledge of the Relevant Facts, and Any ....
Testimony Would be Immaterial.

The Governor is the head ofthe executive branchand oversees the day-to-day operation

of the State. See Ga. Const. Art. V, Sec. I, Para. I; Art. V. Sec. II, Para. I; Art. V. Sec. Ill,

Para. I. Nothing in the Amended Complaint requires or depends on the testimony ofthe

Governor. The Governor is not alleged to have any personal knowledge ofthe Commission's

personnel andbudgetary decisions madeon orabout June 2011. The Governor is not alleged to

have been involved in or consulted about the reduction in Plaintiffs salary, the creation ofthe

staff attorney position,or generally how to allocate theCommission's budget during thattime

period. The allegations, true or false, regarding the conduct oftheCommission members and

staffdepend on theCommission members andstaffhw'mg personal knowledge ofthose actions,

not the Governor. Thus what de minimis informationthe Governor may have on the background

ofthecase, ifany, canbe supplied by other witnesses and is far outweighed by the burden of

having the Governor testify. (See Section 2 below.)

If the Governor had information that is crucial enough to require the attendance ofthe

Governor attrial (and he does not), there is noreason Plaintiffcould nothave obtained it earlier

through deposition orwritten discovery. Plaintiff did not do soand only now seeks trial

testimony from the Governor inan attempt to publically harass theGovernor and unfairly

prejudice the Governor as well as the Defendants before ajury. The Governor has no knowledge

material enough to warrant his presence at this trial.



2. The Burden on Calling on the Governor to Testify Far Outweighs Any
Possible Probative Value of that Testimony.

While any subpoena should be quashed if it is "unreasonable and oppressive," a subpoena

on the Governor ofthe State ofGeorgia is exceptionally burdensome. Courts have routinely

refused subpoenas on even lower-ranking state officials. For instance, in the case IreneStephens

v. Georgia Dept. ofTransportation, 1:02-CV-1608-RWS in the UnitedStatesDistrictCourt for

the NorthernDistrictofGeorgia, the Plaintifftried to subpoena ChiefAdministrativeLaw Judge

Lois Oakley. (SeeExhibit B.) The court rejected thesubpoena, quoting prior decisions:

In general,high ranking government officials enjoy limited immunityfrom
being deposed in matters aboutwhichthey have no personal knowledge.The
immunity is warranted because such officials must be allowed the freedom to
perform their tasks without theconstant interference ofthe discovery process.
[Cits, omitted] Before the involuntary depositions ofhigh rankinggovernment
officialswill be permitted, the parties seekingthe depositionsmust
demonstrate that the particular official'stestimony will likely lead to the
discoveryofadmissible evidenceand is essential to thatparty's case. [Cits,
omitted] In addition, the evidence mustnot be available through an
alternative source or via less burdensome means" Warzon v. Drew, 155
F.R.D. 183 (E.D. Wis. 1994).Seealso Inre: UnitedStatesofAmerica, 985
F.2d 510(1 lth Cir. 1993).

(emphasis added) (Orderat p. 3 quoting Smith v. State ofGo. Dept. ofChildren & Youth Srvcs,

179 F.R.D. 644,645-46 (N.D. Ga. 1998)).

The Smith decision, quoted by the court in theStephens matter, involveda subpoena on

the head ofthe Georgia Department ofJuvenile Justice. 179F.R.D. at 645. The Warzon case,

which bothSmith and Stephens cite, involved subpoenas on the Governor of Wisconsinand the

Secretary of theDepartment ofAdministration of Wisconsin. 155 F.R.d. at 184. In re: United

States ofAmerica, again relied upon bySmith and Stephens, 985 F.2d, involved a subpoena on

Dr. David Kessler, Commissioner of the FDA. 985 F.2dat 511. In all of thesecases the



subpoenas were quashed due to the immunity ofhigh ranking governmental officials from such

subpoenas.

The Governor is no less immune from such an improper subpoena. Nothing in the

Complaint or Amended Complaint suggests that the Governor mustbe called to testify on these

issues, or that he is the only one with relevant knowledge. Nothing suggests that the

extraordinary step ofcalling a Chief Executive to testifymust be exercised. Indeed, the burden

imposed on the Governor here is greater than that imposedon the witnesses in the above cases.

In short, the burden presented by the subpoena in the present case far outweighs any probative

value.2

3. Respect for a Co-Equal Branch ofGovernment Counsels in Favor ofQuashing
The Subpoena.

The Governor is head of the Executive Branch ofstate government, a branch of

government co-equal with the Judicial Branch. The principles ofseparation ofpowers are at the

foundation ofour system ofstate government, just as they are in our federal system. See, e.g.,

Ga. Const. Art. 1, Para. 2, Sec. 3. The federal courts have long recognized that subjecting the

head ofthe Executive Branch to all but the most vital discovery - much less compulsory

testimony during trial - raises separation ofpowers concerns. See, e.g., United States v. Burr,25

F. Cas. 187,192, F. Cas. No. 14694 (No. 14,694) (CC Va 1807) (Chief Justice Marshall sitting

as trial judge). Plaintiffs failure to articulate any need at all for the Governor's testimony in this

case does not remotely overcome such concerns here.

Because he subpoena should be quashed for the reasons articulated above, however, the

Court need not address this thorny issue.

3The burden is especially great given the imminent conclusion of the2014 Session of the Georgia General
Assembly andthemagnitude of the Governor's duties immediately after thatconclusion. Specifically, the March 31
through April 4,2014 trial dates would fall directly inthemiddle of the40-day window when theGovernor must
review allbillspassed by theGeneral Assembly and determine whether to signorveto them.



HI. CONCLUSION

Forthe foregoing reasons the subpoenaagainst the Governor should be quashed. In the

present case, the Governoris not alleged to haveany personal knowledge to bringto bear,.no

relevant testimony to give, and the burden from testifying clearlyoutweighs any probative value

ofthe subpoena. Plaintiff had foil opportunity to seek discovery from the Governor through the

ordinarydiscovery process, and elected not to do so. She seeks testimony now, presumably, in

attempt to harass the governor, prejudice the jury, and create an unwarranted media spectacle of

the trial. She should not be allowed to compel the Governor to testify.

This I7**\iay ofMarch 2014.

Please address all communications to:

Kelly Campanella
Assistant Attorney General
40 Capitol Square, SW
Atlanta, Georgia 30334-1300
(404) 656-4666 (Telephone)
(404) 657-9932 (Facsimile)
kcampanella@law.ga.gov

Respectfully submitted,

SAMUEL S. OLENS

Attorney General

DENNIS R. DUNN

Deputy Attorney General

STEFAN RITTER

Senior Assistant Attorney General

llyc^vIpanBLla 'KELLY

Assis Generalistpit At orney

051554

234098

606950

360501



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that on March , 2014,1 served the foregoing BRIEF IN SUPPORT

OF MOTION TO QUASH upon opposing counsel in this case by sending a copy via the United

States Mail with adequate postage affixed and addressed as follows:

Kimberly A. Worth, Esq.
Thrasher Liss & Smith, LLC
One Concourse Pkwy, Ste 2600
Atlanta, GA 30328

This Qftdayof March, 2014.

Kelly Caa^anella " x
Ga.Birly>. 360501
Counselor the Office of theGovernor
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THRASHER

LISS & SMITI-
Five Concourse Parkway

Suite 2600

Atlanta, Georgia 30328

t: 404-760-6000

f; 404-760-0225

www.tlslaw.com

Michelle S. Budd, Paralegal

d: 404-760-0217

mbudd@tlslaw.com

March 5, 2014

VIA HAND DEL1VKRY

Governor Nathan Deal

Office of the Governor

203 Slate Capitol Avenue

Atlanta, Georgia 30334

Re: Staccv Kalberman v. Georgia Government Transparency and CampaHn Finance

Commission f/k/a Georgia State Ethics Commission et al.

In the Superior Court ofFulton County, Georgia

Civil Action File No. 20 12CV2 16247

Dear Governor Deal:

This law firm represents Plaintiff Staeey Kalberman in the above-referenced civil action

that is currently scheduled for trial calendar beginning Monday, March 31, 2014. Please find

enclosed a Witness Subpoena (the "Subpoena") requiring your appearance and testimony until

either the Court or our office releases you from the Subpoena.

Although the Subpoena states that you are required to appear beginning at 9:00 a.m. on

March 31, 2014, the actual date and time that you will be called to testify by our office will

differ. Accordingly, please do not appeal- until you receive confirmation from our office of the

specific date and lime that your testimony will be required. In order for us to provide

confirmation to you of the date and tune for you to appear, please have your office call me

immediately to provide a name and phone number of the person for me to contact for the purpose

of coordinating your appearance so that we can minimize any inconvenience that this may pose

to your schedule.

Thank you for your lime and attention to this matter.

Sincerely,

THRASHER LISS & SMITH, LLC

Michelle S. Budd

Paralegal

/msb

Enclosure



STATE OF GEORGIA

FULTON COUNTY

Cathelene Robinson

53

CIVIL CASE
WITNESS SUBPOENA

Clerk ofSuperior Court

136 PRYOR STREET, ROOM C-IQ3, ATLANTA, GEORGIA 30303

Civil Action No. # 2012CV216247

YOU ARE HEREBY COMMANDED,

that laying all other business

aside you be and appear at the
Fulton County

TO: Name:

Address

GOVERNOR NATHAN DEAL
OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR

203 STATE CAPITOL AVENUE
ATLANTA, GEORGIA 30334

Superior Court, Civil Division, before Ural D. Glanville	 , Judge of the

Superior Court, in court room ^F 0fthe Fulton County Courthouse at	 o'clock a.mjp.ni.

the	.31s-:	 day of	 Jifeffi-. .20 14 . to be

sworn as a witness for the Plaintiff in the case ofStacey Kalberman v. Georgia Government

Case M
Transparency and Campaign Finance Commission tfk/a Georgia State EthicsCommission et ^1j_2012CV21C247

HEREIN FAIL NOT, UNDER THE PENALTY OF LAW by authority of Ural P. Glanville

Judge ofsaid court this day of /Vl~— 	 £0 ) V .

Ifyou have questions contact attorney for
plaintiiiydefendaiit

Kimberty A. Worth, Esq.

Thrasher Lies & Smith, LLC
Five Concourse Parkway, Suite 2600
Atlanta, Georgia 30328

Phone: 404-760-6000

Honorable Ca
Cleric ofSu

e "Tina" Robinson
urt
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LUTHtna. rijiOAiAs cteffe

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT Bk J) )
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF GEORGIA

ATLANTA DIVISION

IRENE L. STEPHENS,

Plaintiff,

v.

CIVIL ACTION NO.

1 :02-CV- 1 608-RWS

GEORGIA DEPARTMENT OF

TRANSPORTATION,

Defendant.

ORDER

Plaintiff brought this action alleging various adverse employment actions

by her former employer the Georgia Department ofTransportation. On March

4, 2004, Plaintiffnoticed the deposition ofJudge Lois Oakley, the Chief

Administrative Law Judge of the Georgia Office ofState Administrative

Hearings. Judge Oakley has moved for a protective order stating that it would

be an undue burden for her to appear for a deposition in this case.

Judge Oakley is a not a party to the present case and states that she has

no personal knowledge ofany issue in the case. Additionally, the Office of

State Administrative Hearings ("OSAH") has no record ofa case involving



Case 1:02-cv-f)1608-RWS Document 79 Filed 0^23/04 Page 2 of 4

A072A
(Rev 8/82)

both the Plaintiff and Defendant in this case and the adverse employment

actions ofwhich Plaintiff complains were never the subject ofa slate

administrative hearing before the OSAH. As the head ofan executive agency

ofthe State ofGeorgia, Judge Oakley states that a deposition would be unduly

burdensome, harassing, and oppressive. Although PlaintifTs complaint against

Defendant was never the subject of an administrative hearing. Plaintiffappears

to assert that Defendant violated certain Personnel Board Rules of the OSAH.

Federal Rule ofCivil Procedure 26(c) allows a protective order "where

justice requires to protect a party or person from annoyance, embarrassment,

oppression, or undue burden or expense." A party seeking a protective order

must include "a certification that the movant has in good faith conferred or

attempted to confer with other affected parties in an effort to resolve the

dispute without court intervention ...." Here, counsel for movant attempted to

confer with Plaintiff to determine what information Plaintiff is seeking from

Judge Oakley. PlaintifTs only response was a letter stating that a deposition

would not be necessary ifJudge Oakley would stipulate that the Georgia

Department ofTransportation violated Personnel Board Rules.

First, Judge Oakley is a non-party with no personal knowledge of



Case 1:02-cv-§1608-RWS Document 79 Filed 0^23/04 Page 3 of 4

Plaintiffs case. Second, Plaintiff has not demonstrated the relevance ofthe

rules of the OSAH since the actions ofwhich she complains were never the

subject ofa hearing in the OSAH. Finally, to the extent that Plaintiff asserts

that the rules are relevant the rules are published.

In general, high ranking government officials enjoy

limited immunity from being deposed in matters

about which they have no personal knowledge. The

immunity is warranted because such officials must be

allowed the freedom to perform their tasks without

the constant interference ofthe discovery process.

Before the involuntary depositions ofhigh ranking

government officials will be permitted, the parties

seeking the depositions must demonstrate that the

particular official's testimony will likely lead to the

discovery ofadmissible evidence and is essential to
that party's case. In addition, the evidence must not

be available through an alternative source or via less

burdensome means.

Smith v. State ofGa. Dept. ofChildren & Youth Servs.. 1 79 F.R.D. 644, 645

46 (N.D. Ga. 1998) fquoting Warzon v. Drew. 155 F.R.D. 183 (E.D. Wis.

1994)). See also In re United States ofAmerica. 985 F.2d 510 (1 1th Cir.

1993).

Plaintiff has failed to demonstrate that Judge Oakley's testimony is

relevant, must less essential to her case. Furthermore, she has failed to show

A072A
(Rev.8/82)
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that the evidence is not available through an alternative source. Accordingly,

the Objection and Motion for Protective Order on BehalfofJudge Lois Oakley

[77-1] is hereby GRANTED.

SO ORDERED this ofMarch, 2004.

richaSdw. STORY/^
UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE

ENTERED ON DOCKET

MR 26 208*

LUTH21 D.THOMAS
DepujCfiSeik
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IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF FULTON COUNTY

STATE OF GEORGIA

STAGEY KALBERMAN,

Plaintiff,

vs .

GEORGIA GOVERNMENT TRANSPARENCY

AND CAMPAIGN FINANCE COMMISSION,

et al..

Defendants .

Civil Action No. 2012CV216247

Honorable Ural D. Glanville

Motion to Quash Subpoena

LED IN OFFIC

! S 1 2014

ORDER

The above-captioned matter is presently before the Court on the

"Motion to Quash Subpoena" filed by the Honorable Nathan Deal,

Governor of the State of Georgia.1 (Doc. no. 133). Plaintiff

opposes the instant motion. (Doc. no. 136) . For the reasons set

forth, infra, the instant motion is GRANTED. (Doc. no. 133) .

I . BACKGROUND

The above-captioned case is scheduled for trial on Monday,

March 31, 2014. Governor Deal contends that, on March 5, 2014, the

Office of the Governor received a subpoena, calling for Governor

Deal to testify in the trial scheduled in the above-captioned case.

(Doc. no. 134, Gov. Deal Br., p. 1). Furthermore, Governor Deal

argues that he has no personal knowledge of any relevant facts, and

thus, his testimony would be immaterial. (Id. at 3) . As such.

Governor Deal maintains that the burden of calling him to testify

outweighs the probative value of the testimony. (Id. at 3-5) .

' Because the Clerk of the Court does not furnish copies of filings as directed by

Uniform Superior Court Rule 6.1, the parties are ORDERED to submit copies of all

future filings to the Chambers of the Judge assigned to the above-captioned case.



Finally, Governor Deal concludes that principles of separation of

powers also warrant quashing the subpoena. (Id. at 5-6).

Plaintiff counters that Governor Deal has personal and first

hand knowledge of information needed to establish the elements of

Plaintiff's claim. (Doc. no. 136, pp. 4-8). Plaintiff also argues

that, despite Governor Deal's assertions concerning separation of

powers, the fact that Governor Deal is the Governor of Georgia does

not preclude his testimony in the above-captioned case. (Id. at 8) .

Plaintiff concludes that Governor Deal's "office does not place him

above the law for purposes of relevant testimony at trial in this

Court." (Id^ at 4) .

II. DISCUSSION OF LAW

As an initial matter, the Court will address the motion to

quash based upon the nature and scope of the subject subpoena.

O.C.G.A. § 9-11-43 provides, "In all trials [,] the testimony of

witnesses shall be taken orally in open court unless otherwise

provided by this (C]hapter or by statute." O.C.G.A. § 9-ll-43(a).

In this regard, O.C.G.A. § 24-13-22 provides, "At the request of any

party, subpoenas for attendance at a hearing or trial shall be

issued under the authority of the clerk of court in which the

hearing or trial is held." O.C.G.A. § 24-13-22. However, upon

written motion made promptly before the time specified in the

subpoena for compliance therewith, the court may "[q]uash or modify

the subpoena if it is unreasonable and oppressive." O.C.G.A. § 24-

13-23 (b). Although Georgia has recently adopted a new evidence



code, it remains clear that, when a motion to quash is filed, the

serving-party has the initial burden of demonstrating that the

sought-after evidence is relevant and then the burden shifts to the

moving-party to establish that the subpoena is unreasonable and

oppressive. E.g., Walker v. State, 323 Ga. App. 558, 568 (2013);

Bazemore v. State, 244 Ga . App. 460, 463 (2000). Ultimately, the

decision to quash a subpoena depends on the nature and scope of the

request. Walker, 323 Ga . App. at 568.

Plaintiff submits,

Plaintiff is charged with proving that she was retaliated

against for protected activity under the Georgia

Whistleblower Act, and that includes establishing that she

disclosed actual violations of law by the Governor .

Governor Deal has personal and firsthand knowledge of his

violations of Georgia campaign finance law. Additionally,

evidence will show that the Governor's Office recruited

[Plaintiff's] replacement even before the Commission

constructively terminated [Plaintiff] .

(Doc. no. 136, p. 1 (emphasis added)). Under Georgia's

Whistleblower Statute, Plaintiff is required to prove that: (1)

Plaintiff was a public employee; (2) Defendant Georgia Government

Transparency and Campaign Finance Commission ( "Commission") is a

public employer; (3) Plaintiff disclosed violation of, or

noncompliance with, a law, rule, or regulation to her supervisor or

Defendant Commission; (4) Plaintiff's disclosure was not made with

reckless disregard for its veracity; and (5) Defendant Commission

retaliated against Plaintiff based upon the disclosure. O.C.G.A. §

45-1-4 (d) (2) ; Colon v. Fulton County, 294 Ga . 93, 95 (2013). In

this regard, Plaintiff need not prove or establish that Governor



Deal actually violated any campaign finance law. Rather, Plaintiff

essentially must prove that she disclosed a purported violation to

the Commission, resulting in retaliation. Indeed, it is unclear

whether Governor Deal can offer any relevant testimony. As it

relates to the issue of retaliation, it would appear that, as an

employee of the Commission, the best source of any information or

testimony concerning the basis of Plaintiff's purported termination

would be the members of the Commission, not Governor Deal. Nothing

in the record, save Plaintiff's assertions, suggests that Governor

Deal was involved in the decisions related to Plaintiff's

employment. Certainly, Governor Deal cannot be expected to testify-

in every purported employment matter involving the State of Georgia,

even those purportedly related to an investigation into his

campaign. Finally, the Court is left with one salient question. If

Governor Deal's testimony is crucial to Plaintiff's case, why was

Governor Deal not deposed or otherwise served with discovery

requests prior to the eve of trial? Simply put, the Court finds

that Plaintiff has failed to demonstrate that Governor Deal's

testimony is relevant or that the sought-after information cannot be

obtained from other, less burdensome sources. As such, the Court

need not address Governor Deal's remaining arguments concerning

separation of powers or the importance of the Governor's Office.



Ill . CONCLUSION

For the reasons statedr supra , the instant motion is GRANTED .

(Doc. no. 133) . Accordingly, the subject subpoena served upon

Governor Deal is HERBY QUASHED. However, the Court may re-visit the

instant motion and this Order based upon the issues and testimony

proffered during the course of the trial in the above-captioned

case.

SO ORDERED this

r
day of March, 2014, at Atlanta, Georgia.

Ural D. Glafiville, Judge

Fulton County Superior Court

Atlanta Judicial Circuit

Copies to:

BRYAN K. WEBB

40 Capital Square, SW

Atlanta, Georgia 30334

KIMBERLY A. WORTH

Five Concourse Pkwy, NE, Suite 2600

Atlanta, Georgia 303028
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IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF FULTON CQUNTY^ '

STATE OF GEORGIA /

STAGEY KALBERMAN,

Plaintiff,

vs.

GEORGIA GOVERNMENT

TRANSPARENCY AND

CAMPAIGN FINANCE

COMMISSION, f/k/a GEORGIA

STATE ETHICS COMMISSION,

HOLLY LABERGE, in her Official

capacity as Executive

Secretary of the Georgia

Transparency and Campaign

Finance Commission,

Civil Action No.:

20 12CV2 16247

Defendants

CONSENT ORDER ACKNOWLEDGING SETTLEMENT

WHEREAS, Plaintiff Stacey Kalberman ("Plaintiff) and Defendants Georgia

Government and Campaign Finance Commission and Holly LaBerge in her official

capacity ("Defendants") (collectively, the "Parties"), by and through their undersigned counsel

of record, have advised the Court that they have reached an agreement to settle the

above-captioned civil action, and the terms of their settlement have been memorialized in a

written Settlement Agreement which has been duly executed by each of the Parties, a copy of

which is attached hereto as Exhibit "A." Having reviewed the Parties' Consent Order

Acknowledging Settlement and having found its terms to be acceptable in all respects, the Court

hereby approves and adopts the Consent Order Acknowledging Settlement.

{003 $6876 )



IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED, ADJUDGED and DECREED as follows:

1 . That the parties have consented and agreed that Defendants owe Plaintiff the amount of

$1,150,000.00 (the "Settlement Amount"), to be paid according to the terms and

conditions set forth herein and in the Settlement Agreement, in compromise and

settlement ofthe non-wage compensatory damages, attorneys' fees, and litigation costs;

2. That by July 1, 2014, Defendants shall deliver two settlement checks that total the

Settlement Amount, as set forth in the Settlement Agreement: the first check made

payable to Plaintiff in the amount of $725,1 1 1.79 and the second check made payable to

Thrasher Liss & Smith, LLC IOLTA in the amount of $424,888.21 (collectively, the

"Settlement Checks"). Both settlement checks shall be delivered to:

Kimberly A. Worth

Thrasher Liss & Smith, LLC

5 Concourse Parkway, Suite 2600

Atlanta, Georgia 30328

3. That, in the event Defendants should default with respect to the payment of the

Settlement Checks due hereunder and in the Settlement Agreement, Plaintiff shall be

entitled to an ex parte Judgment against Defendants for: (i) the Settlement Amount in the

amount of $1,150,000.00, minus any interim payments made by Defendants; and (ii)

post-judgment interest calculated from the from the date of Defendants' default

hereunder, pursuant to O.C.G.A. § 7-4-12 on the total amount owed by Defendants to

Plaintiffunder sub-paragraph (i) of this Paragraph;

4. That the Court retains jurisdiction of this matter through and until either (1) Plaintiff

receives the Settlement Checks from Defendants and enters a Dismissal with Prejudice as

set forth below in Paragraph 6, or (2) Plaintiff enters and enforces upon an ex parte



Judgment that Plaintiff obtains based on Defendants* default as detailed in Paragraph 3

above;

That all notices shall be delivered by overnight delivery, hand delivery, or regular U.S.

mail, with copy via electronic mail or facsimile, addressed to the parties* respective

counsel of record as provided below;

That upon receipt ofpayment in full of the Settlement Amount of$1,150,000.00, Plaintiff

shall promptly file with the Clerk of the Court of the Fulton County Superior Court, an

appropriate and proper Dismissal with Prejudice of this action; and

That this Order shall be effective immediately upon entry by this Court.

IT IS SO ORDERED, this JJ. day ofMay^2014.

CONSENTED' OBY:

Kimberly A. Worth
Georgia Bar No. 500790

D. Barton Black
Georgia Bar No. 1 19977

Mary C. Davis

Georgia Bar No. 559990

Five Concourse Parkway
Suite 2600

Atlanta, Georgia 30328

Telephone: (404) 760-6000

Facsimile: (404)760-0225

HON. UfcAL D. GLANVILLE
JUDGE, FULTON COUNTY SUPERIOR COURT

, LLC ATTORNEY GENERAL'S OFFICE

Bryan K. Webb

Georgia Bar No. 743580
40 Capitol Square, SW

Atlanta, GA 30334-1300

Telephone: 404-656-5331

Facsimile: 404-657-9932

Attorneyfor Defendants

Attorneysfor Plaintiff



Prepared with equal input from all

counsel of record and presented by:

D. Barton Black

Georgia Bar No. 119977

Thrasher Liss & Smith, LLC

Five Concourse Parkway

Suite 2600
Atlanta, Georgia 30328

Direct: (404) 760-6000
Facsimile: (404) 760-0225



IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF FULTON COUNTY

STATE OF GEORGIA

STACEYKALBERMAN, *
*

Plaintiff, *
*

vs. * Civil Action No.:

* 2012CV216247

GEORGIA GOVERNMENT *

TRANSPARENCY AND *

CAMPAIGN FINANCE *

COMMISSION, ffk/a GEORGIA *

STATE ETHICS COMMISSION, *

HOLLY LABERGE, in her Official *

capacity as Executive *

Secretary of the Georgia *

Transparency and Campaign *

Finance Commission, *

Defendants *

STATE OF GEORGIA

COUNTY OF FULTON

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT AND FULL AND FINAL RELEASE OF CLAIMS

1.

FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION of the agreements set forth herein below, the receipt

and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, Stacey Kalbertnan, (hereinafter referred to

as "Plaintiff), for herself, her attorneys, her heirs, her executors, administrators, successors and

assigns, does hereby fully, finally and forever release and discharge the Georgia Government

Transparency and Campaign Finance Commission and Holly LaBerge in her official

capacity, and all administrators, directors, supervisors, and other officials and employees thereof

b b EXHIBIT

(0035060.2)



(hereinafter collectively referred to as "Defendants1'), of and from all claims, demands, actions,

causes of action, suits, damages, losses and expenses of any and every nature and description

whatsoever, including, but not limited to, those claims of unfair or illegal employment practices

and breach of contract asserted or which might have been asserted by or on behalf of Plaintiff

against the Defendants referenced in the case of Stacey Kalberman vs. Georgia Government

Transparency and Campaign Finance Commission, et ai, Civil Action No.: 2012-CV-216247,

pending in the Superior Court ofFulton County, except as provided herein.

2.

This settlement agreement is a full and final release of claims (hereinafter "Release11) and

it specifically includes, but not by way of limitation, all claims asserted by or on behalf of

Plaintiff against Defendants, together with any and all claims which might have been asserted by

or on behalf of Plaintiff in any suit, claim, charge of discrimination, or grievance against

Defendants for or on account of any matter or things whatsoever up to and including the date of

this Release (hereinafter "Released Claims11). This Release includes, but not by way of

limitation, any claims, suits, causes of action or grievance Plaintiff may possess against

Defendants arising under Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e et seq. (as

amended), 42 U.S.C. § 1983, O.C.G.A. § 45-M, and any other of the several state and federal

statutes relating to claims, suits, causes of action or grievances for employment discrimination

and/or employment-related deprivations of rights.

3.

Plaintiff represents and warrants that no one person other than herself is entitled to assert

any claims ofany kind or character based on or arising out of and alleged to have been suffered

by her as a consequence of her employment, contracts and relationships to date with Defendants.



Plaintiff agrees to protect and hold harmless the Defendants against any claims based upon,

arising out of, or in any way connected with any actual or purported transfer or assignment of

any claims asserted on behalf of the Plaintiff for equitable relief, damages, compensation,

attorneys fees, or any alleged violation ofany right owed to Plaintiffprior to the effective date of

this Release.

4.

In consideration for the mutual promises, covenants and agreements contained herein,

Defendants shall pay to Plaintiff, on or before July 1, 2014, the sum of $1,150,000.00

("Settlement Amount"), the amount to be paid as non-wage compensatory damages, attorneys'

fees, and litigation costs in settlement of the Released Claims. The Settlement Amount shall be

delivered in two checks, as follows:

1. The first check shall be in the amount of seven hundred twenty-five thousand, one

hundred eleven dollars and seventy-nine cents ($725,111.79) and made payable to

"Stacey Kalberman."

2. The second check that shall be in the amount of four hundred twenty-four thousand,

eight hundred eighty-eight dollars and twenty-one cents ($424,888.21) and made

payable to "Thrasher Liss & Smith, LLC IOLTA."

Both checks shall be delivered to the attention of Kimberly A. Worth at the offices of Thrasher

Liss & Smith, LLC, Five Concourse Parkway, Suite 2600, Atlanta, Georgia 30328.

5.

Defendants agree to issue an IRS Form 1099 to Plaintiff for the amount of check made

payable to her as set forth in the prior paragraph and an IRS Form 1099 to Thrasher Liss &

Smith, LLC for the amount of check made payable to her as set forth in the prior paragraph, and



Plaintiff and Thrasher Liss & Smith, LLC each agree to be responsible for and pay all federal,

state, and local taxes applicable to such payment ('taxes"). Plaintiff and Thrasher Liss & Smith,

LLC both agree to defend, indemnify, and hold Defendants harmless from and against any and

all third-party claims, together with any interest, penalties, fines or sanctions, or other remedies

assessed or imposed against Defendants that arise out of or are related to Plaintiffs or Thrasher

Liss & Smith, LLC's failure to pay any taxes applicable to the settlement proceeds.

6.

The terms and conditions set out above are in compromise settlement of disputed claims

of employment related retaliation, the validity, existence or occurrence of which is expressly

denied by the Defendants.

7.

Plaintiff affirms that the only consideration for signing this Release is the terms stated

above; moreover, that no other promise or agreement of any kind has been made to or with her

by any persons or entity whomsoever to cause her to execute this agreement, and that she fully

understands the meaning and intent of this Release, including but not limited to its final and

binding effect

8.

This agreement may not be altered, amended, or modified in any respect or particular

whatsoever, except by writing, duly executed by all parties hereto.

9.

All agreements and understandings embodied and expressed in the terms of this

agreement are contractual and are not mere recitals.

4



10.

THE UNDERSIGNED FURTHER STATE THAT THEY HAVE CAREFULLY READ

THE WITHIN AND FOREGOING SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT AND FULL AND FINAL

RELEASE OF CLAIMS AND KNOW AND UNDERSTAND THE CONTENTS THEREOF

AND THAT THEY EXECUTE THE SAME AS THEIR OWN FREE ACT AND DEED.

IN WITNESS thereof, the undersigned have hereunto set their hands and seal this

^r
dayof_ KA-^|/^2014.

STACEY KALBERMAN

Plaintiff

Date: S" \ \ t |l^

Kiml , vorth
ier Liss & Smith, LLC

attorney for Plaintiff

Date

GEORGIA GOVERNMENT

TRANSPARENCY AND CAMPAIGN

FINANCE/COMMISSION and HOLLY
LaBei^eylN HER,OFFICIAL CAPACITY

Defendants

Stacey Kalberm
By:

Title: .

hhDate: JT

Bryan K. Webb
Attorney for Defendants

Date: 3'-/^- /y

rtb^h^Gh-aiTrj—
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8/4/2014 Exclusive Interview \Mth Ethics Director Hdly LaBerge vvho says - Atlanta News, Weather, Traffic, and Sports | FOX 5

Exclusive Interv

Holly LaBerge who says Governor Deal's

staff threatened her
Posted: Jul r-f. 2014 4:11 PM EOT

Updated: Jul 15. 2014 7:16AMEDT

By Dalo Russell. FOX 5 l-Toam - bio | email

The woman at the center of the controversial Governor Deal g? campaign finance

investigation is fighting back. Holly LaBerge, the head of the slate ethics commission,

says she has done nothing wrong and she is not the governor's patsy.

In an exclusive interview with the FOX 5 l-Team, Holly LaBerge said: "If I'm a puppet

put there to make his legal problems go away, why would his legal counsel have to

call me up and threaten me? Shouldn't his legal counsel be able to say, remember the

deal, you're the puppet, we're pulling the strings."

Holly LaBerge says a top member of the Governor's cabinet threatened her and her

agency during negotiations to resolve the campaign finance g? investigation of

Governor Deal back in July of 2010.

LaBerge says the threat came one week before the Nathan Deal campaign finance

investigation was scheduled for a public hearing.

She says, while on vacation, she got a text from Governor Deal's chief of staff Chris

Riley, asking if the case can be resolved before the hearing.

LaBerge says "It was a little odd that the chief of staff was interested in lhis.,'

Then, she says she received a phone g? call from the governor's executive attorney,

Ryan Teague. She wanted a record of the call and summarized it in a memo to the

file.

The memo quotes g? Teague as saying: "it was not in the agency's best interest for

these cases to go to a hearing Monday; nor was it in their best political interest

either."

In the FOX 5 exclusive interview, Ms. LaBerge said. "I was mad. that the Governor's

legal counsel thought he could call me up and threaten me and threaten my agency."

Neither Ryan Teague nor Governor Deal would comment.

Randy Evans, who represented Governor Deal during the ethics investigation, says

there was nothing improper about the texts or phone call.
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Memo: Gov. Deal's staff interfered with ethics case

Related

By Jodie Fleischer

ATLANTA— The executive secretary of Georgia's ethics commission says two of Gov. Nathan Deal's top advisers interfered in his then-pending ethics case, urging her to agree to

settlement terms before a public hearing.

The governor and his staff have repeatedly denied any interference with the case, which settled for S3,350 in fines. Deal initially faced a proposed 570,000 in fines stemming from

alleged violations during his 2010 campaign.

Deal said last fall, "There was no involvement, no improper involvement whatsoever." FULL STATEMENT HERE.

When asked Mondayabout alleged involvement he told Channel 2's Lori Geary, "The only thing I know is ifwe wanted to have these cases broughtbefore the campaign finance

commission in a timely fashion. We felt that two years was long enough."

Ethics Commission Executive Secretary Holly LaBerge documented the contact from Deal's chief counsel Ryan Teague and Chief of Staff Chris Riley in a July 20 12 memo.

She told then-chairman of the ethics board. KeMn Abernelhy, she felt threatened by a call from Teague. the same staffer who had initially approached her about applying for Die
ethics job months before it became vacant.

The memo, obtained by Channel 2 Action News Monday, also details several text messages from Riley, urging LaBerge to settle Deal's case.

In a text message LaBerge claims Riley wrote. "Ryan said of two issues, legal fees and aircraft are not even on the table for discussion."

http://vww.wsbtv.com/news/news/local/fnemo-gov-deals-staff-interferecl-ethics-case/ngffw/ 1/2
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LaBerge also documented a call from league in which he was "acting as an intermediary to try to come to a resolution on the Deal complaints ahead of Mondays [Ethics]

Commission meeting."

LaBerge wrote that league informed her 'it was not in the agencys best interest for these cases to go to a hearing on Monday: nor was it in their best political interest either."

LaBerge went on to document that she felt league threatened her bysaying the Ethics Commission might not receive a promised increase in its authority if the case wasnt

resolved that weekend.

"I know of no communications along those lines." Deal told Geary on Monday, "I haventseen anything that would evidence that."

The memo was likely turned over to federal prosecutors with other subpoenaed records in January of this year.

LaBerge was one of five current and former ethics staffers who received grand jury subpoenas for all records relevant to the governor's case, after former staffers John Hair and

Elisabeth Murray-Obertein claimed LaBerge ordered the destruction of records and bragged about the governor 'owing her* because she helped make his case go away.

Those statements came to light during depositions in two recently settled lawsuits.

Former State Ethics Commission secretary StaceyKalberm an and deputy secretary Sherilyn Streicker both sued after suddenly losing their jobs while pursuing the ethics

investigation against Deal. They alleged he directed their ousting and replaced them with LaBerge to affect his case.

Deal responded in September saying, "All of these allegations, are totally unsubstantiated and primarily are false."

But in May. the state agreed to payKalberman $1.15 million after a Fulton County jury agreed with her claim that she was forced from office for investigating Deal's case.

The state also agreed to settle Streicker's case for$1 million, Hair's case for $410,000 and Murray-Obertein will be paid $477,500.

The settlement money comes from the state's self-funded insurance program funded with taxpayer dollars.

Deal, Riley, and league were all on the potential witness list for Streicker's case before it settled.

LaBerge's attorney says the attorney general's office, which provided the memo to Channel 2 Monday, urged her not to mention the memo during her testimony in the Kaiberman

case.

Deal told Geary he hasn't seen the memo and could not comment specifically about it until he sees what it says.
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By Hand Delivery

Hon. Samuel S. Olens

State Law Department

40 Capitol Square, S.W.

Atlanta, GA 30334-1300

Re: Open Records Act Violation by the Georgia Government Transparency and

Campaign Finance Commission

Dear Attorney General Olens:

On behalf of The Atlanta Journal-Constitution and its reporter, Aaron Gould Sheinin, we

write regarding an apparent Open Records Act violation by the Georgia Government

Transparency and Campaign Finance Commission ("the Commission").

Specifically, on July 26, 2012, Mr. Sheinin sent an Open Records Act request to the

Commission's Executive Director Holly LaBerge seeking the following: "Access to and copies

of all records, including interviews, audits, e-mails, faxes, and any and all documents including

case files related to Case 2010-0039 and Case 2010-0033c."

Case 2010-0039 involved allegations that Governor Deal improperly used state campaign

funds to pay for his legal defense relating to a U.S. House of Representatives investigation, and

Case 2010-0033c involved allegations that Governor Deal's campaign improperly paid a

company in which Deal had an ownership interest for air travel. Both cases were resolved at a

July 23, 2012 Commission meeting.

In response to the Journal-Constitution's request, Ms. LaBerge responded on behalf of

the Commission by providing the Journal-Constitution with some records on August 8, 2012,

and with additional records on August 23, 2012.

Recent disclosures, however, demonstrate that the production of records by the

Commission was woefully incomplete. As you know, it has now come to light that Ms. LaBerge

memorialized certain text messages and phone conversations with the Governor's staff in a

"Memorandum of Record" dated July 17, 2012. Additionally, Ms. LaBerge apparently

forwarded certain text messages related to the cases to a personal email.

ATLANTA AUGUSTA CHARLOTTE DENVER LOS ANGELES NEW YORK RALEIGH SAN DIEGO SAN FRANCISCO

SEATTLE SHANGHAI SIUCON VALLEY STOCKHOLM TOKYO WALNUT CREEK WASHINGTON WINSTON-SALEM



Hon. Sara Olens

July 23, 2014

Page 2

Neither the "Memorandum of Record" nor any other records memorializing such

communications were provided to the Journal-Constitution in response to its Open Records Act

request despite being clearly responsive.

Based on the facts set forth above, we submit that the Commission violated the Open

Records Act through its incomplete production of records. We acknowledge your recent

statement explaining that your office is still in an "attorney-client relationship" with Ms.

LaBerge thereby limiting your ability to discuss this matter. Nonetheless, we ask that your

Office take all necessary measures to enforce compliance with the Open Records Act.

We have included herewith a copy of the Memorandum and relevant correspondence. If

we can provide any further information, please do not hesitate to contact either of us.

Sincerely,

Thomas M. Clyde

Lesli N. Gaither

Attachments

Tab 1 : July 26, 2012 Open Records Act Request

Tab 2: July 30, 2012 Email from H. LaBerge to A. Gould Sheinin
Tab 3: H. LaBerge "Memorandum ofRecord" dated July 17, 2012
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For immediate release:

July 15, 2014

Statement by Attorney General Olens on Ethics Commission Matters

My office has received a number of questions regarding the news this week about the Ethics

Commission and Holly LaBerge's Memorandum of Record. I want to address as many of them

as I can now.

From the outset, though, I want to make clear that many of those questions relate directly to the

legal representation this office has provided Ms. LaBerge and the Ethics Commission in the

context of litigation. This office is still in an attorney-client relationship with Ms. LaBerge in her

official capacity, and that means the full answer to some of the questions you have would require

the disclosure of attorney-client privileged information. Yesterday, we formally requested that

she waive that privilege so that we could set the record straight, but to date we have not received
that waiver. Unless and until that privilege is waived, I am severely limited in the extent to

which I can fully answer some questions.

I know this is frustrating to you; I can assure you, I find it even more frustrating.

Ms. LaBerge's memo is dated July 17, 2012. After our office was given the memo in August

2013, our civil trial team reviewed the memo to determine if it was subject to the pending
discovery requests. Our chief prosecutor also reviewed it the week we received it to determine if

any criminal laws had been violated if the allegations in the memorandum were true. I was made
aware of the memo after our chief prosecutor concluded his review and determined that the

allegations in the memorandum did not constitute crimes under state law. In addition, our civil
lawyers determined it was not responsive to the discovery request in the civil litigation.

In late 2013, federal subpoenas were issued to current and former employees of the
Commission. Our office explained to Ms. LaBerge that we did not represent her with respect to

responding to the subpoena and explained to her and her private lawyer that the only thing we

could tell her is to cooperate fully, and that the memo was responsive.

There have been several questions about the responsiveness of the memo to certain specific
discovery requests:

Ms. Kalberman requested "correspondence" between Ms. LaBerge and the Governor's
Office. The memo is not correspondence; it is a document written by Ms. LaBerge and

retained by her. It did not become correspondence when she gave us a copy 13 months later.

Ms. Streicker requested documents "concerning the violation of any law, rule, or regulation"

by Governor Deal, "including all complaints filed with the Defendant, all files concerning the

investigation of such complaints, and all documents obtained as part of such

investigations." The memo was not about violations of law, rule, or regulation, it was not a



complaint, it was not concerning the investigation of a complaint, and it was not a document

obtained as part of an investigation.

I recognize that this may seem like a technical response. Let me be clear - I wish that a request

had been issued to which the memorandum was responsive. That would have been easier for the

office. But the lawyers in my office represent the State and its agencies, and have a legal duty to

do so zealously. Their obligation is to work with our clients to produce all documents responsive

to a plaintiffs request; it is not their obligation to produce documents that plaintiffs haven't

asked for. I also recognize that plaintiffs' counsel may disagree with our office's position on

this. I am not surprised. Lawyers can and often do disagree about almost anything.

I will say this - it is in the public record that these matters were testified to in some detail by Ms.

Murray-Obertein in her deposition (excerpt attached). Following Ms. Murray-Obertein's

testimony. Plaintiffs' lawyers chose not to ask Ms. LaBerge any questions about this issue either

in discovery or at trial.

The news reports of the last day may well have uncovered a different discovery-related problem,

however. During the interview of Ms. LaBerge on Fox 5 last night, Ms. LaBerge said that she

forwarded text messages from the Governor's Office to her personal email - and an image of one

of those messages was then shown on the screen. That concerns me, because no one in my office

was aware that such emails exist. After an agreement with Plaintiffs to produce all work-related

emails from Ms. LaBerge' s personal email account, our office turned over to plaintiffs every

personal email that Ms. LaBerge provided to us. The text messages in Ms. LaBerge's email

account shown in the interview last night would almost certainly have been responsive and

should have been produced. My office is taking immediate steps to learn why we never received

the emails.

We have been asked a number of questions about how our office prepared Ms. LaBerge for her

testimony with regard to the memo. Any suggestion that any employee of our office advised

anyone to testify less than truthfully in any way is categorically false. As much as I want to

respond more specifically on this point, attorney-client privilege prevents me from doing so.

I am aware of renewed requests to appoint some sort of independent attorney to investigate these

matters. As I have previously stated, two other investigations - one federal, one state - are

currently pending. This office has been representing Ms. LaBerge and the Ethics Commission in
related matters. The only reasons to interject this office into the investigations at this point are
political.

Xxx

Lauren Kane

Office of the Attorney General

Georgia Department of Law

(404)463-7540

lkane@law.ga.gov
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PARKS I ~HESIN I WALBERT 

A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION 

A. Lee Porks, Jr. 
lporks@pcwlowiirm.com 

July 16, 2014 

Via Fir st C lass Mail a nd E -mail: bwebbc@law.ga.gov 

Bryan K. Webb 
Senior Assistant Attorney General 
S tatc o f Georgia. 0 ffi cc or the I\ ttorney Genera I 
40 Capitol Square. SW 
Atlanta. GA 30334 

RE: Holly LaBerge 

Mr. Webb: 

75 l 4'h Street, 26•h Floor 
Atlanta, GA 30309 

T: 404.873.8000 F: 404.873.8050 
www.pcwlawfirm.com 

This letter responds to your July 15. 20 14 e-mail correspondence. as well as to 
General O lens' press release that was provided to the media shortl y ali.er our receipt of your 
e-mai l yesterday. 

Our client met \\'ith you in June 20 13. when d iscovery for the Kalberman and 
Streicker matters was sti ll open. At that time. she informed you of the existence of the 
Memorandum. Ms. LaBerge offered to return to her office to obtain a copy of the 
Memorandum. but you stated that you did not want to review it at that time. Someti me not 
long thereafter. you called Ms. LaBergc and told her that you .. v;ere ready to see the 
Memo ... Ms. LaBerge thrn delivered the Memorandum to your office by hand that same 
day. 

General Olen's reliance on a technical exp lanation as to why the Memorandum. a 
document admittedly central to pending cases involving al legations of improper pressure 
tactics by Governor Deal"s office to force the Eth ics Commission to make complaints 
pending against him re lating lo certain contributions to fund his 20 I 0 Deal For Governor 
Campaign ··go away ... was not produced falls for short of the duty o f candor owed to the 
courts by attorneys. particularly the Attorney Genera l. \vho is elected to represent all the 
ci ti zens of Georgia. At the very least. the /\ ttorncy Genera l should have requested that the 
Court conduct an in camera rev iew or the document (meaning outside the presence of the 
plaintifrs attorneys) so that a judge. and not an interested party, cou ld determine whether, in 
the interests of justice. it should be produced. Thal is the straight- forward and most common 
way lav.ryers handle such matters. But. instead. the Memorandum was kept secret. 



Bryan K. Webb 
RE: Holly LaBerge 

July 16, 2014 
Page 2 of 3 

Ascribing lo the old maxim that the best dctense is to be on Lhe offense. General 
Olens has now attacked Ms. LaBergc. claiming she did not produce lo his office the e-mails 
and texts that she pro,·ided the media. As you arc mvare. the Memorandum that admittedly 
was provided to you from Ms. La Berge as a representative of the Attorney General expressly 
REFERENCES, DESCRIBES AND QUOTES the text messages at issue, going as far to 
provide the date. time. content and sender of the multiple text messages fi·om Chris Riley and 
Ryan Teague. They were not hidden or concealed by Ms. LaBerge. But no one from the 
Office of the Attorney General ever asked Ms. Lalkrge lor the original tex t messages after 
they received the Memorandum. no doubt !caring such a request would only generate more 
documents that might wel l defeat the questionable decision to withhold the Memorandum 
based on the reed thin claim that it was nol ·•correspondence'· or part of the Ethics 
Commission' s Deal investigation fi le. 

With respect to the personal e-mails contammg the text messages, our client is 
adamant that she told the Office of the Attorney General about those e-mai Is when providing 
you vvith other e-mai ls thaL were responsive LO lhc subpoena related to her personal Gmail 
account. But the e-mails containing lhe bodies 01· Lhe text messages were sent from Ms. 
LaBerge 's telephone to her personal e-mai l accounl. She was told by the Office of the 
Allorney General thaL Lhe e-mai ls conlaining Lhe texl messages were not responsive to the 
subpoena because the .. e-mai ls'' did not originate from Chris Riley or Ryan Teague. This 
advice ce11ainly seems consistent \Vith the Attorney General' s willingness to parse words 
when determining the responsive nature of documents like the Memorandum at the heart of 
this matter. 

Ms. LaBergc was being represented by the Office of the Attorney General in her 
official capacity as the Executive Director or the Eth ics Commission. She informed the 
Orfice of the Attorney General of the relevanL information and documentation, and she 
reasonably relied on her legal counsel' s recommendations and advice. The overriding 
question remains: why would the Office of the Attorney General ever become complicit in 
Lhis cover-up of evidence documenting wrongdoing by the Governor. and/or those speaking 
for him. in trying to get che cases pending before the Ethics Commission either dismissed or 
settled for a song? 

ALP/gfw 



Bryan K. Webb 
RE: Holly LaBerge 

July 16, 2014 
Page 3of3 

Cc: Georgia Government Transparency and Campaign Finance Commission Members 
• Hillary Stringfellow, Esq., Vice Chair, hstringfellow@gilbertharrelllaw.com 
• Heath Garrett, Esq., Member, heath@ssg-south.com 
• De1U1is T. Cathey, Esq. , Member, dcathey@.catheyandstrain.com 
• R. Lawton Jordan III, Esq., Member, rljordan3@gmail.com 
• Mary Paige Adams, Esq., Member, marypaigeadams@gmail.com 
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IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF FULTON COUNTY

STATE OF GEORGIA

CIVIL ACTION

FILE NO. 20 12CV2 16247

STACEY KALBERMAN,

Plaintiff,

v.

GEORGIA GOVERNMENT

TRANSPARENCY AND CAMPAIGN

FINANCE COMMISSION, f/k/a GEORGIA

STATE ETHICS COMMISSION, et al.,

Defendants.

AFFIDAVIT OF KIMBERLY A. WORTH

My name is Kimberly A. Worth and I give this Affidavit willingly and under no duress. I

am over the age of eighteen (18) and a resident of the State of Georgia, and competent to give

oaths. All statements in this Affidavit are made based upon my personal knowledge and review

of itemized records. I give this Affidavit for use in any hearing or other court proceedings

regarding the above-styled action.

Mv Background and Experience

1.

I am an attorney licensed to practice law in the State ofGeorgia and am a partner with the

law firm of Thrasher Liss & Smith, LLC. I was admitted to the State Bar of Georgia in 1991

and have twenty-three (23) years of experience in handling both civil and criminal cases.

2.

1 am a member in good standing of the State Bar of Georgia. I am admitted to practice in

all state and superior courts in Georgia, the United States District Courts for the Northern and

Middle Districts of Georgia, and the United States Court of Appeals for the Eleventh Circuit of

(00]7]0>l. I



Georgia. I am admitted in good standing in each of the courts listed above and have never been

the subject ofany disciplinary proceeding.

3.

In 1991, 1 received my Juris Doctorate degree from Georgia State University.

4.

I served as a Chief Senior Assistant District Attorney for Fulton County, Georgia from

2000 to 2001, where I served as a felony prosecutor for the State of Georgia. Since leaving the

District Attorney's office to pursue private practice, I have been employed by two (2) large

employment law firms. I joined the firm of Thrasher Liss & Smith, LLC in 2005 and have

focused my practice primarily in commercial litigation with a focus on employment litigation.

5.

During my twenty-three (23) years of legal practice I have personally handled numerous

employment related litigation matters as lead counsel for plaintiffs and defendants in both state

and federal courts throughout Georgia. In 2014, I was lead counsel in a multi-plaintiff

employment defense case, where I successfully obtained a defense verdict after four years of

protracted litigation. This case was then followed by the instant action, wherein I obtained a

plaintiffs verdict, which awarded compensatory damages to Ms. Kalberman of $700,000.

Mv Hourly Rate

6.

My current hourly rate, for employment related cases, set by the firm based upon my skill

and experience, is $300 to $350 per hour.



7.

Based upon my experience and the hourly rates of attorneys with comparable experience

and skill practicing in the metro Atlanta area, 1 am seeking an hourly rate of $300 per hour in this

case. 1 believe this rate is commensurate with the market rates for attorneys of my experience

and expertise in the metro Atlanta area.

Mv Work on this Case

8.

I have served as lead counsel in this matter since June 201 1 and have been responsible for

strategic decisions in this case during the pendency of the matter.

9.

My work in this matter, in concert with my colleagues, included fact investigation,

representation at hearings, preparation of pleadings, conducting discovery, taking and defending

depositions, preparing and responding to motions, pretrial preparations and strategy, trial work,

and post-trial work.

10.

During my representation of Ms. Kalberman from June 2011, through the trial and

post-trial work completion in June 2014, my firm incurred $627,759.25 in attorney's fees.

11.

Additionally, Ms. Kalberman incurred $9,478.39 in litigation expenses.

12.

Ms. Kalberman agreed to compromise her claim for attorneys' fees and litigation

expenses, which she was due as a prevailing party in this matter, in exchange for Defendants'

agreement to forego an appeal in this matter.



13.

Under that same agreement, Ms. Kalberman agreed to compromise her claim of $65,000

in back pay, which she was due as a prevailing party.

14.

Thus, under this agreement, Ms. Kalberman agreed to compromise her remaining

damages of $702,237.64 (attorneys' fees in the amount of $627,759.25, litigation expenses in the

amount of $9,478.39, and back pay in the amount of $65,000.00), for a total of $450,000.00 to be

paid by Defendants.

15.

In July 2014, three months following the conclusion of the trial of this case, I learned

through media reports that LaBerge had additional responsive, probative documentation that was

not produced to me or my client during the litigation.

16.

Based on this newly discovered evidence, my client instructed me to file a motion

seeking sanctions against Defendants and/or their Counsel for these grave discovery abuses and

fraud upon the Court.

17.

Thus, Ms. Kalberman has incurred additional attorneys' fees in responding to this newly

discovered evidence and drafting a motion seeking sanctions.

18.

All the time for which I have billed since July 2014 was in my judgment reasonable and

necessary to provide proper representation to Stacey Kalberman in this matter. Time records



reflecting the time I devoted to the representation of Ms. Kalberman since the revelation of the

discovery abuses and fraud upon the Court are attached hereto as Exhibit KW-1.

Mv Billing Practices and PlaintifFs Time and Expense Records

19.

It is my normal practice to contemporaneously record my billable time using our firm's

time-keeping software, and I followed that practice during this case.

20.

All the time which I have billed was, in my professional judgment, necessary to provide

effective representation to my client.

21.

I have personally reviewed all of our firm's time and billing records in this matter and

have exercised billing discretion in adjusting those records to remove excessive, redundant or

otherwise unnecessary time. All of the remaining time billed by our firm on this matter was, in

my professional judgment, necessary to provide proper representation to Ms. Kalberman.

22.

The time records attached at Exhibit KW-1 reflect time recorded contemporaneously at

the time services were rendered or shortly thereafter and input into a computer program that

maintains those records for our firm. It is my firm's standard procedure and practice to keep

track of attorney and paralegal time spent on a daily basis as to each matter. The entries

recorded provide the best evidence as to the time and efforts expended in this matter.

23.

I carefully reviewed all the time billed for each lawyer and paralegal in this firm and

removed any time spent which, in my judgment, was not necessary or was duplicative or



excessive. After reducing our fees and deducting time, we reduced our fees 10% and wrote

down over $5,000. In fact, Mr. Thrasher reduced his rate from $350 per hour to $300 per hour

for the work he performed in this matter, which is a substantial reduction in his fee.

24.

H. Grady Thrasher IV is a partner with our law firm and we billed his time in this matter

at $300 per hour. Mr. Thrasher received his Bachelor of Arts degree from the University of

Georgia in 1992 and received his J.D. degree from Mercer University School of Law in 1995.

Mr. Thrasher was admitted to practice law in Georgia in 1995. The rate billed for Mr. Thrasher

is reasonable and customary for an attorney with his experience and skills in the metro Atlanta

area.

25.

D. Barton Black is an associate with our law firm and we bill his time at $240 per hour.

Mr. Black graduated with honors from Georgia Institute of Technology in 2000 with a degree in

Industrial Engineering and received his J.D. with honors from Walter F. George School of Law

at Mercer University in 2007. Mr. Black was admitted to practice law in Georgia in 2007 and

works in our firm's civil litigation group representing clients in a wide range of complex civil

litigation matters including employment related disputes. The rate billed for Mr. Black is

reasonable and customary for an attorney with his experience and skills in the metro Atlanta

area.

26.

Erin V. Elwood is an associate with our law firm and we bill her time at $175 per hour.

Ms. Elwood received her Bachelor of Arts degree, magna cum laude, from Agnes Scott College

in 2006 and received her J.D. degree, summa cum laude, from Georgia State University College



of Law in 2010. Ms. Elwood was admitted to practice law in Georgia in 2010 and works

primarily in our commercial litigation group, including employment matters and contract

disputes. The rate billed for Ms. Elwood is reasonable and customary for an attorney with her

experience and skills in the metro Atlanta area.

27.

Katy Aultman is an associate with our law firm and we bill her time at $225 per hour.

Ms. Aultman received her Bachelor of Science degree with highest honors from Georgia Institute

of Technology in 2001 and received her J.D. degree, magna cum laude, from Wake Forest

University College of Law in 2010. Ms. Aultman was admitted to practice law in Georgia in

2014 and works primarily in our employment litigation group. The rate billed for Ms. Aultman

is reasonable and customary for an attorney with her experience and skills in the metro Atlanta

area.

28.

I believe I am competent to form an opinion concerning the range of rates and the fees

available for employment-related and retaliation cases in Georgia. In my opinion, the rates

charged for each lawyer and paralegal and the amount of time spent by our firm was reasonable

and customary for the various tasks performed and the level of skill and expertise required for

this matter.

29.

The total amount of fees incurred by our firm since the revelation of newly discovered

evidence is $47,349.84 through August 3, 2014. We will supplement this amount for all

additional fees incurred after August 3, 2014, if the Court deems that sanctions are appropriate.



30.

Finally, our firm incurred reasonable costs and expenses in the total amount of $174.34

while pursuing these sanctions against Defendants and/or their Counsel.

31.

The hourly rates and fees billed and the costs and expenses set forth above and in the

attached records are reasonable and necessary given the effort that was required to review the

entire record of this case and prepare a motion for sanctions.

The Proceedings Were Expanded Unnecessarily

32.

During the discovery period, 1 was contacted by an employee at the State Ethics

Commission who told me that LaBerge (and possibly several other employees) were using their

personal email accounts at the Commission to circumvent the Open Records Act.

33.

Upon learning this information, I contacted Assistant Attorney General Bryan Webb and

advised Mr. Webb that I planned to subpoena LaBerge' s personal Gmail account so that I could

determine if there were documents relevant to my client's claims that were not maintained in

LaBerge's state-issued Commission email account.

34.

Mr. Webb asked that we consider withdrawing the subpoenas as there were sensitive

materials maintained on the employees' personal e-mail accounts that were not relevant to my

client's claims.



35.

In a showing of good faith, and in the interest of trying to be respectful of personal

information not relevant to Ms. Kalberman's claims, I agreed to resolve this discovery dispute

with Mr. Webb. The agreement provided that I would withdraw the subpoenas seeking access to

all of the employees' personal e-mail accounts in exchange for their agreement to produce their

work related emails. Because LaBerge was a party to this action who had been served with

discovery requests that had been propounded directly to her, we agreed that, in addition to the

work-related emails in her Gmail account, LaBerge would also review the Gmail account to

identify and produce all documents that were responsive to the discovery requests that had been

propounded directly to her.

36.

Thereafter, Defendants produced a disc which purportedly included all of the documents

that were identified on the employees' personal e-mail accounts in addition to the emails that

were responsive to LaBerge's discovery requests.

37.

At that time, Defendants represented to me that all responsive e-mails had been produced

pursuant to this agreement and under Defendants' discovery obligations.

38.

Many of the decisions that I made in trying to prosecute Ms. Kalberman's claims were a

direct result of the lack of information that I had at the time. For example, I did not take the

deposition of Governor Nathan Deal in this action as I had no direct link between his office and

LaBerge.



39.

As my client was responsible for payment of all costs incurred in this action, I also tried

to be very careful that I did not increase her costs unnecessarily and therefore I focused on the

evidence that had been produced to me in this action.

40.

I have since learned from media reports and investigations that LaBerge did not produce

several responsive e-mails, including e-mails preserving text message correspondence between

herself and representatives of the Governor's Office which she has described as 'threats" from

the Governor's Office to settle the Governor's cases before the Commission. In addition,

LaBerge failed to produce any of the emails or materials documenting her receipt of a

recommendation to Leadership Georgia by Governor Deal, and a jocular exchange between

herself and Chris Riley suggesting that the Governor's Office preferred LaBerge over her

predecessor, Ms. Kalberman.

41.

These documents were responsive to our discovery requests seeking correspondence

between LaBerge and the Governor's Office and should have been produced by Defendants.

42.

Additionally, these documents should have been produced pursuant to the agreement with

Defendants, wherein Ms. Kalberman withdrew her subpoena seeking these e-mails in exchange

for Defendants' promise that they would produce all such e-mails from LaBerge' s private e-mail

account.
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43.

Prior to trial. Defendants filed a motion in limine seeking to exclude evidence relating to

LaBerge's resolution of the Deal complaints, despite having exclusive knowledge that LaBerge

felt "threatened" by the Governor's Office mere days before the hearing resolving those

complaints.

44.

During the hearing on Defendants' Motion in Limine, the Court instructed me to be

careful about LaBerge's testimony or it could be subject to exclusion based on relevance.

45.

The Court's instruction affected my trial strategy as I did not want to create grounds for

an appeal. I warned several witnesses to avoid testifying about the specific areas Defendants

sought to exclude.

46.

I was very cautious in my questioning of the witnesses to avoid causing a mistrial or

creating a basis for an appeal. In fact, I specifically did not examine LaBerge on the resolution of

the Deal complaints at trial as 1 was concerned that this evidence would create a basis for appeal.

47.

Following the verdict, many of the jurors explained to me that they initially had a higher

number in damages to award to Ms. Kalberman but they had to agree to reduce the number.

48.

In addition and more importantly, had Ms. Kalberman known about the substance of the

withheld evidence, her negotiating posture would have been stronger, and possibly a trial could

have been avoided altogether.

11



49.

Furthermore, I hereby certify that I conferred with opposing counsel in a good faith effort

to resolve the matters concerning the evidence withheld during discovery, in accordance with

U.S.C.R. 6.4. I conferred with opposing counsel in the form of a letter attached hereto as

Exhibit KW-2 and again in various telephone conversations and emails.

FURTHER, Affiant sayeth not.

Subscribed to and sworn before me

on this^_ day of_ .2014

in the presence of:

ary Public

[NQTAIUAL SEAL!

A. Worth

12



Thr(isher Liss & Smith, LLC
Five Concourse Parkway

Suite 2600

Atlanta, GA 30328

Ph:(404) 760-6000 •ax: (404) 760-0225

Staccv Kalberman August 4, 2014

Attention:

RE:

File#;

Inv #:

3201-004

Settle

DATE DESCRIPTION

Jul- 10- 14 Reviewed doeumcnls/discs produced in case.

Jul-l 1-14 Office conference with Ms. Worlhl

Ireview legal resources

Courtesy Discount

II O U RS AM O UNT LAWYE R

5.20

2.50

-1.80

910.00

750.00

-540.00

EVE

1G'

-1G

Confer with K. Worth. Esq., G. Thrasher. Esq.

and E. Elwood, Esq. on several

Kalberman/Dcal issues

Conferences with K. Worth, B. Black, and G.

Tlirasher.

Onkeconlbrence^

j review lega
resources

Jul- 13- 14 Review and analyze the RPDs and ROGGs to

Holly LaBeige and correspond with K. Worth.

Esq. concerning same

Jul- 14-14 Office conference with Ms. Worth; review

newly disclosed evidence of potential

discovery violations

Courtesy Discount

Confer with K. Worth, Esq., E. Elwood. Esq.,

and K. Aultman. Esq. on the Deal

2.80

2.20

3.00

0.50

1.50

-0.50

6.20

672.00

185.00

900.00

20.00

450.00

-150.00

.488.00

DBB

EVE

RAW

DBB

HGT

1 1GT

DRR

EXHIBIT



Invoice #: Scale i^mc 2 Auuusi 4. 2014

1-15-14

.1 iil-16-14

Invcsligalion and related issues; review and

analyze documents from 11. LaBerge; research

the duly to supplement and confer with K.
Worth and E. El wood on same

Conference with K. Worth. Performed legal

research.

Review and calls

Conference with K. Worth reuardins

Review legal resources; olTice conference with

Ms. Worth

Courtesy Discount

Confer numerous limes with E. Elwood, Esq.,

K. Worth, Esq.. G. Thrasher, Esq., and K.

Aullman, Esq. on the LaBerge interview and

iheAUomcvGencmfss^

with Elwood. K. Worth, and K. Aullman,

Conferences with K. Worth and B. Black.

Phone conference with S. Kalbcrman and K.

Worth. Various phone con fermrr^ PerfnrmcH

; viewed arliclesl

Jul- 17- 14

Meetings and draft release with respect to

discovery violations against the Attorney

GeneraPs office

Conference with K. Worth. B Black. E.

Elwood

Review legal resources: office conference with

Ms. Wortif

Performed legal research. Conferences with

K. Worth, B. Black, and R. Aullman.

Reviewed press articles.

In office review of issues with counsel to

discuss legal options

Office conference with Ms. Worth: review

3.70

2.90

0.80

2.00

-1.50

9.30

5.70

2.50

.10

3.40

2.30

.20

647.50

870.00

180.00

600.00

-450.00

2.232.00

997.50

3.90 1.170.00

562.50

330.00

595.00

690.00

160.00

EVE

RAW

KEA

HGT

HGT

DBB

EVE

RAW

REA

1GT

EVE

RAW

1GT

Review recent information and news articles 8.10 1.944.00 DBB



Sclilc Paue 3 August 4, 2014

limes with K. Worth, l:sq. and others on the
next steps to lake in this case; J

BOpcn Records Act and the
penalties for failing to comply with same;

research Open Records Act. violations, and

remedies

Conferences with K. Worth, K. Aultman. D.

Black. Performed leual research.

In office meelinus with counsel to

2.60

3.00

455.00

900.00

EVE

RAW

Jul- 18- 14

Jul- 19- 14

Courtesy Discount

Conference with K^VoriM^31acl^^^^

Elwood regarding

discovery violations

Researching case law on motions filed

pursuant to OCGA 9-15-14 in cases resolved

pursuant to a settlement agreement

Review case law from E. Elwood, Esq. and

confer with her on same; review

correspondence with B. Webb in March/April

2013 concerning the subpoena to the gmail

account of 1 1. LaBerge;^^^^H
con fcnuimemu^ime^^i

Vorlh, Esq. IT" Elwood. and K. Aultman.
Esq. concerning the current strategy; review

new information concerning this case

Courtesy Discount

Continued legal research and began draflim

motion.

Telephone conference; review legal resources

incident to decision to seek Sanctions against

the Attorney General "s office for abusive

litigation

Conference with K. Worth and E. Elwood:

Research effect of settlement agreement on

motions under OCGA 9-15-14; Consult with

Continued drafting motion for sanctions.

Continued leual research.

¦1.50

3.00

2.30

4.20

¦1.40

5.60

3.60

2.50

8.00

-450.00

675.00

517.50

.008.00

-336.00

980.00

.080.00

562.50

.400.00

RAW

REA

REA

DBB

DBB

EVE

RAW

REA

EVE



Invoice ?7:

Jul-20-14

Settle Paite 4

Jul-21-14

Continued drafting motion for sanctions and

legal research.

Prepare supporting documents for motion for

sanctions: Phone conference with \l. 1:1 wood

Office conference with Ms. Worth: review

news reports and invesliualc

Courtesy Discount

Review news articles and new information

conccring the LaBcrge memo and the Deal

response; confer with 1:. FJwood, Esq.. K.

Worth. Esq., K. Aullman. Esq.. and G.

Thrasher, Esq. on the Motion for Sanctions

and the evidence supporting same; analyze the

defenses asserted by the Attorney General's

office and compare to Plaintiffs Document

Requests and Subpoena

Courtesy Discount

Continued drafting motion for sanctions.

In office meetings with respeel

1.40

1.20

1.50

-0.50

5.80

¦2.20

8.20

2.90

August 4. 2014

245.00 EVE

270.00 K.EA

450.00 1IGT

-150.00

.392.00

-528.00

.435.00

870.00

1 IG'f

DBB

DBB

EVE

RAW

Jul-22-14

Confer with C. Miccli regarding fee slalemcnl

in support of sanctions motion; conference

with K. Worth, E. Elwood. and D. Barton

Black regarding sanctions motion research and

arguments

Office conference with Ms. Worth to discuss

motion strategy

Strategizc several limes with R. Worth, Esq.,

G. Thrasher, Esq., E. Elwood, Esq. and others

on

2.50 562.50 REA

Courtesy Discount

Continued draflinu motion.

In office meeting to discuss

Courtesy Discount

1.00

3.70

-1.50

7.40

3.00

¦0.80

300.00

888.00

-360.00

,295.00

900.00

¦240.00

IG'f

DBB

DBB

EVE

RAW

RAW



Invoice ft: Selilc Paue 5 August 4. 2014

Jul-23-14

Jul-24-14

Jul-25-14

Conference with Ms. Kalberman and Ms.

Worth; review legal resources

Review and analyze new articles and

information on the LaBergc memo; confer

with K. Worth. Esq. and others on

2.00 600.00

Completed inliiaUlmlu^nnolion. Phone

conference witli^^mmConfcrncce with
Performed legal research.

Conference with ^^^^^^^^Hfollow-up
with Ms. Kalberman; prepare letter

Courtesy Discount

Research case law or

Review and revise good faith letter and confer

with Ms. Worth

Courtesy Discount

Confer several with K. Worth. Esq.. K.

Aultman. Esq. and E. Elwood. Esq. on the

Conference with K. Aultman and K. Worth.

Reviewed and began revisions to

correspondence.

Review letter to Mr. Webb and changes to

same

Confer with K. Worth

Black regarding letter

to letter to

Phone conference witl

conference with

wood. and B.

Revisions

office

Review and finalize the good faith letter to

Attorney General: confer numerous limes with

K. Worth. Esq., K. Aultman, Esq.. E. Elwood,

Esq., and A, Gerardo on same

Final review of letter. Reviewed

correspondence and documents.

5.30 1.272.00

5.80

6.90

¦1.00

2.50

1.40

-1.40

3.20

1.20

2.40

3.60

0.70

2.40

0.40

1.015.00

2.070.00

-300.00

562.50

420.00

-420.00

768.00

210.00

720.00

810.00

210.00

576.00

1GT

DBB

EVE

KAW

KAW

KEA

MOT

HGT

DBB

EVE

KAW

KEA

HGT

DBB

70.00 EVE



Invoice #: Sciile ciue Auuusl 4. 2014

Jiil-26-14

Jul-28-14

Jiil-29-14

Calhwuul emails regarding	

1 review final of same and iransnul:
receive and review responstM^ame;

correspondence with is to

same

Revisions to letter 10

Correspond withH^^^^^H follow u|)
with Mr. Black as to issues concerning Motion

for Sanctions

Confer several limes \vi

Brief conference call: in office meeting as to

status of movinu forward; confer with Ms.

for same: draft correspondence tol

to same; begin review of j

Office conference with Ms. Worth recard ins

Confer several times with K. Worth, fisq., 1

Blwood, Bsq. and K. Aultman. Bsci. on the

conversl! lion

2.90 870.00 KAW

1.10

0.80

2.40

2.90

247.50 KBA

240.00 KAW

576.00

870.00

.00 300.00

.80 432.00

DBB

KAW

IGT

DBB

Conferences with K. Worth and B. Black

regarding

Performed legal research.

Conference with|||m^|ind reviewl

Confer with K. Worth. B. Black. B. Blwood

regard in si

Jul-30-14 Conference with K. Worth regard in

Begin edits to Motion for Sanctions

Jul-31-14 Office conference with Ms. Worth regarding

2.60

2.00

1.00

0.40

1.10

1.60

455.00

600.00

225.00

70.00

330.00

480.00

Courtesy Discount -0.60 -180.00

BYE

KAW

KBA

BYE

KAW

1 IGT

I IGT



Invoice if: Settle Paue 7 August 4. 2014

Auq-0 1-14

Aug-03-14

Auq-04- 1 4

Review and revise the Kalberman AlTidavii;
confer with E. Elwood, Esq. on same

Drafted affidavits of S. Kalberman and K.

Worth.

Conference calls

other

review and edit Ms. Kalbcrmaifs affidavit in

supporl ofMolion lb r Sanc lionsand o l her
issues: J		|law for| | review
courts order related to quashing the subpoena

of Coverno^DeaMn office meeting with Mr.

Thrasher mmj follow up mi^jev^j]
Kalberman

Courtesy Discount

Confer wi

regarding

Office conference with Ms. Worth

Con ferenccMvilh K. Worth. Phone conference

withH Continued revisions to
motion.

Revised

Continued motion.

0.60

3.90

2.90

-0.70

0.40

1.00

2.70

2.70

2.40

144.00

682.50

870.00

-210.00

90.00

300.00

472.50

472.50

420.00

DBB

EVE

KAW

KAW

KEA

MOT

EVE

EVE

EVE

Totals 204.80 $47,175.50

DISBURSEMENTS

Jul-21-14 Court Reporting Services - pretrial motions 03/31/2014

Totals

174.34

$174.34

lotal Fee & Disbursements for all charges on this matter $47,349.84

TAX ID Number 38-3648345



THRASHER

LISS & SMITH1"11"

Five Concourse Parkway

Suile 2600

Atlanta, Georgia 30328

July 25, 2014

t: 404-760-6000

f: 404-760-0225

www.tlslaw.com

Kimberly Worth
d: 404-760-6012

kworth@tlslaw.com

VIA FIRST CLASS MAIL, FACSIMILE,

AND ELECTRONIC MAIL

Bryan K. Webb, Esq.

Senior Assistant Attorney General

Sam Olens, Esq.

Attorney General

40 Capitol Square, S.W.

Atlanta, Georgia 30334

Fax: (404) 657-8733
bwebb@law.ga.gov

AGOlens@law,ga.gov

Re: Stacay Kalberman v. Georgia Government Transparency and Campaign

Financial Commission, el al.\ Superior Court of Fulton County, Georgia;

Civil Action File No. 20 1 2-CV-2 1 6247

Mr. Webb and Mr. Olens:

This letter is to advise you and your office that my client, Slacey Kalberman, intends to

seek sanctions against your office and the Defendants under O.C.G.A. §§ 9-1 1-37, 9-15-14, and

15-1-3. While we do not believe that correspondence under U.S.C.R. 6.4 is required in this

particular case, we write this letter out of an abundance of caution, in light of the fact that your

discovery violations serve as the predicate for the filing of our motion for sanctions based on bad

faith and abusive litigation, ethical misconduct, and fraud upon the Court.

As an officer of the Court, 1 am shocked at the tactics your office employed in this case,

as they reveal a concerted effort to conceal information relevant to my client's claims. I would

submit further that the Office of the Attorney General represents the citizens of this State and

should conduct itself in a manner that other lawyers should aspire to emulate. Instead, in this

case, the pattern of concealment and bad faith, coupled with the more recent attempts by your

office to offer half-truths to the public, parse words, and ascribe technical explanations for your

failure to disclose relevant evidence that clearly was subject to production, is indefensible.

As you know, I personally was notified in the Spring of 2013 that Holly LaBergc was

using her Gmail account to circumvent the Open Records Act. When 1 received this information,

I immediately called to notify you that I planned to subpoena Ms. LaBergc's personal Gmail
account. Thereafter, you filed a Motion to Quash the Subpoena on behalf of Ms. LaBerge

wherein you contended, inter alia, that "the subpoena seeks information that is neither relevant

or material to the Plaintiffs cause of action against Defendants and seeks information that

post-dates any of the alleged unlawful actions of Defendants." In an effort to avoid the expense

of protracted litigation on the issue of the subpoena, we entered into an agreement whereby I

(00359;E<3.3 )

EXHIBIT



agreed to withdraw the subpoena, and Ms. LaBerge would produce all work-related emails from
her Gmail account ("Email Agreement").3

While we have no way of knowing which documents Ms. LaBerge produced in response
to the Email Agreement, or which documents were produced in response to the discovery
requests, we submit that not one single email in Ms. LaBerge's Gmail account that was remotely
relevant to Ms. Kalberman's case justifiably could have been withheld from production to us.
The F™ail Agreement did not limit the scope of our prior discovery requests, as Ms. LaBerge
was already under a duty to locate personal emails that were responsive to our discovery
requests. Neither did our discovery requests limit the Email Agreement, as the agreement was for
her to locate and produce all work-related emails regardless of whether they were responsive to
our discovery requests.

The relevant discovery requests are as follows:

Request for Production of Documents No. 2 (propounded to the
Commission):

Please produce the Commission's entire investigative file concerning Nathan
Deal, including all correspondence relating to that investigation into alleged
ethical violations committed by his campaign for governor in the 2010 election

cycle. Plaintiffacknowledges the sensitive nature of this request and agrees to the
production of the responsive documents subject to a privilege log and offers that
the documents will be viewed by counsel and Plaintiffonly.

Request for Production ofDocuments No. 2 (propounded to Ms. LaBerge):

Please produce any and all correspondence, including e-mails to and from your
Personal E-mail Account(s) and/or your Commission E-mail Accounts), between
yourself and any other person(s) (e.g., without limitation, Lisa Dentler, Elisabeth

Munay-Obertein) and/or entity(ies)/agency(ies)/department(s) of the government
of the State of Georgia, concerning any issue relating to this lawsuit filed by
Plaintiff, including correspondence pertaining to, without limitation, the
Commission's budget, the Commission's investigation into alleged ethics

violations by Nathan Deal (the "Deal Investigation"), the employment of Plaintiff
and this resulting lawsuit, die employment of Sherlyn Streicker and her resulting

lawsuit against Defendants, Defendant Millsaps' appointment to the Commission,

Defendant Millsaps' role as Chair of die Commission, Defendant
Millsaps' departure from the Commission, the manner in which Defendant
Millsaps obtained his position with Mr. Newt Gingrich's presidential campaign,
Randolph "Randy" Evans, Todd Markle, the State of Georgia Governor's Office,
Deborah Wallace, and/or the Office of the State Inspector General and its
investigation into Plaintiffs departure from the Commission.

Request for Production of Documents No. 5: (propounded to Ms. LaBerge):

3 Ms. LaBerge was well aware of this Email Agreement, as I examined her on this issue at her
deposition. In fact, Ms. LaBerge testified specifically that she gave you everything that was
responsive to our requests.



Please produce any and all correspondence, including e-mails to and from your
Personal E-mail Accounts) and/or your Commission E-mail Accounts), between
yourself and any employee or representative of the State of Georgia Governor's
Office, since July 1, 201 1 .

You did not object to any of these discovery requests, file a privilege log, or indicate that
you intended to pursue an in camera inspection of any questionable documents before Judge
Glanville.

In addition to seeking relevant and responsive documents through the discovery process,
on July 23, 2013, Ms. Kalberman sought documents under the Open Records Act, which is even
broader in scope than the Civil Practice Act and requires strict compliance by state agencies,
pursuant to O.C.G.A. § 50-18-70, et seq. In this Open Records Act request, Ms. Kalberman
sought, inter alia:

Any and all e-mails sent to or received by holly.laberge@gmail.com . . . since
September 2011, containing communications, information, documents, discovery
requests, files, or data related to Complaints filed with the Georgia State Ethics
Commission and the Georgia Government Transparency and Campaign Finance

Commission concerning Nathan Deal and the subsequent investigation/consent

orders/fines . . . that were prepared, maintained or received in the performance of a
service or function for or on behalfof the Commission.

In response, Ms. LaBerge informed Ms. Kalberman that all of the requested documents had

"already been submitted to you in the context of the discovery of the cases."

Accordingly, Defendants, through your office, were under a legal obligation to provide

emails out ofMs. LaBerge's Gmail account from three different avenues: (1) through the Email
Agreement, (2) through discovery requests propounded under O.C.G.A. 9-1 1-34, and (3) through

the Open Records Act. As we now know, we did not receive all of the responsive documents nor

did we receive any of this newly publicized evidence in response to our specific requests to
Ms. LaBerge or to the Commission.

In July 2013, we received two discs from your office that contained tens of thousands of

pages of documents purportedly responsive to our discovery requests. We also received more
than 20 emails from Ms. LaBerge's private email account We now know that documents central

to our case were not included on these discs and the first time we heard that such evidence

existed was when Ms. LaBerge appeared on the Channels news. During this interview,
Ms. LaBerge showed pictures of emails that she had maintained in her Gmail account dating
back to July 2012, and that included text message correspondence that she had received from
Chris Riley and Ryan Teague. The same interview included another piece of evidence
purportedly created by Ms. LaBerge in the form of a memorandum, which included dates, times,
and the exact content of this text message correspondence ("Memorandum"). In the

Memorandum, Ms. LaBerge states that she felt threatened by the Governor's Chief of Staff and

his Counsel to settle the Governor's cases.

I am at a loss as to how to convey my feelings as an attorney regarding your failure to
produce all of this evidence when you knew it was central to my client's claims.



Ms. Kalberman's focus from the inception of this litigation was not only that she lost her job
because of the Deal matters but also that she lost her job so that another person could be brought
into the office whom the Oovemor (or someone in his office) believed could be influenced. The
Memorandum is central to this issue and proves Ms. Kalberman's claim outright. In addition, as
this Memorandum was created by the Executive Secretary of the Commission in relation to the
Governors cases, it should have been included in the Deal file and not hidden away. There is no
legal justification for this document not to have been placed in the Deal file and produced during
discovery. When you discovered the existence of the Memorandum, you were immediately on
notice that your response to our Request to Production No. 2 to the Commission requesting the
entire Deal file was no longer accurate and that you were obligated to update this response
pursuant to O.C.G.A. § 9-1 1 -26(e)(2)(B). To argue now that it was not physically in the Deal
file belies your obligation under the Civil Practice Act and would signify that any litigant could
maintein responsive documents in a separate physical location to avoid production during suit

With respect to the emails that Ms. LaBerge sent to herself that contained the text
message correspondence that she received from the Governor's representatives, these emails
were in Ms. LaBerge's email account since July 2012. Because there is no way that you can
argue these were not work-related emails, these emails were similarly subject to pnxluction
under the private agreement to produce e-mails. You did not produce these documents, and they
were central to Ms. Kalberman's claims.

In addition, the text messages and the emails containing the text message correspondence
also were subject to production to Ms. Kalberman's discovery requests. Ifyou had any doubt that

these materials were not responsive to our requests, your obligation was to request an in-camera

inspection from Judge Glanville so that he could review the documents to determine if they were
responsive to our requests. As the Attorney General of this State, it defies reason and violates the
spirit and intent of the Civil Practice Act to argue that these emails were not subject to
production because they were not sent to Ms. LaBerge from the Governor's office but to

Ms. LaBerge from Ms. LaBerge. Presumably, under your logic, if I have a text message and I
take a picture of it to preserve it, I do not have to produce it because it is not a text message

anymore - it is a picture. We both know this is a self-serving argument that should not withstand
scrutiny before any judge in this State. The fact that the physical properties of the document has

changed does not change the character or content of the underlying piece ofevidence.

Moreover, and more importantly, when you received the Memorandum, you were then on
notice of the text messages. You had an absolute duty to produce them at that time because you

knew that they were responsive to our requests seeking correspondence between Ms. LaBerge

and the Governor's office or correspondence related to the consent orders/fines in the Governor's

cases. If you believed that the Memorandum was non-responsive, which we dispute, you could

have redacted the portions that you did not believe were subject to production. Instead, you
withheld critical documents and argued throughout this case that what happened after
Ms.Kalberman left the Commission had no bearing on her case, while having exclusive

knowledge that there was evidence that the Governor's Office threatened Ms. Kalberman's
replacement after Ms. Kalberman left. I would go so far as to say you perpetrated a fraud on the

Court by arguing there was no evidence before the Court that showed a link to the Governor's

Office when you knew of the existence of the exact evidence that was the linchpin to our case.

To hear the Office of the Attorney General now state that we did not ask the ''right"

questions is disgraceful. You were well aware that we had a private agreement for Ms. LaBerge



to produce work-related emails, and I think we can all agree that emails containing messages
from the Governor's Office that Ms. LaBerge interpreted as threatening - while she was the head
of the Commission - are most certainly work-related.

Finally, the fact that Ms. Kalberman prevailed on her claim does not relieve either you or

your office from the rules that govern our profession. You and I had dozens of conversations

about my theory of the case, which I tried to approach from numerous angles. It is inconceivable

to me that you could sit on evidence this relevant and fail to produce it in (or afrer) discovery.

Now I understand why you argued that Ms. Kalberman's intention to introduce evidence of the

events that transpired after her departure were not "relevant"; indeed, not only was it relevant, it

was damning to the Defendants. You even filed a Motion in Limine presenting this argument to

the Court, when the Court did not have ail of the evidence before it to fairly decide that Motion.

Ultimately, your conduct significantly expanded the proceedings and substantially increased the

attorney time and effort required to prosecute Ms. Kalberman's case.

As stated herein, Ms. Kalberman intends to proceed with her Motion for Sanctions. If you

would like to provide a meaningful response to these issues, please do so by close of business on

Tuesday, July 29, 2014. If your response is merely to parse words as your office has to the press,

please do not bother to respond.

THRASHER LISS & SMITH, LLC

Kimberly A. Worth

KAW/kea
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IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF FULTON COUNTY
STATE OF GEORGIA

STACEY KALBERMAN,

Plaintiff,

CIVIL ACTION

FILE NO. 2012CV216247

v.

GEORGIA GOVERNMENT

TRANSPARENCY AND CAMPAIGN

FINANCE COMMISSION, f/k/a GEORGIA

STATE ETHICS COMMISSION, HOLLY
LABERGE, in her Official capacity as

Executive Secretary of the Georgia

Government Transparency and Campaign

Finance Commission, and PATRICK

MILLSAPS, in his Individual capacity,

Defendants.

AFFIDAVIT OF STACEY KALBERMAN

Fulton County

Georgia

Personally appeared before the undersigned officer, duly authorized by law to administer

oaths, STACEY KALBERMAN, who, after first being duly sworn, states the following under

oath:

1. •

My name is Stacey Kalberman, and I give this Affidavit willingly and under no duress.

2.

I am over the age of twenty-one (21) and a resident of the state of Tennessee, and I am

laboring under no disabilities whatsoever.

100370)1$ )



3.

I give this Affidavit in connection with the above-referenced matter, for use in any other

court proceeding.

4.

I have personal knowledge of the facts and circumstances stated herein, surrounding the

above-referenced matter.

5.

I have been given an opportunity to review the contents of this affidavit and to edit it and

make any revisions I deem appropriate

6.

I have not been offered, nor have I received any compensation of any sort in exchange for

my statement.

7.

No one has threatened me or promised me anything to obtain this affidavit. I have been

given a copy of this affidavit for my records.

8.

I am the Plaintiff in the civil suit. Civil Action Number 20 12CV2 16247 currently pending

before the Superior Court ofFulton County.

9.

I served as the Executive Secretary of the Georgia Government Transparency and

Campaign Finance Commission ("the Commission") from April 201 0 through September 201 1 .



10.

As Executive Secretary of the Commission, I was solely responsible for ensuring that the

Commission complied with requests for records received under the Open Records Act, O.C.G.A.

§ 50-18-70, etseq.

11.

As Executive Secretary of the Commission, the Open Records Act would have prohibited

me from withholding from the public any document created within the scope of my duties as

Executive Secretary.

12.

As Executive Secretary of the Commission, the Open Records Act would have prohibited

me from storing any type of "personal file" wherein I personally would maintain sensitive

documents relating to the business of the Commission so as to prevent their production to the

public under the Open Records Act.

13.

As Executive Secretary of the Commission, the Open Records Act would have prohibited

me from storing Commission documents at my home or any location away from the

Commission.

14.

As Executive Secretary of the Commission, the Open Records Act would have prohibited

me from utilizing my personal e-mail account or cell phone to conduct Commission business for

the purpose of circumventing the production of those communications upon request.



15.

As Executive Secretary of the Commission, if I had engaged in communications

regarding Commission business through my personal e-mail account or cell phone, I would have

been obligated to preserve those communications through the Commission's paper file or

electronic file.

16.

As Executive Secretary of the Commission, if I had engaged in communications

regarding Commission business through my personal e-mail account or cell phone, 1 would have

been prohibited from preserving those communications separately from the Commission.

17.

Moreover, during my tenure as Executive Secretary of the Commission, 1 oversaw the

investigation into certain ethics complaints filed against the 2010 Nathan Deal for Governor

Campaign fthe Deal Investigation").

18.

As Executive Secretary, I oversaw the creation and maintenance of the Deal Investigation

file, which would have included all documents created in the scope of Commission business that

related to the complaints against Mr. Deal, such as investigative notes, evidence, research, drafts,

correspondence and memorializations of communications with Mr. Deal's representatives,

interoffice memoranda, motions filed by Mr. Deal, settlement negotiations, resolutions, and

consent orders.

19.

I have had the opportunity to review the Deal Investigation file, following the completion

of the investigation against Mr. Deal, as it was produced to my attorney during discovery in the



litigation against Defendant LaBerge and the Commission. The file contained the types of

documents described in the above paragraph, among others, as would be expected for any

Commission file. For instance, the produced file included memoranda, photocopies of sticky

notes jotted down by Commission staff, and handwritten notes reflecting conversations and

messages from Mr. Deal's counsel.

20.

I have had the opportunity to review a memorandum prepared by my successor at the

Commission, Ms. Holly LaBerge, and which was not produced as part of the Deal Investigation

file during the course of my employment litigation against Defendant LaBerge and the

Commission. This memorandum is attached at Exhibit A to this Affidavit ("the LaBerge

Memorandum").

21.

The LaBerge Memorandum is the type of document in its content and purpose (of

memorializing a conversation with Mr. Deal's representatives regarding the resolution of the

complaints) that I would have kept in the voluminous Deal Investigation file.

22.

Having reviewed the Deal Investigation file as actually maintained by the Commission

following my termination, the LaBerge Memorandum is the type of document in its content and

purpose that should have been maintained among the other documents described above within

the Deal Investigation file.



23.

Based on my experience as former Executive Secretary of the Commission, there was no

appropriate place other than the Deal Investigation file, either physically or administratively, to

maintain the LaBerge Memorandum.

24.

As Executive Secretary of the Commission, the Open Records Act would have prohibited

me from alienating the LaBerge Memorandum from the Deal Investigation file.

25.

I first learned of the existence of withheld evidence and associated discovery abuses

when viewing news reports during the week of July 14, 2014, following an interview between

Defendant LaBerge and television reporter Dale Russell.

26.

During the news report with Mr. Russell, Defendant LaBerge showed e-mails dated 2012

that she had preserved, which contained text message correspondence between herself and

representatives of the Governor's Office.

27.

This e-mail correspondence was not produced to me during the discovery of my case,

despite being responsive to my discovery requests to Defendant LaBerge.

28.

Additionally, during the course of the litigation, I had instructed my attorney to withdraw

a subpoena seeking access to Defendant LaBerge' s personal e-mail account, in exchange for

LaBerge's agreement to provide all work-related e-mails from that account.



29.

However, the first time I saw these responsive e-mails was during the news report with

Mr. Russell because the e-mails were not produced pursuant to the agreement to withdraw the

subpoena.

30.

These e-mails demonstrate the theory of my case, namely, that 1 was terminated and

replaced by an individual, Defendant LaBerge, that the Governor's Office believed it could

manipulate and "threaten" to resolve the complaints in his favor.

31.

Yet, Defendant LaBerge waited two years, until the trial in my case was over, to make

this information public.

32.

As the Executive Secretary of the Commission, had I received similar text messages and

a "threatening" phone call from the Governor's Office, I would not have hid that information

from the public for more than two (2) years.

33.

As the Executive Secretary of the Commission, had I received a similar "threatening"

phone call from the Governor's Office, I would have contacted the appropriate authorities about

the inappropriate communication, including the Attorney General's Office.

34.

As the Executive Secretary of the Commission, had I created a memorandum

memorializing the threatening" phone call with a representative of the Governor's Office, I



would have maintained that memorandum in the corresponding file of that case as a public

record created within the scope of my duties as a public officer.

35.

As the Executive Secretary of the Commission, had 1 created a memorandum

memorializing the "threatening" phone call with a representative of the Governor's Office, 1

would have produced the memorandum upon receiving a request under the Open Records Act,

Civil Practice Act, or as otherwise required by law.

FURTHER. Affiant saycth not.

/.—

NOTARY PUBLK

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES: 5/W/7

Stacey Kalberman

SUBSCRIBED TO AND SWORN BEFORE ME

ON THIS 4- DAY OF fft Ah&t , 20 1 4
IN THE PRESENC&OF: / ~V~ - IV expires \ \? / EXPIRES \

i I GEORGIA |
c \ MAY 30, 201 7 =



Memorandum of Record

July 17, 2012

On July 16, 2012 at 4.44 pm CST I received a text message to my personal cell phone from Chris Riley:

So since you are at the beach, with yourfeet In the sand and probably something cold to drink. Does

this mean we can resolve all DFG Issues by Monday? :)

I replied via test at 8.46 pm CST:

Well I am on vacation but It's apparently a "working" one. A realistic counter by noon tomorrow Is the

best chance ofa resolution. Otherwise it will be out ofmy hands and resolved on Monday.

At 8.50 pm CST Chris Riley responded via text:

That will be difficult, Ryan said two ofIssues, legalfees and aircraft are not even on the tablefor

discussion. How can we give you a realistic counter when not all Issues are ready? My non legal

opinion. Hove a good vacation. I wouldn't worry about having to work thru It. .

I did not respond.

On July 17, 2012 at 6.31 am CST I received a text message to my personal cell phone from Ryan Teague:

Holly - Its Ryan. Would like to chat soon when you are in the office. I can walk over. Thanks.

I replied at 6.35 am CST:

HI Ryan. I'm on vacation this week so If you need to talk before Monday it will need to be by phone. I

apologizefor the Inconvenience.

He replied at 6.36 am CST:

Ok. Lets talk by phone then. Are ufree this afternoon?

I replied at 6.38 am CST:

I will be on the beach but Ifyou can give me an approximate time t will be near my phone.

He replied at 6.41 am CST:

1pm?

I replied at 6.42 am CST:

Sounds good. I will wait to hearfrom you then.

EXHIBIT

A



At 1.04 pm CST, Ryan league called my personal cell phone. He proceeded to lei me know how he was only

acting as an intermediary to try to come to a resolution on the Deal complaints ahead of Monday's

Commission meeting. He made an offer of $1,500 settlement, no admission of violations and everything else

to be dismissed. I explained that we offered Ben Vinson $5,400 the day before for the CCDR and PFD

complaint technical defects and violations which was 75% off the initial consent order amount. Ryan informed

me that that amount was more than Perdue (former Governor) had paid for a much worse violation. I tried to

explain that the fine amount was based on the number of violations. I also tried to explain that the legal fees

and aircraft complaints were not included in these consent orders because we were still awaiting the

Commission's vote on the AO's and that this had been previously discussed at length with Randy Evans. Ryan

informed me that it was not in the agency's best interest for these cases to go to a hearing Monday; nor was it

in their best political interest either and that our rule making authority may not happen if the complaints were

not resolved prior to Monday. 1 responded by expressing my surprise that the threat of rule making being

withheld was being used to make the complaints go away.

The conversation continued with his lack of regard for my vacation that was planned months prior to the

Commission meeting date being set for July 23fd. I informed Ryan that I would respond to voicemails and texts

but I would not continue to carry my phone in my hand all day while on vacation and surely he didn't expect

me to do so. This was met with the remark that he was still required to be in contact when he was on

vacation. I replied that I was in contact with my staff regarding issues that needed to be addressed prior to my

return but that the current scenario was not my emergency in light of the fact that we (the agency) had been

waiting for a month for the Respondent to negotiate on the consent order.

Due to the nature of the contact from Chris Riley and then Ryan Teague, I felt it necessary to Inform the

Chairman of the Commission, Kevin Abernethy, about what had transpired since our phone conversation the

day before with the staff attorney (Elisabeth Murray-Obertein) and the Respondent's counsel (Ben Vinson).

After relaying the texts and phone conversation, Kevin stated that he would bo passing this along to the Vice-

Chairperson, Hillary Stringfellow and fellow commissioner, Kent Alexander.

Holly LaBerge

Executive Secretary

Georgia Government Transparency & Campaign Finance Commission
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PARKS CHESIN WALBERT

A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE

August 6, 2014

HOLLY LABERGE RESPONDS TO MEDIA REPORTS REGARDING

TEXT MESSAGES WITH GOVERNOR'S OFFICE

ATLANTA, GA - On July 11, 2014, Holly LaBerge, Executive Secretary of the

Georgia Government Transparency and Campaign Finance Commission

("Commission"), informed the Commission Members that she had given an

interview to Dale Russell of Fox 5 News Atlanta. Ms. LaBerge explained that she

did so in order to take a public stand against the fraud, waste, and abuse that
occurred in connection with the trial and settlement of the litigation and threats of

litigation related to the Commission's handling of complaints stemming from the

2010 campaign of Governor Nathan Deal (the "Deal Complaints"). On July 14,

2014, Fox 5 News Atlanta aired a segmented news feature that included Ms.

LaBerge's documentation of the pressure that she received from the office of

Governor Nathan Deal (the "Governor's Office") to resolve the Deal Complaints

on terms favorable to the Governor. The news feature included a Memorandum

that Ms. LaBerge created, at the request of Ethics Commission Chair Kevin

Abernethy, to document the text messages and oral communications she received

from representatives of the Governor's Office, specifically Chris Riley and Ryan

Teague. Ms. LaBerge provided the Memorandum to the Office of the Attorney

General during discovery for the Stacy Kalberman and Sherry Streicker

whistleblower litigation. The Memorandum contained verbatim quotations of the

text messages that Ms. LaBerge received from Mr. Riley and Mr. Teague on June

16-17, 2012. The Atlanta Journal Constitution and other media outlets have

disseminated copies of the Memorandum to the public.

Questions have arisen concerning the dates and times that some of the text
messages were sent and received. On July 16 and July 17, 2012, Ms. LaBerge

received the text messages referenced and quoted in the Memorandum. On July 17,
2012, Ms. LaBerge forwarded these text messages to her personal e-mail account

in an effort to preserve the messages. Later during the evening of July 17, 2012,

Ms. LaBerge also forwarded earlier text messages that she had received from Chris
Riley on July 5, 2012 to her personal e-mail account in order to preserve those



messages. The time stamps on the e-mails containing the text messages do not

show the date or times that Ms. LaBerge exchanged the text messages with Mr.

Riley or Mr. league of the Governor's Office. Rather, all of the July 17, 2012

e-mails containing the forwarded text messages have a time stamp showing when

Ms. LaBerge forwarded the texts from her personal telephone to her personal

e-mail account. Copies of these e-mails have now been produced in response to

Open Records Act requests.

On July 21, 2014, the Atlanta Journal Constitution and WSB-TV Channel 2 News

published news pieces stating that additional text messages produced by Ms.

LaBerge called into question Ms. LaBerge's claims that she felt pressured by the

Governor's Office to dismiss the Deal Complaints or settle them on terms

favorable terms to the Governor. These reports were based on the false or mistaken

assertion that the July 5, 2012 text messages between Mr. Riley and Ms. LaBerge

were exchanged on the evening of July 17, 2012. Both reports wrongly relied on

the time stamps on the e-mails showing when Ms. LaBerge forwarded the text

messages to her e-mail account in order to support their published opinions that

Ms. LaBerge was exchanging friendly text messages just a few hours after being

pressured to resolve the Deal Complaints on terms dictated by the Governor.

Ms. LaBerge now has been able to obtain the original text messages from her

previous telephone. Photographs of those text messages showing the accurate sent

and received dates and times are attached to this press release. The first four text

messages in the attachment are the messages exchanged between Ms. LaBerge and

Mr. Riley on July 5, 2012. These are the messages that the Atlanta Journal

Constitution and Chanel 2 News reported as being exchanged on the evening of

July 17, 2012, based on the e-mail time stamps. The next three messages are those

exchanged between Mr. Riley and Ms. LaBerge on July 16, 2012. The final six

messages are those exchanged between Mr. Teague and Ms. LaBerge on July 17,

2012. This should resolve any confusion regarding the dates of the text messages.

Ms. LaBerge is represented by attorney A. Lee Parks of Parks, Chesin & Walbert,

P.C. in Atlanta, Georgia. Mr. Parks can be reached for questions at 404-873-8000.
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Message Dated July 5th, 2012 - 10:25 AM:

• • ' J"'. . .

MGTOf9€>LA

r 0 .tl m 9:10
T«xt message

so 1 r eceived a piece of mail from the

Gover nor s office last week addressed to

agency heads and it had my predecessor's

name on it. Is this a subliminal message that

the Govei nor's office wants her back?

sent: July 5. 2013 10:2SAM

1 of 13



Message Dated July 5th, 2012 - 11:37 AM:

motorola

0 jA

Text message

1 don't remember sending anything out. What
was it?

CB#770|

uly 5, 2012 1 1:37 AM

2 oris



Message Dated July 5th, 2012 - 11:38 AM:

TMt

,.u can't leave, you have common sense and
mat office you are in is like a huge vacum. u
sucks all the common sense out of people, :)

|jiyS42012 11:38 AM

3 of 13



Message Dated July 5th, 2012 - 03:15 PM:

r 0 ..i

Ttxt mtsMf•

it was about the state charitable contnbut «
- tmpaign. Thank you for the kind woids

Sent: July 5.2012 3:15 PM

4 of 13



Message Dated July 16th, 2012 - 5:44 PM:

Su. since you are at the beach, with your teet
in i he sand and probably something cold to
li ink. Does that mean we can resolve all DFG

i-. -.ues on Monday? :)
CB#77

.Iv 16, 2012 5:44 PM

5 of 13



Message Dated July 16th, 2012 - 9:46 PM

M0T0f10L.A

0 ..tl

Ttxt message

Well I am on vacation but it's apparently a
"working" one. A realistic counter by noon

romorrow is the best chance of a resolution.
Otherwise it will be out of my hands and
resolved on Monday.

Sent: July 16. 2012 9:46 PM

6 of 13



Message Dated July 16th, 2012 - 9:50 PM:

0 .ii m •*1

TMC m8S»«f«

Thai will be difficult. Ryan said two of is ut-s.
legal fees and ainrafi are not even on the
table for discussion. How can we give you a
realistic counter when not all issues are reach. ¦
My non legal opinion. Have a good vacation I

.¦ uldn t worry about having to woi k thru
CB#77Cf

July 16,2012 9:50 PM

7 of 13



Message Dated July 17th, 2012 - 7:31 AM:

. Jolly its Ryan Would like to chat scon when
on are in the office. I can walk over. Thanks

|uly ) 7. 2012 7:31 AM

8 of 13



Message Dated July 17th, 2012 - 7:35 AM:

T«*t •

Hi kyru» I'm on vacation this v»/eek so if you

need to (a(k before Monday it will need lu b<
hy phone. 1 apologize for the inconvenience

Sent: July 17,20] 2 7:35 AM

9 of 13



Message Dated July 17th, 2012 - 7:36 AM:

Ttxt masMf•

Ok. Let's talk by phone then. Are u free this
afternoon?

|uly 17, 2012 7:36 AM

10 of 13



Message Dated July 17th, 2012 - 7:41 AM:

7«jct iruMSif*

pm ?

futy 17,2012 7:41 AM

11 of 13



Message Dated July 17th, 2012 - 7:88 AM:

MOrOWOCA

0 .ri 10:15

Text m«sMC«

I Will be on the beach but If you can give me an
approximate time I will be near my phone.

Sent: July 1 7, 2012 7:38 AM

12 of 13



Message Dated July 17th, 2012 - 7:42 AM:

S ujnds good I will wait to hear from you then

•' Mi jtily 1 7, 2012 7:42 AM

13 of 13
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